Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

To: Councillor Laing, Convener; Councillor John, Vice Convener; and Councillors
Allard, Copland, Duncan, Lumsden, Alex Nicoll, Wheeler and Yuill.

Town House,
ABERDEEN, 3 February 2021

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

The Members of the STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE are requested
to meet remotely on THURSDAY, 11 FEBRUARY 2021 at 2.00pm.

FRASER BELL
CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE

In accordance with UK and Scottish Government guidance, meetings of this
Committee will be held remotely as required. In these circumstances the meetings
will be recorded and available on the Committee page on the website.

BUSINESS

NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS

1.1 There are no items at this time

DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS

2.1 Members are requested to determine that any exempt business be
considered with the press and public excluded

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.1 Members are requested to declare any interests (Pages 5 - 6)

DEPUTATIONS

4.1 There are no deputations at this time




MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING

5.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 12 November 2020 - for approval (Pages 7 -
16)

COMMITTEE PLANNER

6.1 Committee Business Planner (Pages 17 - 20)

NOTICES OF MOTION

7.1 There are no notices of motion at this time

REFERRALS FROM COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTEES

8.1 There are no referrals at this time

ANNUAL REPORTS

9.1 Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report - COM/21/041 (Pages 21 - 36)

9.2 Scotland Excel Annual Report - COM/21/033 (Pages 37 - 54)

COMMISSIONING / REVIEWING

10.1 Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment 2021 - CUS/21/042 (Pages
55 - 128)

10.2 Commercial and Procurement Performance Report - CUS/21/024 (Pages
129 - 138)

WORKPLANS AND BUSINESS CASES

11.1  Workplans and Business Cases - Revenue - COM/21/034 (Pages 139 -
148)

EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

12.1  Workplans and Business Cases - Revenue - Exempt Appendices (Pages
149 - 188)




EHRIAS related to reports on this agenda can be viewed here
To access the Service Updates for this Committee please click here
Website Address: aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Stephanie
Dunsmuir, sdunsmuir@aberdeencity.gov.uk or 01224 522503


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/people-and-communities/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-human-rights-impact-assessments
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3.1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

You must consider at the earliest stage possible whether you have an interest to
declare in relation to any matter which is to be considered. You should consider
whether reports for meetings raise any issue of declaration of interest. Your
declaration of interest must be made under the standing item on the agenda,
however if you do identify the need for a declaration of interest only when a particular
matter is being discussed then you must declare the interest as soon as you realise
it is necessary. The following wording may be helpful for you in making your
declaration.

| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons ...............

For example, | know the applicant / | am a member of the Board of X /1 am
employed by...

and | will therefore withdraw from the meeting room during any discussion and voting
on that item.

OR

| have considered whether | require to declare an interest in item (x) for the following
reasons ............... however, having applied the objective test, | consider that my
interest is so remote / insignificant that it does not require me to remove myself from
consideration of the item.

OR

| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons ............... however |
consider that a specific exclusion applies as my interest is as a member of xxxx,
which is
(@) adevolved public body as defined in Schedule 3 to the Act;
(b)  a public body established by enactment or in pursuance of statutory
powers or by the authority of statute or a statutory scheme;
(c) a body with whom there is in force an agreement which has been made
in pursuance of Section 19 of the Enterprise and New Towns
(Scotland) Act 1990 by Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands
Enterprise for the discharge by that body of any of the functions of
Scottish Enterprise or, as the case may be, Highlands and Islands
Enterprise; or
(d) a body being a company:-
i. established wholly or mainly for the purpose of providing services to
the Councillor’s local authority; and
ii. which has entered into a contractual arrangement with that local
authority for the supply of goods and/or services to that local authority.

OR
| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons...... and although the body is

covered by a specific exclusion, the matter before the Committee is one that is
quasi-judicial / regulatory in nature where the body | am a member of:

Page 5



is applying for a licence, a consent or an approval

is making an objection or representation

has a material interest concerning a licence consent or approval

is the subject of a statutory order of a regulatory nature made or proposed to
be made by the local authority.... and | will therefore withdraw from the
meeting room during any discussion and voting on that item.

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5.1

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

ABERDEEN, 12 November 2020. Minute of Meeting of the STRATEGIC
COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE. Present:- Councillor Laing, Convener;
Councillor John, Vice-Convener; and Councillors Allard, Copland, Duncan,
Lumsden, Malik (as substitute for Councillor Wheeler), Alex Nicoll and Yuill.

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found here.

Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this document
will not be retrospectively altered.

DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS

1. The Convener proposed that the Committee consider item 13.1 (Workplans and
Business Cases — Exempt Appendices) with the press and public excluded.

The Committee resolved:-

in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the
press and public from the meeting during consideration of item 13.1 on today’s agenda so
as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of the class described in paragraph 8 of
Schedule 7(A) of the Act.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2. The Committee noted the following declarations of interest intimated at this stage:-

(1) Councillors Allard and Duncan declared interests in respect of item 9.1 (Aberdeen
Performing Arts Annual Report) by virtue of their role as Board members of
Aberdeen Performing Arts but did not consider that the nature of their interests
required them to leave the meeting during consideration of the item;

(i) Councillor Alex Nicoll declared an interest in respect of item 9.2 (Bon Accord Care
Annual Report) as he had Power of Attorney for a family member who lived in care
provided by Bon Accord Care, but did not consider that the nature of his interest
required him to leave the meeting during consideration of the item; and

(i)  Councillor Lumsden declared an interest due to his role as NHS Grampian Board
member in respect of items 9.1, 9.2 and 9.3 (Sport Aberdeen Annual Report) as
NHS Grampian was mentioned throughout the reports, however he did not consider
that the nature of his interest required him to leave the meeting during consideration
of the items.

Page 7


https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=616&MId=7173&Ver=4

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 27 AUGUST 2020

3. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 27 August 2020
for approval.

The Convener advised that the information requested in respect of Aberdeen Christmas
Village and the Spaces for People financing had been circulated to Members outwith the
meeting.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the minute as a correct record.

COMMITTEE BUSINESS PLANNER

4. The Committee had before it the committee business planner as prepared by the
Chief Officer — Governance.

The Committee resolved:-

(1) in relation to item 14 (Collaboration with Businesses), to request that the Head of
Commercial and Procurement circulate a service update to Members with further
information on the work that had been undertaken with businesses, including the
recent event which had been held, and to agree to remove the item from the
planner;

(i) to note that due to the delay with item 16 (Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report)
that the planner would be amended to move the next report from October 2021 to
February 2022;

(i)  to agree to remove item 16 (Operational Delivery Models — Bon Accord Care and
Sport Aberdeen) from the planner, noting that the matter would instead be taken
forward as part of the budget setting process; and

(iv)  to otherwise note the planner.

ABERDEEN PERFORMING ARTS ANNUAL REPORT - COM/20/217

5. With reference to article 5 of the minute of its meeting of 21 November 2019, the
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Commercial and Procurement which
presented the Aberdeen Performing Arts annual review report covering financial year
2019/20 in order to provide Committee with an overview of performance of service
delivery.

Ms Spiers, Aberdeen Performing Arts, was in attendance and answered questions from
Members.

Page 8



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the Aberdeen Performing Arts ALEO Annual Report appended
to the report for the Council’s interests.

The Committee resolved:-

(1) to note the Aberdeen Performing Arts ALEO Annual Report;

(i) to agree the performance to date met with the clear ambitions of the Regional
Economic Strategy 2018-2023 and built on the Culture Aberdeen 2018-2028 Action
Plan;

(i)  to agree the work detailed in the Creative Learning appendix to the report
contributed to the delivery of the outcomes detailed in Aberdeen’s Local Outcome
Improvement Plan;

(iv)  to congratulate all those involved in delivering APA’s Business Plan objectives as
detailed in the annual report; and

(v) to thank Ms Spiers and her team for their continued hard work particularly due to
the pressures of COVID-19.

BON ACCORD CARE ANNUAL REPORT - COM/20/215

6. With reference to article 7 of the minute of its meeting of 21 November 2019, the
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Commercial and Procurement which
presented the Bon Accord Care annual review report covering financial year 2019/20 in
order to provide Committee with an overview of performance of service delivery.

Mrs Woodcock and Mr Gardiner, Bon Accord Care, were in attendance and answered
guestions from Members.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the Bon Accord Care ALEO Annual Report appended to the
report for the Council’s interests.

The Committee resolved:-

(1) to note that Mrs Woodcock would discuss the content of the annual report with the
Head of Commercial and Procurement to determine if any additional data could be
included which the Committee would find of benefit;

(i) to note the Bon Accord Care Business Plan Annual Report;

(i)  to agree the overall performance had contributed to a successful year for Bon
Accord Care and, noted amongst other achievements, that:

e Care Inspectorate grades continued to increase

¢ they had excellent performance regarding hospital discharges

e service delivery was now much more outcomes focused and person-led,
giving service users more choice and control over their support

Page 9



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

¢ there was greater emphasis on early intervention initiatives to keep service
users as independent as possible
e the financial savings target was exceeded, and the organisation had
achieved positive results against key performance indicators
¢ they had maintained the Gold Award for NHS Healthy Working Lives; and
(iv)  to note the critical role that Bon Accord Care had played in the City’s response to
Covid-19, by providing invaluable support to the most vulnerable people in
Aberdeen, and agree that the Committee Convener write on behalf of the Council
to the Chair of the Board of Bon Accord Care and the Managing Director of Bon
Accord Care thanking the organisation for all their efforts.

SPORT ABERDEEN ANNUAL REPORT - COM/20/216

7. With reference to article 5 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2019, the
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Commercial and Procurement which
presented the Sport Aberdeen annual review report covering financial year 2019/20 in
order to provide Committee with an overview of performance of service delivery.

Mr Robertson, Sport Aberdeen, was in attendance and answered questions from
Members.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the Sport Aberdeen ALEO Annual Report appended to the report
for the Council’s interests.

The Committee resolved:-

() to note that the Head of Commercial and Procurement was working with Sport
Aberdeen to address how best to ensure all relevant data was captured in the annual
report;

(i) in relation to the performance indicators contained on pages 95 to 99 of the report,
to note that Mr Robertson would provide further information to Members outwith the
meeting on projects where funding streams had come to an end which may have
affected performance against targets;

(i) in relation to the key performance indicators contained on pages 124 and 125 of the
report, and the decrease in participation in, for example, athletics, to note that Mr
Robertson would investigate with colleagues if there were specific reasons behind
the drop in participation and circulate this information to Members outwith the
meeting;

(iv) inrelation to page 127 of the report and the decline in figures from 2017 to 2019 for
school club links, to note that Mr Robertson would provide further information to
Members outwith the meeting;

(v) torequest that the Chief Officer — Data and Insights discuss with the ALEOs whether
the Council could provide any assistance in relation to data gathering;

Page 10



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

(vi) to note the Sport Aberdeen ALEO Annual Report;

(vii) to congratulate Sport Aberdeen on its receipt of the Queen’s Award for Voluntary
Service, the highest award a charity or voluntary group could receive in the UK;

(viii) to note that initial data indicated Sport Aberdeen had generated £7,497,467 of social
value in the last 12 months from activities taking place within Sport Aberdeen
venues;

(iX) to recognise the Strategy for an Active Aberdeen 2016 — 2026 had the vision of
making Aberdeen the most active city in Scotland and the aims and objectives of this
strategy were closely aligned to the Sport Aberdeen Business Plan;

(x) to note that Sport Aberdeen was fully committed to contributing to the city-wide
delivery of the Aberdeen Local Outcome Improvement Plan and to helping Aberdeen
City become a UNICEF Child Friendly City; and

(xi) to congratulate all those involved in delivering Sport Aberdeen’s Business Plan
objectives as detailed in the annual report.

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 - CUS/20/193

8. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Customer Services
presenting the Council Delivery Plan 2019-20 Annual Report which built on the summary
of progress captured in the Council Delivery Plan 2020/21, which had been presented to
Council on 3 March 2020. The report summarised the deliverables for 2019-20, and
outlined outcomes derived from the Council’s Commissioning approach and Intentions,
against which the Plan was a key element, representing a statement on how the Council
has delivered on its contribution to each.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the report and provide comments and observations on the
information contained in the annual report at Appendix A.

The Committee resolved:-

® to note the report and welcome the significant achievements and progress
highlighted throughout the annual review of the Council Delivery Plan 2019/20;

(i) to note that the annual review described the Council’s major contribution, through
the approved commissioning approach, to the delivery of the City’s Local Outcome
Improvement Plan; and

(i)  to agree that the Co-Leaders of the Council write to COSLA requesting an update
on progress they had made with the Scottish Government regarding the reform of
local government finance including business rates and the replacement of Council
Tax and for any reply to be discussed at the next meeting of the Strategic
Commissioning Committee.

Page 11



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

LOCALITY PLANS ANNUAL REPORTS - CUS/20/210

9. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Customer Services which
presented the third annual progress reports for each of the Community Planning
Partnership’s three Priority Localities, namely Torry; Woodside, Tillydrone and Seaton;
and Middlefield, Cummings Park, Northfield, Heathryfold and Mastrick.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee endorse each of the three annual progress reports for the Community
Planning Partnership’s Priority Localities prior to their submission to the Community
Planning Aberdeen Board on 3 December 2020 for final approval.

The Committee resolved:-

(1) to approve the recommendation;

(i) to congratulate all those involved in the various projects outlined in the reports for
the progress made and what had been achieved; and

(i) to instruct the Chief Officer — Early Intervention and Community Empowerment to
work with the communities involved to ensure that their projects and achievements
were promoted widely in the city to raise awareness of the good work being
undertaken and to help encourage additional participation in future years.

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2021/22 - CUS/20/214

10. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Customer Services which
set out proposed Aberdeen City Council commissioning intentions to provide direction to
the design and delivery of services and the allocation of resources for 2021/22.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee -

(@) approve, in principle, the commissioning intentions at Appendix A;

(b) note that, in the light of continuing uncertainty resulting from the ongoing pandemic,
that the commissioning intentions would continue to be kept under review and
would be represented with any necessary amendments to the Council budget
meeting in 2021; and

(© instruct the Chief Officer - Finance to review the commissioning intentions and
provide assurance that their implementation through the detailed commissioning
activity described at paragraph 3.11 was consistent with the Council’s Medium-
Term Financial Strategy.

The Committee resolved:-

(1) to approve the recommendations contained in the report; and

(i) to welcome the submission of annual commissioning intentions to the Committee
as a key element of the approved Commissioning Approach and implementation of
the Council’s Target Operating Model.

Page 12



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

ANNUAL PROCUREMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - COM/20/211

11. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Commercial and Procurement
which presented the Annual Procurement Report on procurement activity for 2019/20 in
line with the requirement under Section 18 of the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act
2014 for every Scottish Local Authority to publish an annual procurement report on its
regulated procurement activities.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee approve the content and publication of the Annual Procurement Report
2019/2020 (Appendix A) and Annex A to the report (Appendix B).

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendation.

COMMERCIAL AND PROCUREMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - CUS/20/175

12. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Customer Services which
outlined the status of key performance measures relating to the Commercial and
Procurement cluster.

The report recommended:-
that Committee note the report and provide comments and observations on the
performance information contained in the report appendix.

The Committee resolved:-
to note the report.

CLUSTER RISK REGISTER - COM/20/194

13.  With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 21 November 2019, the
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Commercial and Procurement which
presented the cluster risk register in accordance with the Committee Terms of Reference
to provide assurance on the Council’s system of risk management.

The report recommended:-
that Committee note the cluster risk registers and assurance maps as set out in the
appendices to the report.

The Committee resolved:-
to note the report.

Page 13



STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

12 November 2020

WORKPLANS AND BUSINESS CASES - REVENUE - COM/20/198

14. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Operating Officer which (1)
presented procurement workplans where revenue expenditure was included for the
Commissioning, Customer, Operations and Resources functions to Committee for review;
and (2) sought approval of each of the procurement business cases listed below, including
the total estimated revenue expenditure for each proposed contract, as contained at item

13.1 of the agenda.

The list of procurement business cases was as follows:-

Cluster Business Case

City Growth Festive Lighting

Early Intervention & Collection, Storage & Delivery of Household
Community Belongings

Empowerment

Early Intervention & Temporary Homeless Accommodation
Community Framework

Empowerment

Early Intervention & Refuge & Outreach Service for Women and
Community Children Experiencing Domestic Abuse
Empowerment

Early Intervention & Housing Support Services

Community

Empowerment

Digital & Technology

Datacentre Renewal

Corporate Landlord

PE & Fitness Equipment Inspection Contract

Corporate Landlord

Procurement of Surveyor Services

People & Organisational
Development

Employee Assistance Service

People & Organisational
Development

Employee Benefit Service

Operations & Protective
Services

Waste Collection Management System

The report recommended:-

that Committee —

(@) review the workplans as detailed in the Appendices;

(b)  approve the procurement business cases, including the total estimated expenditure

for the proposed contracts; and

Page 14




STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
12 November 2020

(c) approve the direct awards of contract where there are special circumstances
outlined in the respective procurement business cases which justify not issuing a
tender or calling off from a framework agreement.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the business cases.

In accordance with the decision taken under article 1 above, the following item was
considered with the press and public excluded.

WORKPLANS AND BUSINESS CASES - EXEMPT APPENDICES

15. The Committee had before it exempt appendices relating to the Workplans and
Business Cases Revenue report on the agenda (article 14 of this minute refers).

The Committee resolved:-
to note the exempt appendices.
- COUNCILLOR JENNIFER LAING, Convener

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



/T obed

| D

E

F

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING BUSINESS PLANNER
The Business Planner details the reports which have been instructed by the Committee as well as reports which the Functions expect to be submitting for the calendar year.

Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose Update Report Chief Officer D Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed,
of Report Author Reference or transfer, | removed or transferred
enter either D,
2 R,orT
3 11 February 2021
Aberdeen Sports Village |To present the Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 4.4
4 Annual Report for review. Procurement
Scotland Excel Annual To consider the annual Scotland Excel report Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 13
s Report Procurement
Population Needs To present the Population Needs Assessment every Martin Murchie| Data and Insights Customer 11
Assessment two years to understand the needs which public bodies
6 must address.
Performance Report - To present the performance report for the Commercial Louise Fox | Data and Insights Customer 5.1.3
Commercial and and Procurement cluster
, |Procurement
Procurement Business To seek approval of the estimated expenditure on the Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 3.1.1
Cases procurement business cases. Procurement
8
Climate Friendly Council Budget 03/03/20 - to instruct the Head of Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 3.1 D In order to ensure
Weighting for Contracts [Commercial and Procurement to introduce a climate Procurement Members have the full
friendly weighting for contracts the Council procures year of data available, the
and report back to the Strategic Commissioning report will now be
9 Committee on the outcomes achieved annually deferred to SCC in June
Community Benefit Council Budget 03/03/20 - to instruct the Head of Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 4.3 D In order to ensure
Clauses Commercial and Procurement to incorporate community Procurement Members have the full
benefit clauses into new contracts let during 2020/21 year of data available, the
that increase the contribution of the Council to the Local report will now be
Outcome Improvement Plan outcomes, and submit a deferred to SCC in June
year-end report to SCC
10
11 15 April 2021
Procurement Business To seek approval of the estimated expenditure on the Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning
Cases procurement business cases. Procurement
3.1.1
12
Procurement Workplans |To present the procurement workplans for 2021/2022 Craig Innes Commercial and | Commissioning 2.2
13 for review Procurement
Performance Report - To present the performance report for the Commercial Louise Fox | Data and Insights Customer 5.1.3
Commercial and and Procurement cluster
Procurement
14

T'9 Wa)| epuaby



gT abed

32

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose Update Report Chief Officer D Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed,
of Report Author Reference or transfer, | removed or transferred
enter either D,
| 2 | R,or T
15 16 June 2021
Procurement Business To seek approval of the estimated expenditure on the Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning 3.11
Cases procurement business cases. Procurement
16
Performance Report - To present the performance report for the Commercial Louise Fox | Data and Insights Customer 5.1.3
Commercial and and Procurement cluster
17 |Procurement
Annual Committee To present the annual effectiveness report for the Martin Murchie| Data and Insights
Effectiveness Report Committee. Customer GD 8.5
18
19 6 October 2021
Procurement Business To seek approval of the estimated expenditure on the Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning
20 |Cases procurement business cases. Procurement 311
Performance Report - To present the performance report for the Commercial Louise Fox | Data and Insights Customer 5.1.3
Commercial and and Procurement cluster
21 |Procurement
Council Delivery Plan To present the annual report 2020/21 in respect of Alex Paterson | Data and Insights Customer 4.3
Annual Report progress against the Council Delivery Plan
22
CPA Annual Outcome To present the annual report for the Local Outcome Allison Data and Insights Customer
Improvement Report Improvement Plan Swanson / 42
2020/21 Michelle )
23 Cochlan
Annual Procurement To present the annual performance report for review Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning GD 86
24 |Performance Report Procurement )
Locality Plans Annual To present the annual reports Neil Carnegie | Early Intervention Customer
Reports & Community 4.2
25 Empowerment
Aberdeen Performing Arts | To present the Aberdeen Performing Arts Annual Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning a4
26 |Annual Report Report for review. Procurement )
Bon Accord Care Annual |To present the Bon Accord Care Annual Report for Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning a4
27 |Report review. Procurement )
Sport Aberdeen Annual | To present the Sport Aberdeen Annual Report for Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning a4
28 |Report review. Procurement )
29 8 December 2021
Commissioning Risk To present the risk register. Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning GD 84
30 |Register Procurement )
Performance Report - To present the performance report for the Commercial Louise Fox | Data and Insights Customer 5.1.3
Commercial and and Procurement cluster
31 |Procurement
Procurement Business To seek approval of the estimated expenditure on the Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning
Cases procurement business cases. Procurement 3.11




6T obed

A B C D E F G H
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose Update Report Chief Officer D Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed,
of Report Author Reference or transfer, | removed or transferred
enter either D,
| 2 | R,orT
33 2022
Aberdeen Sports Village [To present the Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report [January / February 2022 Craig Innes | Commercial and | Commissioning a4
34 |Annual Report for review. Procurement )
Population Needs To present the Population Needs Assessment every Martin Murchie| Data and Insights Customer 11
Assessment two years to understand the needs which public bodies
35 must address.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 9.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Strategic Commissioning Committee
DATE 11 February 2021

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report
REPORT NUMBER COM/21/041

CHIEF OFFICER Craig Innes

REPORT AUTHOR Craig Innes

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 4.4

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report presents the Aberdeen Sports Village (ASV) annual review in order
to provide Committee with an overview of performance of service delivery by
ASV during the financial year 2019/2020 (15t August 2019 to 315t July 2020).

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee notes the Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report
appended to this report for the Council’s interests.

BACKGROUND

Aberdeen Sports Village Limited is a company limited by guarantee with
charitable status. Established in 2009, ASV is a joint venture with Aberdeen
City Council and the University of Aberdeen.

Although a joint venture, ASV is considered a Tier 1, Arm’s Length External
Organisation (“ALEO”) of the Council.

ASV was the first joint venture of its kind in the United Kingdom and remains
an example of best practice in the Sport and Physical Activity sector. Aberdeen
Sports Village is Scotland’s premier sports, fitness and lifestyle venue. It hosts
international sports event and offers multiple sports facilities, including an IAAF
accredited 400m athletics track and UKA indoor athletics facility, an Olympic
standard aquatics centre, a state of the art gym, exercise and lifestyle classes.

An annual review report on ASV’s business plan is appended to this report. It
includes a qualitative summary of outcomes, outputs and activities undertaken
by ASV, how these align against the priorities of the Local Outcome
Improvement Plan and progress made to-date. The annual report also details
how ASV’s activities have delivered against ACC strategies and action plan
priorities and provides details of user numbers, other income received and any
challenges faced.

Page 21



3.5

The revised performance template provides an overview of Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) and what has been achieved against these targets for the
financial year 2019/2020. It should be noted that ASV align to Further Education
academic year for financial reporting which is between 1St August through to
31st July each year. ASV was closed to customers between four and five of
those months during 2019/2020 due to the current pandemic.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The Council
currently provides £869,250 of annual revenue funding to ASV toward the
operation of the Sports Centre and Aquatics Centre. In addition, the Council
makes an annual contribution of £ 94,153 toward the delivery of the City’'s
performance swimming programme.

4.2  As per the terms of the Joint Venture Agreement, the University of Aberdeen
provides the same level of revenue funding to ASV toward the operation of the
Sports Centre and Aquatics Centre.

4.3 It should be noted that ASV’s financial year is different to the Council. It runs
from 15t August to the 315t July and is referred to as the “contract” year.

4.4  For 2019/2020 ASV had a trading income of £ 2,710,283 with sponsorships and
donations accounting for a further £ 743,965.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1  There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations of this
report.

6. MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Category Risk Low (L) Mitigation
Medium (M)
High (H)
Strategic N/A
Risk
Compliance | N/A
Operational | Poor service to L The annual report enables
customers. the Committee to review the
performance of the service
delivery by ASV.
Financial No risk arising from N/A Managed on a regular basis
this report as annual through the ALEO
budget is set by the Assurance Hub and the
Council as part of the Strategic ALEO meetings
budget setting with Council Chief Officers.
process.
Reputational | Poor performance by L The annual report enables
Sport Aberdeen could the Committee to review the

Page 22




impact on the performance of the service
Council’s reputation. delivery by ASV.

Environment | N/A
/ Climate

7. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN
\ Impact of Report
Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan
Prosperous Economy The annual report evidences contribution by ASV
Stretch Outcomes towards the LOIP theme of prosperous
economy.
Prosperous People Stretch | The annual report evidences contribution by ASV
Outcomes towards the LOIP theme of prosperous
people.
Prosperous Place Stretch | The annual report evidences contribution by ASV
Outcomes towards the LOIP theme of a prosperous
place.
8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS
Assessment Outcome
Impact Assessment Full impact assessment not required.

Data Protection Impact | Not required.
Assessment

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

10. APPENDICES

Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report

11. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS
Name Craig Innes

Title Chief Officer — Commercial & Procurement Services
Email address cinnes@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 23


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf
mailto:cinnes@aberdeencity.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

ALEO — ANNUAL REPORT

ORGANISATION: Aberdeen Sports Village

Important note — ASV’s financial year (referred to as the contract year in the Joint
Venture Agreement) starts on the 1°* August and ends on the 31°" July. The
information provided in this report is for contract year 2019 - 2020

The ASV Executive Team
REPORT COMPLETED BY:

20%™ January 2021

DATE:

SECTION 1 - Outcomes and outputs

Please provide a qualitative summary of outcomes, outputs, activities undertaken and progress made to date:

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic, the contract year 2019/20 was like no other before. At the end of
February 2020, ASV was a confident it would deliver on another successful year. By March it was apparent that
COVID-19 was spreading throughout the world and a national UK lockdown was possible.

On Friday 20" March at 6pm, ASV closed its doors to customers and would remain closed for five months. It
opened the indoor facilities on the 31t August 2020 when allowed to do so by the Scottish Government.

The result is that for 2019/2020, ASV is reporting on approximately 8 months of service delivery as it was closed
for the last 4 months of this year. This presents a number of challenges in providing this report, not least of all
comparing progress and trends from previous years but also the delivery of performance targets detailed in the
ASV strategy and supporting Business Plan. The majority of ASV targets, outcomes and outputs are based on 12
months of service delivery and operations. The Strategic Commissioning Committee will appreciate that targets
for 19/20 became unachievable but this report will highlight the successes and progress made in this year and
highlight ASV’s contribution to the Local Outcome Improvement Plan.

Full information on ASV outcomes and outputs for this period are included in further sections of the report.

During the first national lockdown, ASV maintained close engagement with sportscotland, UK Active and all key
National Governing Bodies. Information from these industry sources proved invaluable and helped inform ASV’s
own route map in terms of the return of sport.

In June 2020, identified performance athletes were allowed early access to training; specifically, Olympic,
Paralympic and Commonwealth 2022 pathway athletes. ASV was approached and was able to accommodate
training on the outdoor track for 3 athletes.

In July 2020, the ASV Aquatics Centre was identified as one of only 3 venues in Scotland to be a designated
performance training facility for indoor aquatics sports during this period. After extensive preparatory work, risk
assessments, medical procedures, etc, a group of Scottish swimmers and divers recommenced training at the
Aquatics Centre.

The return to club sport and recreational activity then followed a steady pattern throughout July and August,
beginning with outdoor sport. On the 315 August 2021, ASV was finally permitted to begin to open its indoor
facilities and services.

Page 25



Awards and Recognitions:

e AGCC Northern Star Business Award 2019: Making a Difference in Communities: Winner

e Visit Scotland Top 10 tourist attraction
e Visit Scotland 5 Star Rating
e Quest Stretch

e Aberdeen Sports Awards, sportscotland and National Governing Body Awards: numerous coach, athlete,

programme and community award winners and nominees

"We exist as a home for sport, creating inspirational opportunities for everyone to

realise their potential"
We do this by.......

ASV Values - Inspiring, Friendly, Positive, Dynamic

Performance indicators:

This is the quantitative progress you have made in meeting targets over the year. These were agreed in your

business plan / development plan and should be confirmed in your first quarterly meeting with your Lead Officer

PLEASE DO NOT CHANGE THE BASELINE OR TARGET FIGURES.

TARGET

ACHIEVED
INDICATOR
19-20 19-20
Providing an outstanding customer experience, always Measure Actual
Attaining an annual average score of 80% or above from the quarterly mystery visit 80% 77%
reports
Have less than 0.5 complaints per 1000 customers 0.5 0.4
Conduct annual customer surveys with an average satisfaction rating of 80% or 80% 30%
above
To have an annual net promoter score of 8 or above 8 9
| Having the highest standard of safety and quality in our facilities Measure Actual
Quest internal auditing programme - IV assessments 4 per year 2
Meet all HASAW targets detailed in the quarterly report 4 3
Asset Plan (Lifecycle reserve) Report to the ASV Board every six months 2 per year 1 report
Encouraging healthy and active lifestyle choices Measure Actual
Increase participation across all structured activity programmes by 5% 5% -20%
Increase general participation by 3% (linked to 1m visits per year) 3% -33%
Deliver two sustainable health initiatives in partnership 2 2
Improve the performance of the membership offer as identified in supporting KPI's
Total number of members 7,074 7,995
Yield (Average member income) £19.12 £19.92
Average length of member 12 19
Attrition 10% 5.20%
Joiner Rate 5% 5.53%
Total income £1,623,100 £1,273,995

Page 26




Loving sport and promoting as a force for good Measure Actual
Provide all Aberdeen primary school children with the opportunity to experience
ASV, creating an entire Aberdeen generation who have used our facilities (rolling 33% 0%
target and objective)
Encourage the use of ASV from hard to reach communities Baseline Base!me
established
Investing in the development of our people Measure Actual
Create a resource for training Academy and invest in the training and development
of our people 3% 1%
Develop the HR software system and provide solutions for time sheets and rota Partially
management achieved
Deliver a staff recognition event, recognising the contribution of our people 1 event 0
Establish and improve levels of staff engagement at ASV Action Plan  Achieved
Grow volunteer workforce by 2% (from 1650 hours) 2% 0%
Developing and nurturing athletes at all levels Measure Actual
. L - N System :
Install underwater cameras in partnership with sportscotland, British Swimming, installed Achieved
Scottish Swimming and cement ASV's and the city's place as a centre of excellence
Establish performance pathways across each focus sport 3 year Par.tlally
measure achieved
To have a partnership agreement with each focus sport NGB/association and/or Partnership Partially
agreement .
strong club s achieved
Attracting and retaining international, national and regional sporting events Measure Actual
Host 1 International event per annum 1 0
Host 8 National events per annum 8 9
Host 5 University events per annum 5 7
Delivering best value for our shareholders Measure Actual
Produce and develop investment statement for both shareholders (annual 1 1
statement, quarterly progress)
Grow student participation at ASV 2% -20%
Review the operating agreement with shareholders 1 review 0
Produce an options appraisal and supporting business case for a fourth phase in Report 0
ASV's development
Continually growing our business in a responsible and sustainable way Target Actual
Reduce our reliance on partner funding 33% 33%
Become more efficient as a company as identified in supporting KPI's
Recovery rate (Net income/expenditure) 70% 65%
Staff costs as a % of gross income 60% 63%
Staff costs as a % of gross expenditure 60% 62%
Subsidy per admission £2.10 £3.04
Produce a Environmental strategy for ASV Strategy Produced
Generate a surplus of 3% of net income for reinvestment in the business 3% -4%
Improve financial performance across identified KPI's
Income per marketing spend £24.22 £34.10
Marketing expenditure ratio 3% 2%
Spend per admission (net income/admission) £4.30 £9.47

Page 27



If you have not met the targets set please give any reasons or explanation for this:

The Coronavirus pandemic and the subsequent national lockdown. ASV operated for 8 months of contract year
2019/20.

Please provide a summary of particular successes or case studies:

1. New Community Project: the ASV Breakfast Club

ASV identified a need to increase physical activity opportunities for local school children, removing barriers such
as cost and access, by providing sports and fun games in collaboration with already established school-based free
breakfast clubs. Project outcomes included improved time management for children who are flagged as being
frequently late for school, reducing the stigma associated with free school meals, supporting readiness to learn
and to help to bridge the attainment gap within local areas of regeneration. The project was successful in
securing funding from the Community Sports Grants. Through participation in sport and providing a healthy
breakfast before their school day starts, the project aimed to develop personal and social skills, and increase
productivity at school, while developing new skills in sport. The project also led to volunteer opportunities, with
the long-term aim of ensuring sustainable delivery of the project once the funding has come to an end.

The target area for the project was the area local to ASV, and breakfast clubs were successfully delivered to St
Machar Academy and Seaton, Woodside and St. Peter’s Primary Schools. The sessions were available 1-3 times
per week before school, with an average attendance of between 12-25 children at each session. The children all
took part in a minimum of 30 minutes of various sports and physical activities, as well as being provided with a
breakfast prior to starting school for the day.

Testimonials

Teacher and classroom assistant from Seaton Primary:

“The children are gaining a lot of new skills and always ask every morning if the groups are on today.”
“They are very keen of both the coaches and their behaviour has improved massively since groups started.”
ASV Coaches:

“Breakfast clubs at Seaton have, in my opinion, made a huge difference in the children’s enthusiasm and behaviour
between now and when we first started taking the sessions after the summer holidays. The children are always
excited to take part in their sessions and as a result are eating healthy breakfasts so that they get to come along.
Their energy levels always appear to improve during and after the session when they leave to go to class.”

“Over the past 6 months, there has been a marked improvement in the children's maturity levels and their social
skills. The children now work together better in team and have far more respect for each other, helpers and coaches.
Due to this there is far more interest in breakfast clubs and sports, as other children want to join too. The children
come into breakfast clubs now with ideas for new games and are enthusiastic to engage with coaches.”

“With coaching at Woodside Primary, the children are in the very early years of school and it's great seeing them
develop their fitness from a young age. By learning from industry professionals, they are gaining a good mental
attitude towards the benefits of fitness and therefore growing up with the ethos that fitness and sports are good
and worthwhile activities to be a part of.”

Pupils from Seaton Primary (P3-P7):

“It’s the best. | love dodgeball. We have the best coaches!”

“It’s brilliant and it’s the best thing ever because | get to warm up in the morning and wake up.”

Page 28




“I like it because if mum and dad have work you can come along and have breakfast with friends and the coaches
are all really friendly here.”

“It’s fun in the morning to warm up with my friends.”

2. ASV Aquatics Academy

In 2018 ASV secured funding of £14,000 to deliver a project providing senior school pupils and young people not
in education, with free accredited training in Pool Lifeguarding, Life-saving and Swimming Teaching. In return,
the volunteers deliver swimming and life-saving lessons to P6 and P7 children who have not had the opportunity
to learn to swim.

The first intake of participants have all completed their courses, successfully gaining qualifications in pool
lifeguarding and swim teaching. Subsequently they then delivered free swimming lessons to local children.
Primary 6 and 7 children completed a free block of swimming lessons, receiving great feedback from parents: “It
was a good initiative; cannot thank enough, made such a difference”; “My boy loved the swimming lessons;
instructors were all lovely and pleasant, he really enjoyed it!”

The second intake of participants also successfully completed their lifeguarding qualifications in early 2020,
however were unable to complete their swim teaching qualification, and we were not able to deliver the free
swimming lessons prior to the lockdown.

3. Events

Between August 2019 and March 2020, ASV held 75 events, including 36 local, 22 regional, 8 University, 7
National and 2 International events or training camps.

e The Glasgow Warriors, the professional rugby union squad from Glasgow, visited ASV not long after the new
indoor pitch surface had been resurfaced, as part of their training camp in Aberdeen. The team utilised ASV
for 2 days ahead of the new season. Head Coach Dave Rennie: “Brilliant facilities, which is really important
to us. Good opportunity to get up to Aberdeen and immerse ourselves in the community.”

e Round Table Associations from across the UK descended on ASV to participate in their annual Sporting
Weekend. There were over 300 participants taking part in a number of sports, staying in Aberdeen, and
enjoying a weekend in the city.

e With over 200 athletes attending the event this year, the Scottish Schools Biathlon Championships has become
a key part of the event calendar at ASV - working with Scottish Saltires to help develop the event year on year.

e Aberdeen Diving Club hosted the penultimate event in the Scottish diving calendar in our diving pool. Not only
did Aberdeen Diving Club have a record number of athletes competing for the city, the event also attracted
record numbers of travelling competitors from around the UK.

e  Whilst enjoying a weekend in the city, the GB Underwater Hockey Team came to ASV for a 2-day training
camp for the first time.

e Akey part of the ASV swimming calendar, we now host the North District Swimming Championships 3 times
a year and it continues to grow; each weekend has over 500 participants, 70 officials and 300 spectators.

e QOver 400 people dressed in their best santa suit and participated in our annual ASV Santa Run in December,
supporting local charity CHAS.

ASV were honoured to host the inaugural BBC Festival of Sport, spanning 2 days in December 2019 prior to the
Sports Personality of the Year (SPOTY) Awards in Aberdeen. Day 1 was a targeted schools participation day, with
13 primary schools and 10 secondary schools attending, providing over 700 children with the opportunity to try a

Page 29




variety of different sports and activities. Day 2 was a community participation day, attracting over 500 visitors,
including a wide variety of programmed and drop-in sports, activities and ‘audience-with’ sessions. A true
partnership event, with all major Scottish sporting governing bodies delivering unique sessions for our community,
including a number of high profile sportsmen and women, and sports presenters. The Tumbelator made its way
from London to ASV, which gave people the chance to attempt to run Eliud Kipchoge’s world record marathon
pace. Denis Law and Dame Tanni Grey-Thompson were interviewed by SPOTY presenters Gabby Logan and Clare
Balding. Throughout the weekend, ASV had full coverage on the BBC's socials and web-site, gaining lots of interest
from the local and national media, culminating in the Festival being showcased on the BBC Red Button channel.

e  Will Bayley (Table tennis Paralympian and World number one): “I have loved coming here and seeing so
many young kids getting involved in sport; it’s been brilliant for me to see them having so much fun.”

e Caroline Walker (Netball Scotland): “What we are doing is reaching kids who haven’t had the chance to
participate in netball and give them a chance to get involved in our pathway.”

e P7teacher from Ferryhill Primary: “They have all loved the day, it has been a great experience and really
engaging and enjoyable for all. It is good for the children to see what a range of opportunities they all have
in participating in sport.”

Due to the closure of facilities after 20 March 2020, there were in excess of 50 events that had to be cancelled,
including some high profile events including National Championships and training camps. The biggest
disappointment for ASV and the city was the postponement and subsequent cancellation of the European Juniors
Swimming Championships, which were scheduled to take place in July 2020.

Please provide a summary of any problems or issues that have required attention or action:

The COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent national lockdown.

ACC Strategies and Action Plan Priorities:

Please provide a summary of how your activities have delivered against ACC strategies and action plan priorities.

See LOIP information included in next section of annual report.

Page 30




Local Priorities:

Please highlight where your outcomes, outputs or activities align against the priorities of the Local Outcome
Improvement Plan. https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-

plan-2016-26/

LOCAL OUTCOME IMPROVEMENT PLAN THEMES

1. People (Children and Young People)

Directly linked to targets relating to increasing physical, mental, emotional health and wellbeing, ASV delivers a
suite of activities, specifically tailored for children and young people, including:

e Activities for pre-school children: to allow very young children to play and learn; with 8 sporting activity
sessions and 72 aquatics lessons each week specifically for early learners

e Activities and sports for school-age children: introducing children and young people to healthy and fun
regular activity; working with key partner clubs to offer a seamless pathway to a club environment; with 17
sporting activity sessions and 100 aquatics lessons each week specifically for children

e Sports and supervised gym sessions for teenagers: providing an opportunity to socialise with peers whilst
enjoying being active; with over 20 sessions each week specifically for young people

e A holiday sports camp programme for all ages and abilities: historically the multi-activity camps have always
been popular, but the camps will be refreshed and revamped following the period of lockdown; the aim will
be to deliver many more sports-specific camps, in partnership with clubs and governing bodies, and camps
which offer more flexible hours for working families

e Children’s aquatics programme: already well established in the city, there were 1,600 children and adults
enrolled in the whole aquatics programme, with 1,150 children in the learn to swim programme

In relation to improving post-school learning and employment opportunities, ASV is committed to offering
opportunities for vocational learning and work experience, with a view to supporting a well trained and prepared
future workforce in the city.

e With a high proportion of the ASV workforce under the age of 25, with many still in further or higher
education, ASV provides mentoring support, and on-going training to its young people

e ASV provides part-time and flexible employment opportunities for University and College students, and
invaluable first steps and experience in the industry to senior school pupils

e The partnership with DYW North East (Developing the Young Workforce) has been positive for our youngest
employees, and we fully aim to work with the group in the future year to facilitate modern apprenticeships
and professional development

e ASV has supported a number of staff to become qualified in their field to deliver high quality, governing body
recognised training courses; the short-term aim is to expand its delivery in relation to such courses, with a
view to building a nationally recognised Training Academy, which will continually provide education and
training

e Secured funding for delivery of training to young people free of charge to enhance their employment
potential will continue to be pursued and delivered

2. People (Adults)

The key areas where ASV will continue to evidence support in this area include building resilience within
communities and supporting families, and increasing healthy life expectancies.

e Through enhanced customer engagement, ASV provides flexible and affordable opportunities for adults to
participate in a variety of activities, via the Lifestyle Membership, or Lifestyle Day Pass
o 572,000 visits to ASV (Augl9 — Mar20)
o On average there were 7,995 individuals with membership at ASV, an increase of 8%

Page 31



https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/

e For senior members (over 60s) the Evergreens Lifestyle Membership lies at the core of the programme; a
heavily discounted membership giving access to over 30 specialised sessions of sport and physical activity
each week

o Evergreens membership increased this year by 10%, with 855 Evergreens members
o 30 specialised sessions of sport and physical activity each week for Evergreens
o 23,842 Evergreens participations (Augl19-Mar20)

e ASV will continue to support the integration and health and wellbeing of our local population, working to

deliver in partnership with the relevant bodies
o 1,544 health referral participations (Aug19-Mar20)
o 2 Cardiac Rehabilitation and 2 Stable & Able classes each week in conjunction with the NHS

3. Place

Contributing to the city, and enhancing the positive environment in which people can live, work, study and visit,
is very important to ASV.

e As a community sports facility, we aim to continue to evolve our ASV ‘family’ and make the facility as
welcoming as possible for all people.

e We will continue to support our very local communities, by utilising funding opportunities and volunteers to
deliver activities, food and education, through community projects (previous projects include breakfast
clubs, family projects and sheltered housing projects within the Seaton area)

e We are committed to reducing our carbon emissions

e We support our ASV Team with their own voluntary community-based projects, such as collecting presents
or raising money for local charities, or collecting food for local distribution; ASV will encourage and champion
such individual and team efforts in light of current and on-going challenges

4. Economy

The past year has been exceptionally challenging to the sport and leisure industry, but ASV continued to operate
efficiently and effectively, where permitted within the guidelines, and contributed to the city’s economy in a
variety of ways, including:

e Development of the skilled workforce: With the majority of ASV’s workforce being young people under the
age of 25, ASV invests in significant in-house training each year. Through on-going Continued Professional
Development and investment in professional members of the team, ASV offers a comprehensive suite of
vocational training courses.

o Asof March 2020, ASV employed 243 individuals, with over half the workforce being young
people under 25 years of age

o Up to 3% of staff costs were invested into training and development; with numerous in-house
training opportunities for the ASV team

o ASV Training Academy: 230 people gained qualifications, from 19 accredited courses

o ASV supported 3 modern apprenticeships

e Investment in infrastructure: ASV has a substantial life-cycle reserve of £3.4 million which will be reinvested
in ASV facilities over the 10 year investment programme. In the financial year 2019-2020, ASV invested in
the following:

£288,000 invested in operational facility maintenance

£64,000 investment in the technology and office refurbishment
£86,000 investment in new state of the art gym

£38,000 investment in swimming pool maintenance

O O O O

Page 32




refer to previous section for summary of events held.

e  Contributing to the city’s tourism: Ordinarily ASV would host up to 200 events each year, including up to 20
national or international events, which have been evidenced to bring significant income to the city. Please

Education:

Please provide further information in respect to any education programmes delivered.

Please refer to previous section above

Employment

Please provide information about your volunteers, if you have any:

e What roles do your volunteers undertake within the organisation?
e Training and Policy in action?
e Example of volunteer success stories such as transition to employment?

e Each week on average there were over 50 hours of volunteer coaching
officials, committees, etc.

enhance their skills

ASV volunteers help greatly in the delivery of Sports Camps, Evergreens and kids programmes.
e ASV has 20 regular volunteers, with many more temporary and casual volunteers

e The volunteers who support the performance programmes and events at ASV are invaluable; coaches,

e ASV supports a volunteer package, whereby regular volunteers are offered training courses to further

SECTION 2 - Users, Participants and Investment

Please complete this section to report on the number of participants from each of the identified areas who have

participated during the year.

Participants | Target | Total 19-20
Number of participatory opportunities targeted for priority groups
Older People (65+) *ASV records 60+ customers through evergreens programme 25,386

Disability (mental health physical, sensory (e.g. BSL users) and carers of disabled people)

We provide fully
inclusive
programmes

Ethnic minority communities including Gypsy/ Travellers

This data is not collected nor recorded

Sexual orientation (LGBTQ)

This data is not collected nor recorded

Residents of regeneration areas within Aberdeen City

% Total
SIMD Area Members Members

1 Torry 59 1%
2 Middlefield, Mastrick, Northfield, Sheddocksley 285 3%
3 Seaton 1042 11%
4 Tillydrone 230 3%
5 Woodside 255 3%
6 George Street 435 5%

Other (please specify)

Page 33




Please complete this section to report on visitor numbers in relation to your programming.

Customer participation/user Target Total 19-20
Total participations 571,641
User number from Aberdeen City 84%

User number from the wider region or further 16%

% of customers rating experience as ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ 80%

We are keen to evidence the added economic value and social return of investment, as such we request that you

please complete the table below.

Income 2019-20 Total £
Value of Grant(s) from Aberdeen City Council
ASV — Sports Centre and Aquatics Centre £869,250
ASV — Performance Swimming £94,153
Grant funding - University of Aberdeen £869,250
Sponsorship & Donations £743,965
Trading income £2,710,283
Other (please specify)

Total add income £5,286,901

Section 3 — Support Material

supply details on your support material below

have the creators consent and accreditation is provided where necessary.

We recommend you provide up to five items of support material to help demonstrate the quality and impact of
your activity. This may include; case studies, photographs, videos, web links, publications, marketing material,
reports, participant testimonials and feedback. If emailing please keep all support material to under 5mb. Please

By submitting this you are providing permission for each item to be used for publication. You should ensure you

Support Material 1: Aberdeen Sports Village web-site: New Investment

https://www.aberdeensportsvillage.com/

Support Material 2: Link to ASV customer video:
https://vimeo.com/315198284

Password: asv2018

Support Material 3: BBC Festival of Sport 2019 video:

Marketing\Events 19-20\SPOTY\Videos\FESTIVAL-OF-SPORT.mp4

Support Material 4:

Support Material 5:

Section 4- Declaration on use of information

Page 34



https://www.aberdeensportsvillage.com/
https://vimeo.com/315198284
file:///C:/Users/cinnes/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Marketing/Events%2019-20/SPOTY/Videos/FESTIVAL-OF-SPORT.mp4

Aberdeen City Council collects and maintains the data on this form about your organisation for the purpose of
contacting you in relation to the funding, monitoring purposes and to collate information for statistical and audit
purposes. We will retain Personal Data for six years in accordance with the organisation’s Corporate Records
Retention and Disposal Schedule and for the purpose of administering, processing and assessing your report.

For the purposes of processing this information Aberdeen City Council is the Data Controller. The Information
Commissioner Office is the UK’s regulator of data protection law (www.ico.org.uk). More information about all of

the rights you have is available on our website at: https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/your-data.

Whenever the Council processes personal data we need to make sure we have a basis for doing so. We understand
our basis in GDPR to be Article 6(1)(e) as we consider that it is in our public task to collect this information under our
powers set down in the Local Government and Planning (Scotland) Act, 1982 section 14, as amended by section 128
of the Local Government etc. (Scotland) Act, 1994. The act provides for us doing or contributing towards the
expenses of providing or doing, anything necessary or expedient for the purpose of ensuring that there are facilities
available for recreational, sporting, cultural or social activities as we consider appropriate.

To confirm that all information included in this report is accurate and that you have read and followed the terms
and conditions, please sign and date below. If submitting by email an electronic signature or the typed name of
the appropriate contact should be inserted.

Name: Duncan F Sinclair

Date: January 2021

Page 35


http://www.ico.org.uk/
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/your-data

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda Item 9.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Strategic Commissioning Committee
DATE 11 February 2021

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Scotland Excel Annual Report 19-20
REPORT NUMBER COM/21/033

CHIEF OFFICER Craig Innes

REPORT AUTHOR Melanie Mackenzie

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 1.3

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the Scotland Excel Annual Report 19-20 in accordance with
committee terms of reference, to provide assurance on value achieved through
the membership agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee notes the Scotland Excel Annual Report 19-20 as set out
in Appendix A.

BACKGROUND

Scotland Excel is the Centre of Procurement Expertise for the local government
sector in Scotland. Scotland Excel was established in 2008, and is a leading
non-profit shared service funded by the 32 Scottish Local Authorities.

The Scotland Excel Annual Report 19-20 appended to this report provides
details of the value derived from membership of Scotland Excel for Aberdeen
City Council, and provides updates as detailed below:

Scotland Excel Overview

Aberdeen City Council at Q4 19-20
Scotland Excel Value Proposition
Local Suppliers

Community Benefits

Living Wage and Fair Work Practices
Covid-19 Support

Scotland Excel Academy (People Development)
Future Funding

Value of Membership

What Next

Framework Participation and Utilisation

Page 37



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

5.1

During the reporting period the Strategic Procurement Manager within the
Commercial and Procurement Shared Service has met with the Scotland Excel
Account Manager fortnightly, to review contract spend, participation and identify
areas for improvement to ensure that Aberdeen City Council maximises the
membership value.

The Director of Scotland Excel is a member of the shared Strategic
Procurement Board chaired by the Council’s Chief Executive. The board meets
on a six weekly basis. The Director provides support and awareness of activity
and initiatives across all other local authorities. The performance of Scotland
Excel is also monitored through this Board.

Through the partnership approach adopted, a key focus has been identified as
local supplier participation on Scotland Excel Frameworks. Further work is
planned within 21-22 with both Scotland Excel and the Supplier Development
Programme to further stimulate engagement with the local supply base.

At the end of Q4 19/20 Aberdeen City Council

e Had 29 unique local suppliers on 32 framework agreements

e £26.5M spend was reported with local suppliers in 19/20

e ACC spend with local framework suppliers was £4.5M, equating to 17%
framework spend

The Commercial & Procurement Service will continue to work in partnership
with Scotland Excel to ensure that the maximum value from membership is
derived and to ensure achievement of financial, social, economic and
environmental benefits.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications from the recommendations of this
report. The savings figures listed within the Scotland Excel Annual Report 19-
20 are not intended to represent cashable savings but are an estimate of the
benefits. Any opportunity for cashable savings will be verified by the
Commercial and Procurement Shared Service/relevant service areas at the
outset of any new framework agreement.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations of this
report.

MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Category Risk Low (L Mitigation

Medium (M)
High (H)

Strategic Risk The ability of L Continuing focus on added

Scotland Excel Core Value delivered for all
to deliver against member councils.

Page 38




their objectives On-going development of
in relation to projects offering new services
Financial and increasing benefits to
Savings/Delivery stakeholders.
of Community .
Benefits & Identlflca_tl_on of new
Sustainable opportunities to provide
Procurement on additional chargeable
behalf of the services based on customer
Shared Service demand.
Partner Ongoing robust business
Authorities model is in place for all new
services (cost to serve,
funding/uptake forecasts).
Compliance N/A N/A N/A
Operational N/A N/A N/A
Financial Assisting the M Ongoing robust market
council to meet testing in relation to existing
budget savings FWA's and also of all new
targets shared service propositions.
Reputational Lack of M Regular engagement with
awareness of Chief Execs, Finance
Scotland Excel Directors, Corporate
Services/Value Procurement Leads and
Elected Members
demonstrating the value
added by Scotland Excel
SXL represented at Strategic
Procurement Board to
provide regular updates at
Senior Management level
and demonstrate value on a
regular basis.
Environment/Climate N/A N/A N/A

7.

OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

cycle approach.

The ability to have an overview of contract
activity/expenditure is aligned to Core Outcomes of
the LOIP and the whole systems commissioning

Page 39



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Stretch Outcomes Community Benefits requirements are incorporated
(Prosperous into all Scotland Excel Framework agreements,
Economy/People/Place) aligned to national outcomes.
Regional and City Scotland Excel Activity will not be conducted with
Strategies Regional or City Strategies in mind, however the

Council may make use of available frameworks in
procuring to support strategies (where appropriate).

UK and Scottish All Scotland Excel activity gives due consideration to
Legislative and Policy UK and Scottish Legislative and Policy Programmes.
Programmes
8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS
Assessment Outcome

Equality & Human Rights | Full EHRIA not required
Impact Assessment

Data Protection Impact | Not required
Assessment

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

10. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Scotland Excel Annual Report 2019-2020

11. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name Melanie Mackenzie

Title Strategic Procurement Manager
Email Address MeMackenzie @aberdeencity.gov.uk
Tel 01467 538293

Page 40



2

EXCEL

Five (ompclhny_reasons-rsg il
use our New Build Residential -
Construction Framepag e ﬁ'
T el
) | 4




Contents

Introduction

1.

Scotland Excel Overview

2. Aberdeen City Council at Q4 19-20

3.

8.

9.

Scotland Excel Value Proposition

3.1 Savings

3.2 Rebates

3.3 New Opportunities 2020/21
3.4 Participation

3.5 Cost Avoidance

Local Suppliers

4.1 Local Suppliers on Scotland Excel Frameworks
4.2 Supplier Development

Community Benefits

Living Wage and Fair Work Practices

Support during Covid-19

Scotland Excel Academy

Future Funding of Scotland Excel

10. Value of Membership

11. What Next

Appendix A Framework Participation and Utilisation

Page 2 of 14

Page 42



Introduction

Scotland Excel is the Centre of Procurement Expertise for the local government sector. Established in
2008, we are a leading non-profit shared service funded by Scotland’s 32 local authorities.

At Scotland Excel, we are leaders of change. Over the past eleven years, we have helped to raise the
profile of procurement in local authorities by championing its potential to shape markets, support policy
priorities and, ultimately, ensure the sustainable delivery of the services that every community needs.

Our services are designed to help councils meet the twin challenges of reducing budgets at a time of
growing demand. Collaborative procurement increases efficiency and ensures money is saved to
protect front line services. And by working together through Scotland Excel, councils can realise a host
of social, economic and environmental benefits from their spend.

This report is designed to provide a detailed view on the value derived from membership of Scotland
Excel by your council. Value manifests itself in many forms and this report provides a range of
measures relevant to your organisation.

The report starts with an infographic summarising several key national value measures across the 32
councils. It then moves on to provide a number of specific financial value indicators for your council.
Recognising that value is not purely financial, the report provides updates on areas such as community
benefit, local spend and support for local economies. The Scotland Excel Academy provides a range of
people development services to your organisation and your participation in this is provided. You will
also find a high-level update on a number of other important areas that we hope demonstrate the value
Scotland Excel provides to your council.

Chief Executive
Scotland Excel

Page 3 of 14

Page 43



1. Scotland Excel Overview

The following Infographic provides an overview of services provided to all Scottish Local Authorities for
the period 1% April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

H SCOTLAND
Scotland Excel Overview EXCELS}

Latest information for customers and suppliers - https://scotlandexcelcovid19-newsroom.prgloo.com/
Frameworks Value of our Scotland Excel has closed its
£2 b n office and all staff are working
frameworks from home.
i
G i Scotland Excel is fully equipped

to support agile working and
* 7 1 continues to deliver for our
customers.
Number of live
@ c14.9Mm |

Estimated savings delivered
against agreed spend levels

Suppliers

1107'\9 N 70% 659\,@ BN 79%
Number of suppliers % SMEs over all frameworks Number of Scottish % of Scottish suppliers
over all frameworks suppliers over all frameworks that are SMEs
Learning & Development | Community Benefits Real Living Wage

149 @ ‘ 67,184
Qualifications | Total 821 275 @) ® hours DN £1.46m
‘:I Awaeded by The 192 q 5879 o < £560k
m Academy Apr — g 21 n s v

83%

222 31 Sept SR
2 19
Councils Engaged Charity/com: i
R 2 : y/community Pay the Real
in The Academy Jobs Apprentices  Work experience initiatives Living Wage

Framework information at Q4 2019/20; estimated savings figure does not include social care service frameworks| Community Benefits: Total = Apr 2013to Sept 19 | Living Wage isof the 926 suppliers appointed since formal consideration of living wage in tenders

Scotland Excel's methodology for calculating and recording savings is in line with the Best Practice
Indicators (BPI’s) for Public Procurement Guidance and was approved by the Joint Committee.

Page 4 of 14

Page 44



2. Aberdeen City Council at Q4 2019-20

The following infographic provides an overview of services provided to Aberdeen City Council for the
period 1% April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

For the purpose of clarity, it's important to note that whilst Aberdeen City Council has committed to
participate in 69 out of 71 frameworks (97%), actual spend has only been reported against 48
frameworks (68%) which has impacted on the resulting savings. Further details of this can be found in
Section 3.4.

In addition, the savings figures listed below are not intended to represent cashable/bankable customer
savings, but an estimate of the benefits that may be accrued through use of the contract.
Responsibility for calculating a precise measure of cash savings achieved lies with each individual
local authority.

Aberdeen City Council SCOEI)-(ACEE

Frameworks

O :26.6m W 677k

hittpes: tland leawid19-
Spend in the last 12 months  Estimated savings in the last 12 months rtpe:/ fscotlandencel o

newsroom.prgloc.com,

2 9 Local suppliers on m £2 6 5 M Spend with local suppliers
live framewaorks n through our framewaorks
O )

L 71 . - 37;}0

& Py rtlr:upatmg in

frarmewaorks Available framewarks participation

Community Benefits

The Scotland Exce

Acadermy -
, hittps:/facademy.scatland- -' ‘- £1 4 Sk E&H&
excel.org. k) Sl
- k- L ABERDEEN

Learning and Development CITY COURCIL
opportunities available Eharlt'-.f.r'mmmunlw initiatives

“Prarewcrk nforeetonet 0% 20060 30 memmated peenge figues dean ret i desecisl caes saneics framaeweor ke comeon Hy Bared e fer dpe 19— Sap 19

3. Scotland Excel Value Proposition

3.1 Savings

As outlined in the Infographic above, Aberdeen City Council had a spend of £26, 632,937 on Scotland
Excel frameworks over the last 12 months, with estimated savings of £676,865 based upon spend
across 48 frameworks (68%).

Page 5 of 14

Page 45



The spend information reported above is actual spend on Scotland Excel contracts, based on invoice
date. The percentage saving that is applied is the figure that is agreed at the time of contract award.

3.2 Rebates

At the time of writing this report, 19/20 rebates are currently being calculated and are due to be shared
with councils shortly. The estimated rebates due for 18/19 was £48,702, including rebates for
Education Materials, Electrical Materials, Plumbing and Heating Materials.

3.3 New Opportunities 2020/21

Scotland Excel updated the Contract Delivery Plan for 2020/21 taking in to account any potential
impact of Covid-19. The following table highlights new opportunities for Aberdeen City Council for
contracts that went live since April 2020.

Annual Annual
Start Date Forecast % Saving Forecast
Spend Saving

New /

Contract
Renewal

Avg 5% saving. Aberdeen
City will join the framework

Fruit and Veg New 15t Apr 20 £175,000 . TBC
once their own contract
expires 26/06/21
*National Flexible Framework
N 1st Apr 20 Aberd Cit t Participati
for Care and Support Services ew StApr eraeen Lty not Farticipating
*Secure Care Services Renewal 1st Apr 20 £481,769 N/A £0
Electrical Materials Renewal 15t Apr 20 £500,000 1.20% £5,985
Waste Disposal Equipment Renewal 1t Apr 20 £208,089 1% £2,081
Groceries & Provisions Renewal 15t May 20 £787,335 2.80% £22,124
()
Demolition and Deconstruction Renewal 1st Aug 20 £250,000 D FEMES Ol v 2255 elony TBC
NFDC Rates
Catering Sundries Renewal 1st Aug 20 £134,134 Avg 4.88% £6,546

*Scotland Excel do not target savings on the social care service frameworks

3.4 Participation

At end of Q4 19/20, Aberdeen City Council confirmed participation in 69 out of the 71 frameworks
(97%), spend to date has been reported on 48 frameworks (68%). Details of the frameworks the
council is not participating in and frameworks with no spend can be found in Appendix A.

The following table highlights the council’s participation and utilisation of the frameworks over the last 5
years:

Year (at Q4) AS:irI‘:\:;fi:y Paf::)i:it;::iton Participation % Uctci)l?st;:i‘;tn Utilisation %
2015/16 46 42 91% 39 85%
2016/17 51 47 92% 42 82%
2017/18 59 53 90% 44 75%
2018/19 65 60 92% 48 74%
2019/20 71 69 97% 48 68%

Note: Utilisation includes any framework with council spend over the life of the framework.

Page 6 of 14

Page 46



The Scotland Excel Account Manager meets every 2 weeks with the CPSS Strategic Procurement
Manager to review contract spend and participation and identify areas for improvement to ensure the
council maximises the benefits of the frameworks. Detailed below are some of the opportunities that
are being progressed:

e Asbestos

e Boiler Maintenance

e Roadstone

e New Build Residential

3.5 Cost Avoidance

The Scottish Government estimate that each public procurement exercise costs on average £12,000 to
complete. Therefore, through participation in Scotland Excel frameworks, cost avoidance can be
achieved.

Cost avoidance* for the last 5 years for Aberdeen City Council is outlined below. These figures
represent the average cost avoided in the financial year through participation in SXL frameworks
instead of running individual tendering exercises.

Financial Year 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 Total

Cost Avoidance Per Council £91,109 £169,075 £228,491 £250,038 £157,574 | £896,287

*Cost Avoidance calculation - the number of new and renewed SXL frameworks that went live in the financial year is
multiplied by the average number of councils participating in those frameworks then multiplied by £12,000. This sectoral figure
is then allocated evenly across the 32 local authorities.

At Scotland Excel we use our insight and experience to shape policy and meet the challenges of future
public service delivery by providing innovative and transformative solutions. The Scottish
Government’s average £12,000 to complete a procurement exercise does not accurately reflect the
development costs of some of our more strategic frameworks particularly in the areas of Social Care
and Construction. These can be extremely complex requiring extensive stakeholder and supplier
engagement, in-depth market research, technical input, documentation, contract management etc.
resulting in a longer process that requires additional procurement and technical resource.

4. Local Suppliers

4.1 Local Suppliers on Scotland Excel Frameworks
Extract from CPSS Joint Procurement Strategy 2017 — 2022

‘Local businesses and third sector contractors play a valuable role in supporting the work of the local
authorities. The strategy aims to remove the barriers often faced by smaller organisations with limited
resources for bidding for work tendered by the Councils. *

Scotland Excel recognises the importance of local business. Where possible, all frameworks are
structured to remove barriers that might prevent local SMEs from bidding for Scotland Excel
frameworks. Suppliers can opt to select which council areas they are able to service providing
opportunities for SMEs to grow their business. Councils are encouraged to raise awareness of new
framework opportunities and encourage local suppliers to respond.

Page 7 of 14

Page 47



At the end of Q4 19/20 Aberdeen City Council:

Had 29 unique local suppliers on 32 Scotland Excel frameworks

£26.5m spend was reported with the local suppliers in 19/20

Aberdeen City Council spend with the local suppliers was £4.5m which accounts for 17% of the
spend

The table below shows the current suppliers that are based in Aberdeen City Council area and have
been successfully awarded on to Scotland Excel frameworks:

SCOTLAND &

Local Suppliers/Providers - Spend By Supplier/Provider - Year To Dateasat: 31 March 2020 EXCEL 2

Actual Spend by Quarter by SME Status

Member Name Supplier/Provider Location by Postcode

SME Stats | 20197202001 | 2019, 201972020 03 2019/2020 04 Total ) ) T Dyce
Large 303332 3527617 DAT454  £14113446 Aberdeen City Coundil A ~ \@g @
Medium £2026189 2068462 £1,8314305 £7.085,289
3 5 79, £ £321 I'd Y 4
;?:m {ué;:; ! 218;1;' 1427 e [”i?:;: Wote: This report shows spend by member organisations with = Old ggyeracen
Total £7.325.802  £7414650 £547586B  £6310,597 £26,526.917 \ suppliers/providers bosed within your local Guthority area. ‘f @ g’n
- |
Suppliers/Providers All Councils Actual Spend Council Actual Spend Council % Spend I\ f
o\* .
29 £27M £5M 17.1% A .
b> 8ing & 2020 TomTam © 3020 Hsﬁgﬁt‘&f—’iﬁf‘mm Carporatian Ters.
e pr———— [PyryreprE——— =
=r/Provider Name SHE Statuz | Towm Postode  SupghisnProvider Al Councils Council Acusl  Councifz3egs 1Moo Suppliers by SME Status
Stz ActzlSpsnd  Spend All Wember
Crganizziions
. Spand Micro &.45%
Aberdeen Associzton OF Sodial Senvices (rading AsVsa)  Large Aberdezn AETT 5V Trading 826163 125% Medium 35.43%
Instock Dizposables Ltd Medium  Aberdesn ABZ1 OGL Trading 200775 117
William Wilson Ltd Largs Aberdesn AB12308 Trading 202128 138% Large
Camphill Rudaif Steinar Schools Limitad Largs Aberdesn AB15 gEP Trading 22.58%
Dingbro Ltd Largs Aberdesn AB1E 640 Trading 4857 23%
Light And Enargy Di Sma Abardesn AB1235T Trading
Archway Res Medium  Aberdesn ABZ5 23H Trading £1591750
Gordon Mc Sma Aberdesn AB11 EFU Trading £480 627
Langstana Fress L Smz Aberdesn AB11 50Y Trading £974613 £200.895
Balgownie Limited Medium  Aberdesn ABT11HA Trading £574563 £B4075
Nu-Style Products Ltd Sma Aberdesn 423 BEW Trading £524445 £114634
W. Enterprises (Abdn) Lid Sma Aberdesn AB15 BOR. Trading £384274 £56.203
The Compest Bag Company Scotiand Ltd Sma Abardesn AB15 47N Trading £140415 Small 26.48%
Kenway Tyres Lrd Medium Aberdesn ABzZ4 2UU Trading £1287T7
Early Bird Catering Ld Micro Aberdesn ABZ2 BNT Trading £138 £744  cad "
Total £26526,917 £4526930 17.0%

Examples of suppliers that are based in Aberdeen on Scotland Excel frameworks:

Instock Disposables Ltd, a medium sized company, has been successfully awarded on to 3
frameworks — Janitorial, Catering Sundries and Commercial Catering Equipment. £4.2m spend
reported in 19-20 of which £500k is attributed to Aberdeen City Council. The remaining spend
comes from 24 other local authorities

William Wilson has been a Scotland Excel supplier for a number of years providing plumbing
materials to 16 councils through the framework with a total value of £4.2m

Langstane Press Ltd is a supplier on the Education and Office Furniture framework and
received £974,613 spend from 23 councils in 19/20

Early Bird Catering, a micro business based in Aberdeen was successfully awarded on to 3
frameworks - Water Coolers, Hot Beverages and Vending

No of Local Total Spend Aberdeen City %Aberdeen City
Year (at Q4) . with Local Spend with Local Spend with Local
Suppliers . . :
Suppliers Suppliers Suppliers
2015/16 17 £16,982,244 £2,363,925 13.9%
2016/17 20 £25,422,979 £4,090,352 16.1%
2017/18 26 £26,327,675 £5,143,111 19.5%
Page 8 of 14

Page 48



2018/19 30 £29,848,546 £4,624,270 15.5%
2019/20 29 £26,526,917 £4,526,930 17.1%

4.2 Supplier Development

‘The CPSS has provided and will continue to provide support to local organisations, building their
capacity to respond to formal procurements through local roadshows, Meet the Buyer and other
training events *

Scotland Excel works in partnership with Supplier Development Programme and delivers awareness
sessions at regular training events for suppliers. In addition to attending local events Scotland Excel
also hold national events to raise awareness of the procurement opportunities within the public sector
and encourage local suppliers to respond to tender opportunities. Aberdeen City Council have
regularly attended the national events.

Scotland Excel attended the Meet the Buyer North event on 2" September 20. Due to the restrictions
of COVID-19, this event was a virtual event.

5. Community Benefits

Scotland Excel continually strives to be innovative in its approach to Community Benefits. We
recognise that Community Benefits have a considerable social, environmental and economic impact
within local communities and we continue to encourage and grow awareness in this regard.

The following Community Benefits have been delivered to Aberdeen City Council through the Scotland
Excel frameworks:

R
Apbpre a) Dlovee ace o O aYa) e, perie a Bene

2016/17 1 7 2030 1676 £12,527
2017/18 0.5 5.3 0.3 177 £3,475
2018/19 0.15 6.5 4.2 £13,301
2019/20 (Apr-Sep) 14.7 0.8 27 £14,541

For example, for the period Apr-Sep 2019/20 this includes:

e £500 donation from Instock to support a pilot Pop Up Club for those with mental health issues /
loneliness

e Local branch of Edmundsons Electrical provided £1,500 worth of tools for council apprentices

e 8 new employees at Camphill Rudolf Steiner Schools Ltd and 1 new employee to Gordon
McWilliams (Aberdeen) Ltd

Page 9 of 14

Page 49



6. Living Wage and Fair Work Practices

Scotland Excel commenced formal consideration of Fair Work Practices (including the Real Living
Wage) within tenders in early 2015. From a review of the data available since 2015 the overall position
across Scotland Excel’s portfolio is: Of the 926 suppliers appointed since formal consideration, 768
(83%) notified that they pay the Real Living Wage. This is broken down within the first four columns
below:

Committed to Not accredited or
gaining Not paying the Real Neither
accreditation accredited but Living Wage but accredited nor
Progress over the first 2 paying the committed to paying the
towards years of the Real Living doing so within 2 Real Living
Accredited accreditation framework Wage WEES Wage
170 42 87 469 36 122
18.4% 4.5% 9.4% 50.7% 3.9% 13.1%

79% of the suppliers that are based in Aberdeen and are on the Scotland Excel frameworks are either
Living Wage accredited, committed to gaining accreditation or pay the Real Living wage.

Scotland Excel continues to monitor and encourage the implementation of fair working practices and to
work closely with suppliers to review their progress in this area.

7. Support During Covid-19

Since the outbreak of Covid-19 all staff have been working from home. During this period Scotland
Excel provided additional support to customers by sharing information, creating a dedicated PPE Team
and offering a PPE Sourcing Service. We are aware that not all councils utilised the PPE Sourcing
Service but detailed below is a summary of the support provided:

e Established a Covid-19 Newsroom to share information with customers www.scotland-
excel.org.uk/SXL Newsroom

e Take part in the National Covid-19 Contingency Planning Group for care services and working with
health and social care partners to identify sources of supply for essential items

e Provide sourcing support for PPE for the sector which will simplify communication with suppliers
and care providers, and help to release procurement capacity at local level

e Strengthened the team focusing on PPE, with a larger team committed to this work

e Introduced a new dedicated email address; ppe@scotlandexcel.org.uk

e Works with a public sector Covid-19 response group to ensure continuity of food supply to those
most in need including vulnerable children, care homes and those identified by the Scottish
Government as requiring shielding support

e Has regular contact with builder's merchants to monitor stock levels and confirm new procedures
for the delivery/collection of orders for emergency repairs

e Domestic furniture and furnishings suppliers are working to maintain operations, with amended
health and safety protocols, to respond to a surge in applications for crisis support through the
Scottish Welfare Fund.

Page 10 of 14

Page 50


http://www.scotland-excel.org.uk/SXL_Newsroom
http://www.scotland-excel.org.uk/SXL_Newsroom
mailto:ppe@scotlandexcel.org.uk

8. Scotland Excel Academy

Scotland Excel delivers accredited and non-accredited programmes through a blend of face-face
workshops, online and self-directed learning through The Academy. This suite of learning and
development includes courses on:

e Procurement

e Management & Leadership

e Coaching & Mentoring

e Project Management

e Business Analysis & Innovation

The work-based-learning programmes are accredited by the Chartered Institute of Procurement and
Supply (CIPS), the Chartered Management Institute (CMI) and the Scottish Qualifications Authority
(SQA); along with licensed content from the Association of Project Management (APM).

13 members of staff attended the CSM Fundamentals course in April 2019.

In addition, a programme of one hour online ‘Stay Connected Sessions’ covering a range of subjects
has been offered free to councils since May 2020.

Aberdeen City Council has attended 14 Stay Connected sessions to date, with a further 4 places
booked in November 2020.

Aberdeen City Council has regularly attended Scotland Excel’s Annual Conference. The theme for this
year’s event, held on 21st and 22nd February 2020, was Inclusive Growth; looking at how to deliver
stronger economic growth, whilst focusing on and delivering social outcomes such as reducing
inequalities, tackling poverty and increasing access to good quality jobs.

Page 11 of 14

Page 51



9. Future funding of Scotland Excel

In June 2018, the Joint Committee approved a new funding model. Future funding for Scotland Excel
core operating services would be funded by council requisitions, Associate fees, rebates and income
from Projects. Additional income would be generated by increasing the number of Associate members,
rebates and a wide range of chargeable projects minimising the level of requisition. Scotland Excel
continues to seek operational efficiencies, to manage its financial position flexibly in order to maintain
its aim of minimising the level of requisition required, and to develop value propositions for member
authorities to ensure that best value is achieved.

The following funding opportunities were identified and approved by Joint Committee:

Consultancy Services

Learning and development
Associate Membership Expansion
New Build Housing

Rebates

abrwdE

All five funding opportunities have progressed since they were originally agreed. Covid-19 has however
had a significant impact on the original planned growth trajectory. The percentage of other income
against requisition income is projected to continue to grow but at a slower rate than planned.

The following diagram demonstrates the progress made with respect to alternative funding models.
Non requisition income is forecast to grow from 2% to 18% of operating costs.

Work continues with all income streams with the overall goal of minimising the level of member
requisitions.

Income Generation
Requisition/Other Income

100%
90%

80%

T70%

60%

50%

A40%

30%

20%

s In I
" H_ _ O []

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

W Requisition m Other

Page 12 of 14

Page 52



10. Value of Membership

This report provides an overview of the range of services provided by Scotland Excel and the benefits
realised by being a member.

In summary, the table below shows the spend and savings figures for Aberdeen City Council for the
last 5 years together with the requisition fees and cost avoidance.

Actual Estimated Requisition *Savings Cost **Total

Spend Savings Fee ROI Avoidance {e]|
2015/16 £21,968,250 £852,011 | £128,501 6.63 £91,109 7.34
2016/17 @ £27,363,341 @ £946,127 | £140,607 6.73 £169,075 7.93
2017/18 £26,335,407 £696,484 @ £140,607 4.95 £228,491 6.58

Estimated savings figure

2018/19 | £27,724,390 | £626,662 £140,311 4.47 £250,038 6.25 does not include social care
service frameworks

Estimated savings figure
2019/20 £26,632,937 £676,865 £142,125 4.76 £157,574 5.87 does not include social care
service frameworks

*Savings ROI (Return on Investment) represents savings vs requisition fees
**Total ROI (Return on Investment) represents savings and cost avoidance vs requisition fees

These savings figures are not intended to represent cashable/bankable customer savings, but an
estimate of the benefits that may be accrued through use of the contract. Responsibility for calculating
a precise measure of cash savings achieved lies with each individual local authority.

11. What Next

Scotland Excel is keen to continue delivering further value to its members. Should you have questions
or require further details on the information enclosed within this report, we are happy to provide this.
We are particularly keen to hear of any new ways that you feel Scotland Excel could deliver value.

Every council has a dedicated Account Manager who meets with your procurement team on a regular
basis to share information and identify opportunities to deliver more for your organisation.

Scotland Excel is also happy to present a summary of this report in person to council members and
colleagues at your convenience.

You can contact us or find out more online via the following routes:

Email: Contactus@Scotland-Excel.org.uk

Web: www.Scotland-Excel.org.uk

LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/company/scotland-excel/
Twitter: @ScotlandExcel

Page 13 of 14

Page 53


mailto:Contactus@Scotland-Excel.org.uk
http://www.scotland-excel.org.uk/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/scotland-excel/

Appendix A Framework Participation and Utilisation

Frameworks not participating in

Rationale

Organic Waste

Own arrangement with Suez Recycling until 2025

Waste Disposal Equipment

As above

Frameworks with no spend to date

Comments

Alcoholic Beverages

Benchmarking underway for Beach Ballroom

Asbestos

Currently running a mini-competition on SXL framework

Bikeability

No requirements, parent provision in the City

Boiler Maintenance

Recently awarded using SXL framework

Bottled Gas

Assessment underway to switch to SXL

Cleaning Equipment

Own contract in place at present

Customer Service Platform

Framework expired during Q4. ACC awarded via SXL, currently
chasing supplier for missing Ml.

Energy Advice

using SCARF collaborative contract with Aberdeenshire

Fire Safety Products

Covered by local contract

First Aid Materials

Using Aero Healthcare on SXL, SXL chasing missing Ml

Fresh Bread and Rolls

Not using at present but may in future

Hot Beverages

Plan in place to award a contract using SXL framework

Laundry Equipment

No requirements

Light and Heavy Plant

Combination of frameworks used for this area of spend. Minimal
spend at present due to Covid/guidance to procure ULEVs

New Build Residential

Mini-competitions planned

Pest Control Services

May use in future for Chemical Purchases but no Pest Control
coverage locally

Reapir of Catering Machines

Not using at present, may be an option in future

Recyclable and Residual Waste

Own contract but may use SXL framework for Skips

Roadstone

Recently migrated to SXL framework

Sheriff Officers and Debt Recovery

Own contract in place at present

Vending Machines

Not using at present but may in future

Page 14 of 14

Page 54




Agenda Item 10.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Strategic Commissioning Committee

DATE 11 February 2021

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment 2021
REPORT NUMBER CUS/21/042

DIRECTOR Angela Scott, Chief Executive

CHIEF OFFICER Martin Murchie, Data and Insights

REPORT AUTHOR Anne McAteer

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 1.1

1.

11

2.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report presents the 2021 Population Needs Assessment for Aberdeen City.
The PNA is a key source of evidence which informs the key priorities for
Community Planning Aberdeen and Aberdeen City Council.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee :-

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

note the Population Needs Assessment 2021 (appendix 1) and the LOIP refresh
development stages (appendix 2).

BACKGROUND

In 2018, Community Planning Aberdeen published a population needs
assessment to provide a comprehensive picture of Aberdeen City as seen
through a broad range of data sets. The document was used as the evidence
base for identifying the shared priorities for public services in Aberdeen and
updating the Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP) 2016-26. The refreshed
Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP) was approved by
Community Planning Aberdeen Board on 26 February 2019. It introduced 15
Stretch Outcomes to be delivered by 2026 and 120 shorter term improvement
project.

Over the last two years the Partnership has been working towards the
improvement aims within the LOIP with a view to improve outcomes for the
people of Aberdeen. At this juncture it is timely to refresh the Population Needs
Assessment to understand emerging trends and if the Partnership’s current
priorities continue to respond to local need.

POPULATION NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2021

The 2021 Population Needs Assessment provides an updated evidence base
for the refresh of the 2016 LOIP. It provides an important sense check to

Page 55


https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/

ensure that our priorities for improvement are grounded on what is most
needed to improve outcomes for our communities. Whilst the Population Needs
Assessment provides a snapshot of the position at a specific period, the
Outcome Framework remains a living data platform, updated as data,
intelligence, analysis and research becomes available. This enables the CPA
Partnership and Aberdeen City Council on an ongoing basis to understand
whether we are delivering on the improvement aims as set out within our
respective strategic plans, and the impact that this is having on broader
outcomes. It will also allow the Partnership/ACC to identify any emerging
issues it needs to respond to which are not addressed by current strategy.

4.2 The findings will be considered as part of the refresh of the LOIP to inform
discussions about the Partnership’s performance in responding to local need
and how this will be strengthened going forward. The refreshed LOIP is to be
considered by the Community Planning Aberdeen Board in July 2021 and the
development stages for the refresh are detailed at Appendix 2. It will also be
brought forward for endorsement by the Strategic Commissioning Committee
in October 2021.

4.3 As well as supporting the refresh of the LOIP, the Population Needs
Assessment is also a source for Partners to utilise in their own organisations to
consider whether the key findings have an impact on their current strategic
plans. This will include the Council’s Corporate Delivery Plan.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations of
this report.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The data presented within this report is not of a personal nature and therefore
there are no legal implications.

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Category Risk Low (L) Mitigation
Medium
(M)
High (H)
Strategic N/A N/A
Risk
Compliance | N/A N/A
Operational | N/A N/A
Financial N/A N/A
Reputational | There is a risk that the Colleagues across the
Population Needs Community Planning
Assessment does not Partnership have contributed
accurately reflect the to the development of this
needs of the Population Needs
population which may Assessment. It has been

Page 56



http://www.communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/outcomesframework

Partnership working.

have a negative signed off by the Community
impact on the public’s Planning Partnership
perception of the Outcome Improvement
Council and Groups and CPA

Management Group as an
accurate reflection of needs
across the City based on the
data currently available.

Environment | N/A

/ Climate

N/A

8. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

The Population Needs Assessment is a key source
of evidence to understand the needs of the
population and informs the key priorities for
Community Planning Aberdeen and Aberdeen City
Council.

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Prosperous Economy
Stretch Outcomes

The revised Population Needs Assessment provides
an updated evidence base for the refresh of the Local
Outcome Improvement Plan and potential
identification of new priorities under this theme.

Prosperous People Stretch
Outcomes

The revised Population Needs Assessment provides
an updated evidence base for the refresh of the Local
Outcome Improvement Plan and potential
identification of new priorities under this theme.

Prosperous Place Stretch
Outcomes

The revised Population Needs Assessment provides
an updated evidence base for the refresh of the Local
Outcome Improvement Plan and potential
identification of new priorities under this theme.

Regional and City
Strategies

The revised Population Needs Assessment provides
an updated evidence base for the refresh of the Local
Outcome Improvement Plan and can be utilised by
Partners when reviewing regional and city strategies.

UK and Scottish
Legislative and Policy
Programmes

The revised Population Needs Assessment provides
an updated evidence base for the refresh of the Local
Outcome Improvement Plan and aligns to the
requirements placed upon the Partnership by the
Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015
(“CEA”).

Page 57



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf

8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Assessment Outcome

Impact Assessment Full impact assessment not required

Data Protection Impact | Not required
Assessment

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment 2018

10. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Population Needs Assessment 2021
Appendix 2 — LOIP Refresh Development Stages

11. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name Anne McAteer

Title Research Officer

Email Address amcateer@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Tel 01224 522182

Page 58


https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/PNA-DRAFT-V3-1.pdf
mailto:amcateer@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Aberdeen City
Population Needs Assessmen

2021

Community Planning
Aberdeen

Page 59



Contents

The Aberdeen Overview 2

1. Introduction 7

1.1 What is a Population Needs Assessment 7

1.2 Data used and limitations 7

1.3 Consultation 8

1.4 Layout 8

1.5 Sustainable Development Goals 8

2. Our Economy 9

2.1 Economy 9

2.2 Business 10
2.3 Labour market 11
24 Earnings 15
2.5 Poverty and deprivation 15
3. Our People: Demography 18
3.1 Population 18
3.2 Migration 19
3.3 Population projections 20
3.4 Births 20
3.5 Deaths 21
3.6 Estimated life expectancy 22
3.7 Healthy life expectancy 23
3.8 Households 24
4, Our People: Children & Young People 26
4.1 Child population 26
4.2 Looked after children 26
4.3 Mental health and wellbeing 28
4.4 Education 30
4.5 Children — early years 35
4.6 Child health 38
4.7 Smoking, alcohol and drug use 41
4.8 Juvenile crime 42

Page 60



5.1
5.2
53
54
5.5
5.6

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7

Our People: Adults

Health behaviours

Mental health

Key diseases

Hospitalisations

Home care and care homes

Looking after own health and wellbeing

Our Place

Our City

Communities

Housing

Crime

Criminal justice and social work
Safety

Environment

Further Information

Page 61

43
44
46
48
49
49
51

52
52
52
53
55
57
57
58

63



The Aberdeen Overview

A summary of key findings from the

Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment — January 2021

Our Economy Our People Our Place

i ’.;-.a' ’i"i\ . .
e City Growth
e Business * Prenatal &beststart * Olderpeople e  Priority neighbourhoods
e Employment * Childhealth 0 B s Hlesnl e  Place standard

p. y e  Child protection e  Mental health o .

[}
) e Lookedafter chldren + Physcalhealth + Commnity safety
Workforce * Mentalhealth * Crime and justice e Volunteering
e Tourism ®  Education o e e  Active travel
e  Youth justice italisati

e Poverty J o HemplislkEien e Data and digital



Covid-19 Impact

KPMG forecast that Aberdeen will be one of the
worst impacted economically with a large
decrease in output in 2020 and a strong
bounceback in 2021. They project that overall
Aberdeen City will be the 5th worst affected
area in Scotland due highly impacted industries:
air transport, coke and refined petroleum.

Employment and Furlough

As of June 20, the rate of unemployment in the
City was 2.7%, compared to 3.3% for Scotland.
Claimants increased by 128% between Mar-Nov 20
to 6% of the working age papulation, signalling
rising unemployment. Furlough has helped reduce
unemployment. As at 30 Sep 20, 9,700 people
were on furlough. This is 6.2 per 100 compared to
5.2 for Scotland and 2nd highest rate of all LAs.

[

Economy

City Growth

Historically, GVA per head for Aberdeen City
has been significantly higher than the average
for Scotland. After a sharp fall in March,
Scotland’s GDP has continued to increase
month by month. But as of September 2020,
output remains 7.6% below the level in
February prior to the direct impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic

Earnings

The median gross weekly pay is £582.20
compared to £595 for Scotland. Employees
earning less than the living wage decreased from
18% in 2016 to 11.9% in 2019.

kb

Business

There hasbeen a slight drop in the number of
businessesin Aberdeen. In 2020 99.3% of
enterprises were classified as micro, small or
medium and 0.7% were large (over 250 employees).
The rate of micro and small businesses applying for
Covid business support grants has been halfthe
rate seen across Scotland, suggesting that many
businessesin the City have been resilient.

Young Workforce

2020 figures for participation of 16-19 years olds in
Education, Employment or Training has remained
steady over the past 3 years from 89.8% in 2018 to
89.9% in 2020. However, school leavers and younger
workers in particular are likely to feel the lasting
effects of the pandemic on the labour market. The
percentage of leavers successfully achieving a
modern apprenticeship fell from 80% to 77%

E€9 abed

)=

e

Tourism

Latest data available shows that in recent years
the number of domesticvisitors to the City has
decreased, althoughthere has been anincreasein
international visitors and air passengers. Covid-19
has had a considerable impact on the tourism
industry due to global travel restrictions and “stay
at home"” messaging. Hotels arereporting a
revenue drop of 60-80% compared to last year.

Poverty and Deprivation

In 2020 the proportion of Aberdeen datazones
in the 40% most deprived areas of Scotland has
increased from 28% to 33.2%. Conversely,
36.7% of datazones are in the 20% least
deprived areas of Scotland. The pandemic has
pushed many people into poverty and financial
insecurity, but most often impacting those who
were already lowest paid.

o)

Employment sectors

In 2019 over 8% of employees worked in the
Accommodation and Food sector and 2% worked
in Arts, Entertainment and Recreation. These
sectors have been most impacted by the virus so
far. Scottish Enterprise ranked Aberdeen as the
third highest (after Glasgow and Edinburgh) in
terms of potential redundancies with over 10,000
jobs estimated to be at risk in Aberdeen City.

Food Poverty

In March 2020, 6.4% of City Voice respondents
reported that, because of lack or money or other
resources, they were hungry but did not eat.
Covid 19 has had a significant impact on food
security and as of 3 December 2020, of the 21,100
residents who called the Covid-19 crisis line,
5,076 calls required food assistance with 91% of
those resulting from ur_r]\available funds.

Digital Skills

The digital technology sector is growing rapidly and
reliance on digital technologies has become even
more apparent during the pandemic — working
from home, connecting with friends and family, and
undertaking basic everyday tasks such as shopping
and banking. Access to digital tools and ability to
perform digital tasks continues to increase, as does
the demand for skills with employers.

Fuel Poverty

23% of households are in fuel poverty —lower than
the 25% average rate for Scotland. This is higher in
Social housing (48%) than owner-occupied housing
(10%). Extreme fuel poverty is estimated to affect
12% of households in Aberdeen. Again, there are
differences between social housing househaolds and
owner occupied households.




Pre-Natal Health

13.7% of women in the City with a known smoking
status were recorded as a ‘current smoker” at their
first antennal appointment lower than the Scottish
average. Teenage pregnancies per 1,000 in
Aberdeen were 31.1 compared to 30.5 for Scotland.
In the period 2016/17 to 2018/19 (3-year
aggregate) the rate for maternal drug use was 17.1
(crude rate per 1,000 maternities) which is higher
than the rate for Scotland of 15.4.

Child Protection

In July 2019, there were 119 children on the
Child Protection Register (CPR) in Aberdeen City.
This is an increase from 68 in 2018. The rate of
children on the CPR (per 1,000 children aged 0O-
15 years) was 3.4 compared to 2.8 in Scotland.
59 of the cases were due to neglect and 45 due
to parental drug/alcohol use.

A

People

Best Start in Life

In Aberdeen between 2016/17 to 2018/19, 85% of
babies born were a healthy birth weight. The
proportion of babies exclusively breast-fed at 6-8
weeks (2017/18 - 2019/20) is higher (39.9%)
compared to Scotland (31.2%). National data
indicates that COVID-19 is likely to impact on the
developmental milestones of 2-4 year olds due to
the various impacts of lockdown restrictions.

Looked after children (LAC)

In July 2019 there were 542 LAC in Aberdeen, 1.4%
of the 0-17 years population. The proportion of
LAC in kinship care was at lower in Aberdeen at
36%, compared to Scotland (54.2%) [19]. In 2018-
19, 24.9% of LAC had more than 1 placement in
the past year — higher than the rate for Scotland of
19.7% [20]. Local intelligence indicates there has
been an increase in kinship care over Lockdown.

[i}

L

Child Health

In 2018/19, 69.7% of P1 pupils in Aberdeen had no
obvious tooth decay — slightly lower than the
average rate for Scotland of 71.6. In 2018/19
79.5% of p1s were classified as ‘healthy weight’ —
slightly higher than the figure for Scotland of
76.6%.

Educational Outcomes of LAC

In 2018/19 82.4% of LAC in the city left school
with 1 or more qualification at SCQF level 4 —
higher than Scotland at 69.8%. In 2018/19, 76%
of LAC in Aberdeen had a positive destination
compared to 71% in Scotland. This is lower than
the rate for 2017/18 of 79% and lower than the
rate for all children of 93.2%

Children’s Mental Health

Public Health Scotland have reported that the
COVID-19 Lockdown has had a negative impact on
the sleep, behaviour, mood, physical activity,

concentration, and eating for children aged between|

2 and 7 with similar outcomes for 18-24 year olds.
There has been a 280% increase in referrals of
children and young people to the NHS Grampian
CAMHS Eating Disorder specialist team in 2020
compared to 2019.

Child Poverty

In 2018/19 an estimated 7,471 children (0-15
years) in Aberdeen City were living in poverty —
equivalent to 21.5% of children. This is an increase
from 19.2% in 2014/15.

Attainment and Achievement
The number of young people achieving National

;;;4 is 88% which is lower than the pass rate in 2016

which sat at 94%. The number of young people
achieving A-C at National 5 has increased in 2020
to 88.7%. This is higher than in the previous four
years at 78.6% in 2016 and the 5 year low of
76.7% in 2019.

Attendance and Exclusions

In 2018/19, average attendance in primary
schools in the City was 94.5% and for secondary
schools the rate was 91.6%. In 2018/19 there
were 1,221 cases of exclusion in Aberdeen City —
an increase from 1,072 in 2016/17.

2.2

Positive Destinations

In 2018/19, 93.2% of school leavers in Aberdeen
had a positive destination, this is compared to
88.1% in areas of deprivation. COVID -19 is likely
to have a significant impact on school leavers in
the next few years. Groups most likely affected
will include girls, ethnic minorities, those in
poverty and care experienced young people.

Youth Justice

In 2019/20, 714 young people were identified as
being involved in criminality, up from 672 in
2018/19. Inthe same period, the total number of
offences increased from 1,481 to 1,595, the first
increase in 4 years. Figures between April and July
2020 saw a decrease where 185 8-17 year olds
committed offences, compared to 361 in 2019/20.



Mental Health

In 2019/20, 16.6% of Aberdeen’s population is
prescribed drugs for anxiety, depression or
psychosis, lower than Scotland but an increasing
trend, mirrored nationally. In 2019 there were 25
probable suicides in Aberdeen (20 male & 5 female),
a reduction of 5 since 2018. As a result of social
isolation and the socio-economic impacts of Covid-
19, mental health is an area of concern.

Drugs

In each of the last two years, the number of drug-
related deaths has fallen and was at 44 in 2015.

Of these, 31 were males and 13 were females. In
the period 2015-15, the average annual rate for
drug-related deaths was 0.21 deaths per 1,000
population (compared to 0.19 in 2014-18) and is
higher than Scotland (0.18). There are indications
that Covid-1% and subsequent restrictions have
increased levels of drug and alcohol misuse.

o

Dementia & Older People in the Community
In 2019, Dementia and Alzheimer’'s disease were
the leading cause of death for females in Aberdeen
City (13.2% of all female deaths) and the second
most common cause of death for males (8.0% of all
male deaths). The proportion of people aged 65+
years is widespread throughout the city ranges
from 7% in Old Aberdeen, City Centre and George
Street to 25% in Dyce.

Alcohol

In the period 2016-19, 25% of adults in Aberdeen
were drinking above the guideline recommendations
of 14 units per week (4% reduction from 2014-17)
Alcohol related deaths for the city reduced from 41
in 2014-2018 to 38 in 2015-2019) similar to the rate
for Scotland. Whilst alcohol-related hospital
admissions have increased to a rate of 759 per
100,000 population in 2018/19 to 711 in 2019/20
and higher than Scotland rate of 673.

Life and death

In 2017-19, female HLE was 62.5 years and male
HLE was 60.6 years (both down on last year and
continuing the downward trend). In 2019 there
were 2,161 deaths in Aberdeen- a slight decrease
from 2,170 deaths in 2018. At 6th December, there
were 158 deaths in Aberdeen where COVID-19 was
mentioned on the death certificate (77 female and
81 male).

Obesity & Physical Activity

In 2016-15 it was estimated that 23% of the City's
adult population was obese (classified as a BMI of
30+), lower than the rate for Scotland of 29% and
a decrease from 25% in 2014-17. In period 2016-
19 combined 70% of adults level of physical
activity met the recommended guidelines, an
increase of 3% since 2015-18 and 4% higher than
Scotland.

Community Justice

In 2018-15, 725 people living in Aberdeen City had a
first ever court conviction — down from 809 in 2017-
18. Of these, 32 were under 18 years and 120 were
aged 1B-20 years. Of the 2,483 offenders in the
2016-17 cohort, 29.5% were reconvicted within a
year of receiving their sentence. In 2019-20, 680
Community Payback Orders were successfully
completed, up from 644 in 2018-19.

Smoking

In the period 2016-19, an estimated 18% of adults
in Aberdeen were current smokers - down from
23% in 2014-17 and similar Scotland figure [17%).
A higher proportion of males (20%) than females
(17%) were smokers. It is estimated that 5% of
adults use e-cigarettes (6% males, 4% females).

.9

!

Crime

In 2019/20 the most common crimes and offences
recorded in Aberdeen were Group 6, Miscellaneous
Offences, including assault and anti-social behaviour
type crimes and offences(5,833), Group 7, Road Traffic
Offences(5,577) and Group 3, Crimes of Dishonesty
(5,218). Since 2016/17, rates (per 10,000 population)
have decreased for all crimes and offences except for
non-sexual crimes of violence where the rate has
increased from 17.4 per 10,000 population to 22.4.
Homelessness & Housing

In the year 2019-20, there were 1,486 applications
under the Homeless Persons legislation in Aberdeen
City Council. Thisis a decrease of 8.7% (141
applications) on the number of applications in 2018-
19. At 31st March 2019 there were 4,116 applicants
on the Local Authority’s waiting list and 2,124 on the
transfer list for housing.

1
L]

Domestic Abuse

In 2019/20 there was an increase of 42 recorded
incidents of domestic abuse in Aberdeen (2,528) and
there 162 recorded crimes for domestic abuse.
Resulting from Covid-19 and the impact on access to
support services there have been concerns about a
rise in domestic violence. Between April & October
2020, there were 85 domestic abuse crimes recorded
in Aberdeen compared to 88 for the same period in
2019.

Emergency Admissions

The rate of emergency hospitalisations has been
gradually decreasing over the past 10 years, from
7,813 per 100,000 population in 2007-08 to the
current level of 7,024. Over the same period, the rate
in Scotland has increased. Data for Apr to Sep 2020
has shown a decrease in both emergency admissions
and ALE attendance compared to the same period in
2019 and suggests this has been due to Covid-189.

People



09 abed

Priority Neighbourhoods by Locality
Based on SIMD

Central
North + Seaton
e Mastrick e Tillyd
ydrone
South + Middlefield » Woodside
l-.::rrv _— Northfield * Stockethill
incort Cummings Park George Street
s Heathryfold s Ashgrove
Emissions

In 2018 CO; emissions in Aberdeen totalled
1,210.4 kt (down from 1,875.1in 2005). Of this,
44.,4% is attributed to industry and commerce,
28.9% to domestic use and 26.9% to transport.

Place Standard
When asked about different aspects of their
neighbourhood, availability of green space and
feeling safe inyour neighbourhood were the
highest scoring areas in March 2020. Lowest
scoring areas were economy and accessto jobs
and as well as the ability to participate in
decisions and help change things for the better.

o Waste

Household waste generated in Aberdeen has
decreased each year since 2016. The amount of
household waste going to landfill has reduced by
74% since 2016 and the % of waste being recycled
has increased from 39% to 49.9%. Waste
managed by other methods (e.g. incineration) has
alsoincreased andwas 32.4%in 2019.

il

Green Space
In March 2020, 65% of City Voice respondents
reported that they were satisfied with their local
greenspace, down from 71% in 2019. A Scottish
report has found that use of green space during
lockdown varied, with some groups increasing the
frequency of their visits and others, particularly older
people, reducing their visits. Those who used green
space reported it benefitted their mental health.

Flooding

80% of average annual damages for flooding inthe
North East are within Aberdeen. This means the
total average annual damages for Aberdeen are
£17,370,000pa.

A

Hh

Youth anti-social behaviour

In 2019, a total of 2,761 Youth Anti-social
Behaviour calls reported to the Police. Thisis a
considerable increase from 1,740 in 2018. In the
year to September 2020, there were 1,426 calls
reported to the Police.

Volunteering

In response to Covid-19, over 7,000 volunteers
were recruited through for Aberdeen alone
(March—July 2020) and over 25% are over 60. Pre
Covid-19 there was close to 80,000 people
assisting volunteering, contributing to a combined
4.4m hours of help every year. The increase is
mirrored nationally with volunteering
participationin Scotland increasing by 26%.

Dwelling Fires

In 2019/20 there were 256 accidental dwelling
firesin Aberdeen and 35 deliberate dwelling
fires. Aberdeen has a higher rate of both fires
than Scotland at 214.2 and 29.3 per 100,000
dwellings comparedto 165.6 and 19.8.
Impairment due to alcohol/drugs was suspected
to be a contributory factorto accidental dwelling
firesin Aberdeen in 15.6% of cases.

Active Travel

In 2019, 21% of people reported walking as their
main mode of travel (same as 2018) and 2%
reported cycling (up 1%). Driving a car was the
most common at 53%. Covid-19 has impacted on
the number of trips and the modes of travel. In
Aberdeen, data shows that the level of cycle users
in Nov 2020 was up 37% compared to Nov 2019
and the daily number of pedestrians was up 62%.

/ﬂ Road Safety

During 2019, there were 118 road collisions in
Aberdeen, involving 148 fatal, serious or slight injuries.
Sadly, this included 3 fatalities from 3 separate
collisions. There were 53 individuals seriously injured in
47 collisions, while 92 individuals were slightly injured
in 68 collisions. The number of people seriously injured
inroadtrafficaccidents hasincreasedineach ofthe last
two years (from 34 in 2017).

Digital and Data

Effective use of data and digital technology can help
the way we deliver public services and empower
people in our communities. Data from the Scottish
Social Attitudes Survey 2019 suggests a relatively high
degree of trust in public service organisations to use
personal data only for acceptable purposes. However,
the UK Data Strategy recognises weaknesses in how
public service organisations currently share and use
data to help our communities.




Introduction

1.1.

1.2.

What is a Population Needs Assessment?

The Population Needs Assessment is a high-level analysis of key groups, priorities, and
challenges across public services, including service performance and information
available on the customer perspective. The PNA will identify areas where more
detailed analysis is required to ensure a greater understanding of existing and
potential provider strengths and weaknesses, and opportunities for improvement.

This PNA will update the information provided in the Population Needs Assessment
which was carried out in 2018.

The PNA will include aggregated data under the headings of Economy, People and
Place. Whilst it is intended that the PNA will provide a comprehensive overview of the
state of Aberdeen across a wide range of indicators, there will be areas which are
identified as out of scope for the initial assessment. Where there is an identified need
for more detailed analysis, this will be planned for the future. For example, data
drilling down into specific communities, service provider or market.

Data used and limitations

Much of the data presented in this document comes from official statistics provided
by, for example, the Scottish Government, National Records of Scotland, Public Health
Scotland, Office for National Statistics and NOMIS (official labour market statistics).
Additional data has been provided by Council services and Community Planning
Partners.

As there are few official statistics that give local authority level data in (near to) real-
time, most of the data included in this document is pre-COVID-19 and so will not
capture the impact that the pandemic has had. Where more recent data is available
(e.g. Claimant Count) this has been included. In some cases, Scotland level data or
information has been added to help give an indication of which areas are most likely
to be impacted.

In general percentages and rates presented have been rounded to one decimal point.
Some of these (e.g. life expectancy) will have a degree of error associated with them
because of the way they are generated. Technically, these results should be presented
with their associated Confidence Interval (usually +x%). Differences are said to be
statistically significant if confidence intervals do not overlap. However, for ease of
presentation, confidence intervals are not shown. A degree of caution is therefore
required when interpreting some of the data — particularly for smaller geographies

Page 67


https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/PNA-DRAFT-V3-1.pdf

1.3.

1.4.

1.5

such as neighbourhoods or intermediate zones where there is likely to be greater
imprecision around estimates and confidence intervals are likely to be broader.

Consultation

Within this Population Needs Assessment information on the Customer and Citizens
perspective has been included. In most cases, this has been done using Aberdeen City
Voice. Aberdeen City Voice is Aberdeen’s citizens’ panel. There are over 1,400 citizens
on the panel who have agreed to give their views on a range of issues. Full access to
the questionnaires and reports can be found at Aberdeen City Voice.

Layout

The layout follows the LOIP themes — Economy, People and Place. Section 2 focuses
on Economy, Section 3, 4 and 5 relate to People, with Section 3 giving a demographic
overview of the City, Section 4 covering Children and Section 5 looking at Adults.
Section 6 focuses on Place.

Sustainable Development Goals

The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals were developed in 2016. They
recognise that ending poverty and other deprivations must go hand-in-hand with
strategies that improve health and education, reduce inequality and spur economic
growth — issues at the core of the Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan.
The goals serve as a framework to cross check against our population needs
assessment to help identify any gaps. Through out this document you will see
reference made to the goals, acknowledging where there are gaps in current data.

SUSTAINABLE ™ 8"
DEVELOPMENT \J %™ ALS

NO GOOD HEALTH QUALITY GENDER CLEAN WATER
POVERTY AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION EQUALITY AND SANITATION

DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 10 REDUCED
ECONOMIC GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES

a

'I CLIMATE 1 LIFE 1 LIFE 1 PEACE, JUSTICE

1 PARTNERSHIPS

ACTION FOR THE GOALS

3 2

BELOW WATER ON LAND AND STRONG

INSTITUTIONS



https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/cityvoice/

Our Economy

ND IERO GENDER DEGENT WORK AND 9 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 10 REDUCED
POVERTY HUNGER EQUALITY ECONOMIC GROWTH ANDINFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES

it | o | & | af | | 5

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&

2. Our Economy

COVID-19 overview - Scotland: Scotland’s GDP grew 1.5% in May following sharp falls of
18.9% in April and 5.5% in March. Compared to February, Scotland’s GDP was 22% lower in
May. This is significantly bigger than any previous economic contraction. In September,
Scotland’s GDP is provisionally estimated to have increased by 1.6% compared to August. This
is the fifth consecutive month of increasing GDP, but output remains 7.6% below the level in
February prior to the direct impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic [1].

KPMG forecast that Aberdeen City will be one of the worst impacted economically with a large
decrease in output in 2020 and a strong bounceback in 2021. They project that overall
Aberdeen City will be the 5" worst affected area in Scotland. This is partly due to the industries
that are likely to be most impacted nationally, and that have a high footprint in Aberdeen: air
transport, coke and refined petroleum.

2.1. Economy

Gross Value Added (GVA): In 2018 Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire had a GVA (current
prices) of £18,235 million — equivalent to 12.8% of Scotland’s total GVA [2]. GVA per head for
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire was £37,288 (current basic prices) which was higher than
the average GVA per head for Scotland of £26,134 and an increase from £36,014 in 2017 [3].

Growth sector enterprises: Scotland’s Economic Strategy recognises the importance of key
industries in the continued growth of the country. The Strategy has identified six sectors
where Scotland has a distinct comparative advantage — Food and Drink (including fisheries and
agriculture), Creative Industries (including digital), Sustainable Tourism, Energy (including
renewables), Financial and Business Services, and Life Sciences. In 2019 there were 4,860
growth sector enterprises in Aberdeen City with slightly over half of these (52.1%) being
financial and business services. Between 2015 and 2018, the number of growth sector
enterprises fell from 5,350 to 4,755 but increased between 2018 and 2019. Total employment
in growth sector enterprises was 62,890 in 2019 — an increase from 60,980 in 2018 [4].

10

Page 69



Number of growth sector enterprises by sector and total
employment

6,000 72,000

70,000
5,000
68,000
66,000
4,000

64,000
3,000 62,000

60,000

2,000
58,000

Number of enterprises
Total employment

56,000
1,000

54,000
0 | | - - - - - - - - | 52,000
2009 2010 @ 2011 @ 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 @ 2018 @ 2019
B Creative Industries (including Digital) 645 650 685 760 815 880 935 915 855 855 875

Sustainable Tourism (Tourism related

. 530 530 540 525 520 545 535 540 535 550 560
Industries)

mmmmm Energy (including Renewables) 405 450 550 655 745 785 820 795 715 705 750
Life Sciences 40 40 30 35 35 40 35 35 30 35 45
Financial and Business Services 2075 2055 @ 2100 & 2315 2465 2795 2905 2805 @ 2625 @ 2475 @ 2490

mmm Food and Drink 165 145 130 130 130 125 120 125 130 135 140

@mm@umm E 1 ployment 64400 63000 61900 63700 64800 69500 66485 58400 59190 60980 62890

Source: Scottish Government, Growth Sector Statistics, Local authority area statistics database [4]

Oil and Gas: In 2019 it was estimated that there were around 30,600 people directly employed
in the Oil and Gas Industry in the UK (no figures for Aberdeen City available). Indirect
employment (i.e. within the wider industry supply chain) was around 121,000. A further
117,5000 jobs were supported through induced employment (i.e. those who are supported as
a result of the wider economic activity stimulated by the Oil and Gas Industry. The total
number of jobs supported by Oil and Gas increased between 2018 and 2019 (from an
estimated 259,000 in 2018 to an increase to around 269,000 in 2019). This is the first year-on-
year increase since 2014 [5]. However, the recent drop in oil price and the coronavirus
pandemic have had a major impact on the industry. Oil and Gas UK estimate 30,000 jobs in
the sector in the UK could be lost as a result of the coronavirus pandemic and the low oil price
with around 10,000 of these in the North East [6].

Tourism and travel: In 2018 there were 574,000 domestic visitors and 250,000 international
visitors to Aberdeen City. The number of domestic visitors to the City decreased between
2017 (592,000) and 2018, while the number of international visitors increased (from 243,000
in 2017) [7]. Air passengers: In 2019 there were 2.91 million terminal passengers through
Aberdeen Airport. This is a drop from 3.05 million in 2018 and lower than the peak of 3.72
million in 2014 [8]. Rail passengers: In 2018-19 there were 2,661,142 entries and exits at
Aberdeen train station. This is down from 2,948,186 in 2017-18 and lower than the peak of
3,742,646 in 2014-15 [9]. Tourism has been badly affected by COVID-19. Restrictions,
particularly early in the summer, shut down many tourism businesses. Hotels in Aberdeen
that are more reliant on business or corporate trade have fared particularly badly, reporting a
revenue drop of between 60% and 80% compared with 2019 [10].

11

Page 70



2.2,

Businesses

Impact of COVID-19 on businesses - Scotland: Analysis from the Business Impact of
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Survey (BICS) shows that in Scotland, the vast majority of businesses
(with 10+ employees) are, and have been, trading through the crisis. In the period 19
October to 1 November, an estimated 92.7% of businesses (with 10+ employees) were
trading. However, this proportion varied by sector, being lowest in Accommodation and Food
Services (62%) and Arts, Entertainment and Recreation (88%). While most business are
trading, many (50% on average) are doing so with lower turnover. Again, this varies by sector,
with a higher proportion in some sectors reporting a decrease in turnover. The worst affected
sector was Accommodation and Food Services where, in the period 5 October to 1°
November, 86% of businesses reported that turnover has decreased compared to what they
would normally expect for this time of year. Across all industry sectors, 5.8% of businesses
reported that they had no or low confidence that their business will survive the next three
months. This percentage increased to 24.9% for Accommodation and Food services [11].

Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) — Second Grant claims: On 31 October
2020, there were a total of 4,000 SEISS second grant claims in Aberdeen City. Thisis equivalent
to a rate of 68 claims per 100 potentially eligible population. This is similar to the average rate
for Scotland of 69 claims per 100 potentially eligible population [12].

Business grants: At 8" September 2020, 2,370 COVID-19 Business Support Grants had been
awarded in Aberdeen City. This is equivalent to a rate of 21 per 100 small and micro
businesses (compared to an average of 42 per 100 in Scotland) and is the lowest rate of any
Council [12].

Businesses: In 2020 there were 8,690 enterprises and 11,555 local units in Aberdeen City 2.
This is down from 8,800 enterprises and 11,625 local units in 2019. In 2020, most enterprises
(86.5%) were classified as Micro (employing up to 9 people), 10.2% were small (10 to 49
people), 2.6 were medium (50 to 249 people) and 0.7% were large (employing over 250
people). The number of enterprises is currently lower than the peak of 9,185 in 2015 [13].

Business births and deaths: In 2019 there were 1,150 new businesses in Aberdeen City — a
slight increase from 1,135 in 2018. The number of business births each year has been broadly
stable since 2016. In 2019 there were 1,105 business deaths — slightly higher than 1,070 in
2018, but lower than the peak of 1,450 business deaths in 2016. One-year survival rates of
2018 business births was 90.7% in Aberdeen compared to 90.8% in Scotland. Five-year
survival rates of 2014 business births was 40.3% in Aberdeen compared to 42.3% in Scotland
[14].

Business Gateway start-ups: In 2018-19 there were 524 Business Gateway Start-ups — a slight
drop on the number of start-ups in 2017-18 (534) but higher than the 2016-17 figure of 416.

L An enterprise is the smallest combination of legal units (generally based on VAT and/or PAYE
records) which has a certain degree of autonomy within an Enterprise Group. An individual site (for
example a factory or a shop) in an enterprise is called a local unit.

12

Page 71


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzdiZmY2NzYtZDYzYS00NDYwLTlhZDMtYzY4YjU5OTVhNWVjIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection4d07546892b21c356a6d
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzdiZmY2NzYtZDYzYS00NDYwLTlhZDMtYzY4YjU5OTVhNWVjIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0fb38e75f004431b173d

2.3.

This is equivalent to a rate of 23 per 10,000 population — higher than the rate for Scotland of
16.7 per 10,000 population [15].

Labour market

COVID-19/overview - Scotland: In the short-term, the labour market has been
impacted through lockdown, which completely closed some parts of the economy. Longer
term damage is likely to come through changing behaviours, which will impact different
industries in different ways, and businesses closing as a result. Between March and October
2020, the number of employees in Scotland fell by over 70,000 [16].

The Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furlough) has helped to reduce unemployment in the
short term. There has to be a question whether these jobs will ever return, however, and it
should be noted that many of these jobs are already low paid and with limited hours. The
Institute for Public Policy Research estimate that across the UK over a million jobs currently
furloughed will not return in March [17]. These jobs are primarily held by those who are more
likely to have no qualifications. According to the BICS for November, while around 10.1% of
the workforce was on furlough leave, this was as high as 36.4% for the Accommodation and
Food sector and 26.4% for arts, entertainment, and recreation. Many of the lowest paid
employees work in these sectors and in positions that cannot be done remotely, meaning that
employees in these sectors are most likely to experience loss of hours and pay, and in the
long-term unemployment. In the period 5" October to 1t November, only 5.2% of the
workforce in Accommodation and Food Services sector were working remotely compared to
an average of 23.7% across all industry sectors [11].

School leavers and younger workers in particular are likely to feel the lasting effects of the
pandemic on the labour market. As early as April, younger workers reported being much more
severely impacted by the economic impact of COVID-19 than older workers, reporting fewer
hours worked, being more likely to have lost their jobs, and feeling more insecure about their
long-term economic prospects. Young people are also far more likely to be employed in
sectors that were most vulnerable to the lockdown and continue to be most affected, for
example non-food retail, restaurants and hotels, and passenger transport [18]. As noted by
Resolution Foundation, the impact of previous economic recessions has been felt most keenly
by those leaving education and entering employment, and the evidence suggests that this
experience will be repeated with this recession.

Furlough — Aberdeen City: In Aberdeen City, at 30th September there were 9,700 people on
furlough. This is equivalent to a rate of 6.2 per 100 16-64 year-olds compared to the rate for
Scotland of 5.2. It is the second highest rate of all local authorities — only East Renfrewshire
is higher. City of Edinburgh has the third highest rate at 6.1 per 100 16-64 year-olds [12].

Working from home: A high proportion of employees in Aberdeen City are in positions that
can be done from home at 41.4%. This is the 7" highest proportion in Scotland.

Employment and employment sectors: In 2019, there were an estimated 172,000 jobs in
Aberdeen City of which 118,000 (68.6%) were full-time and 54,000 (31.4%) were part-time.
The most common sectors/industries were Human Health and Social Work Activities (16.3% of
jobs), Professional, Scientific and Technical Activities (15.7%), Mining and Quarrying (11.0%)
and Wholesale and Retail Trade; Repair of Motor Vehicles and Motorcycles (10.5%). Just over

13

Page 72


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOWVmOWJlNzgtZDNjMS00M2FmLTlkMzUtZjkxZmUxMTViOGNiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0baeb5afc45d2cf22c31

8% of employees worked in the Accommodation and Food sector, similar to the Scottish
average, and 2% worked in Arts, Entertainment and Recreation. These two sectors have been
most impacted by the virus and lockdown so far [13]. Analysis by Scottish Enterprise which
considers the sectoral make-up within Local Authorities ranked Aberdeen City as the third
highest (after Glasgow City and City of Edinburgh) in terms of potential redundancies with over
10,000 jobs estimated to be at risk in Aberdeen City [19].

Economic activity?: In the year from July 2019 to June 2020, 81.1% of Aberdeen’s working age
population (16-64 years) was classified as economically active compared to 77.1% in Scotland.
A higher proportion of males (84.7%) than females (77.7%) were economically active. Of those
who were economically active, 78.7% were in employment in Aberdeen City compared to
74.6% in Scotland.

Economic inactivity: In the year from July 2019 to June 2020, 18.9% of Aberdeen’s working
age population were economically inactive. A higher proportion of females (22.3%) than males
(15.3%) were economically inactive. Of all of those who were economically inactive, 27.4%
were long-term sick, 25.6% were looking after home/family, 20.2% were students and 12.2%
were retired.Three quarters (75.6%) of those who were economically inactive did not want a
job [13].

Claimant count®: Between March and November 2020, the Claimant Count in Scotland
increased from 114,650 to 210,750 — an increase of 83.8%. In the same period the number of
claimants in Aberdeen City increased from 4,165 to 9,495 — an increase of 128%. This is
eqgivalent to a rate of 6% of the working age population (16-64 years) which is the same as the
rate for Scotland. More claimants in Aberdeen City were male (5,900) than female (3,600)
and most claimants (58.1%) were aged 25-49 years. The number of claimants varies across
the City (Intermediate Zones), being highest in Tillydrone and Torry West which both have 460
claimants and lowest in West End North where there are 50 claimants. However, all areas of
the City have seen an increase since March, with the percentage increase in the number of
claimants ranging from 70% in Torry East to 500% in Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber West
(although the numbers here are still relatively low) [13].

2 Economically active refers to people who are either in employment or unemployed. Economically
inactive refers to people who are neither in employment nor unemployed. This group includes, for
example, all those who are looking after a home or retired.

3 Claimant Count is the number of people claiming benefit principally for the reason of being
unemployed.

14

Page 73


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOWVmOWJlNzgtZDNjMS00M2FmLTlkMzUtZjkxZmUxMTViOGNiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection98852474c0d8f230c03e

Number of claimants in November 2020 and percentage changed
since March 2020

500 600%
500%
400%
300%
200%
100%

0%

h
"
I
t
r
e
e
t
Il
st
st
s
t
h
I
h
"
h
e
h
k
h
h
e
h
Il

< <

s 5s g2
522883

ey

City Centre Wes

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

i
tl

Bucksburn Nortl
s
tl

ol

2
mmmmm

PR NMNNWWSDS
88888888
=]

| |
~m |
i |
e |
—
—
~—1
o |
- |
—
—
—
 m— |
——— |
 —
— |
e |
Tillydrone BT

-oomhill
Northfield
Woodside
Torry East

,,,,,,,,,

Cove Nor

Summerhil
George Street

Torry West

Sheddocks|

Ferryhill Sou

Mi

Cults, Bieldside and M
Hanover No

City Centre E:
Old Aberd:
Hanover Sol

Oldmach;
Kincorth, Leggart and Nigg No

Braeside, Mannofield, Bi

Balgownie and Donmou

Braeside, Mannofield, Broomh
Heathryfold and Middlefield

Kincorth, Leggart al

== November Percentage change2

Source: Nomis Official Labour Market Statistics, Labour Market Profile — Aberdeen City, Claimant Count [13]

Unemployment (model-based): In the year from July 2019-June 2020, the unemployment
rate in Aberdeen City was 2.7% (of those who were economically active). This was lower than
the equivalent rate for Scotland of 3.3%, but slightly higher than the rate of 2.5% in the year
April 2019 to March 2020 [13].

Workless households: In 2019 there were an estimated 13,900 workless households (i.e.
households where no-one aged 16 years or over is in employment) in Aberdeen City — an
increase from 12,800 in 2018. This is equivalent to 16.1% of all households compared to 17.7%
in Scotland. In Scotland (no data available for Aberdeen City), it is estimated that 11.1% of
children are in workless households [13].

Job density: In 2019 there were an estimated 192,000 jobs in the City — equivalent to 1.22
jobs per person aged 16-64 years (compared to 0.82 for Scotland) [13].

Qualifications: Compared to Scotland, Aberdeen City has a higher proportion of its workforce
who are qualified to NVQ4 and above (54.9% in Aberdeen and 45.3% in Scotland) [13].

Modern appenticeships: In 2020 Q2, there were 1,057 Modern Apprenticeships currently in
training. This is down from 1,125 in the same period last year. The percentage of leavers
successfully achieving a Modern Apprenticeship also fell from 80% in 2019 Q2 to 77% in 2020
Q2 [20]

Digital skills: The digital technology sector is growing rapidly and is a key contributor to
economic growth — creating an unprecedented demand for skills with employers across all
sectors. Skills Development Scotland reports that annual vacancies in ICT in Scotland average
13,000, and that 75% of employers reported that they found it difficult to recruit employees
with the right techncial skills or experience [21].  In Scotland, between 2008 and 2018, the
number of teachers whose main subject is Computing Science fell by almost 23%. Similarly,
data from the SQA Annual Statistics Report shows that between 2016-18, National 5
participation in Computing Science fell by 19% (versus Mathematics, which fell by <1%) with a
participation rate at 15% of Mathematics’ participation rate. Participation in Higher Computing
Science fell by 8% over the same period (versus Mathematics, which fell by 1%) with a
participation rate at 22% of Mathematics’ participation rate. Most of the pupils who take

15

Page 74



2.4.

2.5.

Computing Science are males. By the time pupils take the Higher Computing Science
qualification, only 16% of them are female on average; an imbalance that continues as they
move on through university and into industry [22]. In Scotland, 79% of those undertaking
Computing Science courses were males and in 2017, only 23% of digital technology roles were
held by women [21].

Digital skills are also important in non-‘tech’ roles. Estimates from a DCMS*-commissioned
module of the February 2020 Office for National Statistics ‘Opinions and Lifestyle’ survey
found that nearly half (48%) of the working population use ‘basic’ data skills at work a lot, and
just under a quarter (24%) use more advanced skills, such as data analysis and making graphs,
a lot in their current job [23].

Digital technologies are also part of daily life for most people. Reliance on digital technologies
has become even more apparent during the pandemic — working from home, connecting with
friends and family, and undertaking basic everyday tasks such as shopping and banking. A
series of questions relating to digital technology was asked in the City Voice survey. In March
2020, when asked about access to digital tools, 82.1% of City Voice respondents reported
having access to a laptop or PC, 80.6% to a smart phone and 67.5% to a tablet. Overall, 94.6%
of respondents reported having access to at least one of these devices. This is an increase
from 2018 when 90% of respondents reported having access to at least one device with the
largest increase being in access to smartphones (increase from 71% in 2018 to 81% in 2020).
City Voice respondents were also asked a series of questions about their ability to perform
digital tasks. Based on responses, 79% of respondents were identified as having ‘basic digital
skills’ —an increase from 71% in 2018 [24].

Earnings

Average weekly wage: In 2020, the median gross weekly pay for people living in Aberdeen
City was £582.50 — slightly lower than the equivalent for Scotland of £595.00. As in Scotland,
the median weekly pay was higher for males (£621.30) than for females (£529.50). Both males
and females living in Aberdeen earned less than those in Scotland. While the difference for
males was relatively small (£621.30 comapred to £626.30), females living in Aberdeen City
earned considerably less than those in Scotland (£529.50 compared to £562.50). The average
(median) weekly pay decreased between 2019 and 2020 (from £599.50 to £582.50) for people
living in Aberdeen City, while in Scotland it increased from £578.30 in 2019 to £595.00 in 2020
[13].

Living Wage: In 2019 there were an estimated 17,000 people (11.9% of employees) in
Aberdeen City who were earning less than the Living Wage (£9.30). The proportion of
employees earning less than the Living Wage in Aberdeen City has decreased from 18.0% in
2016 [25]. In 2020, there were 47 employers in Aberdeen City who were signed up to the Real
Living Wage [26].

Poverty and deprivation

COVID-19 overview: The pandemic has pushed many people into poverty partly due to
reduced income as result of reduced hours, reduced levels of pay from the furlough scheme
and loss of employment. Analysis by the Legatum Institute suggests that 690,000 more people

4Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport

16

Page 75


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMDc2MTQyNDUtYmJiNy00NTJlLWE0NTktOGQ5MjU5NWY0M2I1IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection8e40b6b023efedcb4d75

across the UK are now in poverty than would have been the case had the pandemic not
occurred [27]. This has not been evenly spread, with certain groups more likely to experience
these negative effects, most often those who were already lowest paid and closest to poverty.

As well as young people, two groups who are likely to be particularly affected are women and
people in Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities. Women tend to work in less
secure and lower paid jobs and have therefore felt the worst effects of the impact on the
labour market. The Institute for Fiscal Studies highlight that mothers are more likely to have
quit or lost their job, or to have been furloughed, compared to fathers since the start of
lockdown, and that the gap between pay and hours for men and women has increased.
People from Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic Communities tend to work in less secure and
lower paid jobs. The Equality and Human Rights Commission argue that this has been further
exacerbated during the pandemic, with people who identified as BAME reporting that they
were less likely to be furloughed and more likely to have been made unemployed [28]. This
has further widened already existing gaps in income and meant that many people from these
communities are more likely to experience poverty.

Linked to a rise in poverty is growing financial insecurity. Research by the Money and Pensions
Service suggests that as many as one in five adults are struggling to pay bills and that people
are increasingly using savings to cover living costs [29]. As the worst affected employees by
the economic disruption have been lower earners who are less likely to have savings to fall
back on when experiencing reduced income, there is a growing trend of financial insecurity.
Figures from the Scottish Household Survey showed an already high level of financial
insecurity in Aberdeen City with 11.1% in 2019 reporting that they “Don’t manage very well
and have some financial difficulties” or “Are in deep financial trouble”. This is compared to
8.8% in Scotland and an increase from 9% in 2018 [30].

Scottish Indext of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD): Based on overall rankings of deprivation (i.e.
All Domains), Aberdeen City’s position has worsened between 2016 and 2020. The number of
datazones in the 20% most deprived areas of Scotland has increased from 22 (out of 283) in
2016 to 29 in 2020, and the number of datazones in the 20-40% most deprived areas of
Scotland has increased from 57 to 65. This means that the proportion of datazones in the 40%
most deprived areas of Scotland has increased from 28% to 33.2%. Conversely, while lower
than in 2016, Aberdeen City still has a relatively high number of datazones in the 20% least
deprived areas of Scotland with 104 (36.7%) datazones in this category [31].

17

Page 76


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNTkyZmUxOGEtYjYxMC00YWU4LTk2ZmYtZTBmZmQ0NjA5YThiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectiond68bd44953c27b93c41b

Number of datazones by SIMD quintile (All domains), 2016 and
2020
113
120 104
100
80 65
60 57
45 44 % 5
40 29
22
-
0
0-20% 20-40% 40-60% 60-80% 80-100%
[2016 2020

Source: Scottish Government, Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation 2020V2 [31]

Relative poverty: In Scotland in 2018/19 an estimated 19% of people in Scotland are living in
relative poverty (below 60% of median income) after housing costs and it is estimated that
56% of those in relative poverty are in working households (i.e. households where at least one
person is working). Itis estimated that 23% of children in Scotland are living in relative poverty
after housing costs [32]. Provisional data for 2018/19 estimates that 5,198 (15%) children in
Aberdeen City are living in Relative Low Income families® [33].

Child poverty: Research published by the End Child Poverty coalition reported that in 2018/19
an estimated 7,471 children (0-15 years) in Aberdeen City were living in poverty (below 60%
median income after housing costs). This is equivalent to 21.5% of children and an increase
from 19.2% in 2014/15 [34].

Universal credit: Between March and November 2020, the number of people on Universal
Credit in Aberdeen City more than doubled from 7,966 in March to 17,829 in November
(provisional). In October 2020, over a 40.2% (6,930) of those on Universal Credit were in
employment [35]. The number of people on Universal Credit varied across the City
(Intermediate Zones) from a low of 68 in West End North to a high of 921 in Tillydrone. In
November 2020, 4,916 people in the South locality were claiming Universal Credit compared
with 5,361 in the North locality and 7,528 in Central.

Food poverty: In March 2020, 6.4% of City Voice respondents reported that, because of lack
or money or other resources, they were hungry but did not eat [24]. In the period April 2018
to September 2019, 30,448 food parcels were distributed from Independent food banks (not
including Trussell Trust) in Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire. This is an increase from 27,062
parcels in April 2017 to September 2018. Across Scotland the impact of COVID-19 has had a
signifiant impact on food security. Research from the Independent Food Aid Network
identified an 113% increase in independent emergency food parcel distribution by
independent foodbanks in Scotland from Febuary to July 2020 [36]. As at 3 December 2020,
of the 21,100 Aberdeen residents who called the COVID-19 crisis line, 5,076 calls required food
assistance with 91% of those resulting from unavailable funds.

5 Relative low-income is defined as a family in low income before housing costs (BHC) in the reference
year. A family must have claimed one or more of Universal Credit, Tax Credits or Housing Benefit at
any point in the year to be classed as low income in these statistics.

18

Page 77


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOWVmOWJlNzgtZDNjMS00M2FmLTlkMzUtZjkxZmUxMTViOGNiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectioncbad380855e3330870eb

Fuel poverty: In 2016-18 an estimated 23% of households in Aberdeen were in fuel poverty
with 12% being in extreme fuel poverty. A higher proportion of those in social housing were
in fuel poverty than those in owner occupied housing (48% compared to 10%) [37]

Homeless applications: In the year 2019-20, there were 1,486 applications under the
Homeless Persons legislation in Aberdeen City Council. This is a decrease of 8.7% (141
applications) on the number of applications in 2018-19 [38].

19

Page 78


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNTkyZmUxOGEtYjYxMC00YWU4LTk2ZmYtZTBmZmQ0NjA5YThiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionf9bf92bafa7069fca698

3.1.

Our People

ND IERO GOODHEALTH QUALITY GENDER 1 0 REDUGED
POVERTY HUNGER AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION EQUALITY

INEQUALITIES
A

(=)

v

16 PEAGE, JUSTICE 17 PARTNERSHIPS

AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

FORTHE GOALS

Demography
Population

Population: In June 2019, Aberdeen City had an estimated population of 228,670 [39]. This
equates to 4.2% of Scotland’s total population. In terms of population size, Aberdeen City is
the 8" largest local authority in Scotland. There are slightly more females (114,873) than
males (113,797) in the city with females making up 50.2% of the population. The population
varies considerably by neighbourhood, ranging from a low of 1,812 in Cummings Park to a high
of 13,535 in Braeside, Mannofield, Broomhill and Seafield.

Population change: Following an 11-year period of year-on-year increases, Aberdeen’s
population peaked in 2015 (230,350) and decreased in each of the 3 subsequent years before
increasing again between 2018 (227,560) and 2019 (228,670).

Population of Aberdeen City, 1998 to 2019

240,000
230,350 228,670
230,000 ’

220,000
210,000
200,000
190,000
180,000
P N PSP

I R R S T I I I SR
PRI LTLES LRI Y
W RT AT AT AR AT AT AR AR AT A AT AP

Source: National Records of Scotland, Population Estimates Time Series Data [40]

Age structure: Compared to Scotland, Aberdeen has a relatively young population. The
median age in Aberdeen is 38 years compared to 43.4 years for Scotland. Comparison of broad
age structures shows that Aberdeen has a higher proportion of working age people (69.1%
compared to 64.5%) and a lower proportion of under 16 year-olds (15.5% compared to 16.9%)
and people of pensionable age (15.4% compared to 18.7%) than does Scotland. Within

20

Page 79


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzMyYjhiYjktM2ExYS00MzMzLTk2MGItMmI0NGE2YTczY2QxIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection231922075b1e21aa9c79

3.2.

Aberdeen, however, the age structure varies considerably by neighbourhood. The proportion
of children (0-15 years) ranges from 25% in Middlefield to 7% in Hanover. The proportion of
16-64 year-olds ranges from 60% in Hazlehead to 86% in George Street and the proportion of
people aged 65+ years ranges from 7% in Old Aberdeen, City Centre and George Street to 25%
in Dyce [41].

Country of birth and Ethnicity: Aberdeen City has a diverse population. Recent figures (year
ending June 2020) from National Records of Scotland estimate that 24.7% of the City’s
population was born outside the UK (compared to 9.8% for Scotland). Of those, it is estimated
that 41.1% are from EU countries and 58.9% from non-EU countries (compared to 50% for
both groups in the year to end December 2019). The estimated proportion of those born
outside the UK has fluctuated in the last few years, from 24% in the year ending June 2017,
down to 19% in year ending June in both 2018 and 2019, before rising again to 24.7% in the
year to end June 2020. [42]. At the time of the 2011 Census, Aberdeen City had the third
highest proportion of non-white ethnic minority people in Scotland at 15.6%. This was more
than double the Scotland rate at 7.6% [43].

Disability/health: Aberdeen City has a slightly higher rate of people (known to the local
authority) with learning disabilities at 5.5 per 1000, compared to 5.2 for Scotland as a whole
[44]. At the time of the 2011 Census, 26.5% of the population reported having one or more
long-term health conditions (compared to 29.9% in Scotland) and 16% reported having a long-
term health condition that limited their activities (compared to 19.7%) in Scotland [43]. In the
Scottish Health Survey (2016-19), 24% reported having a limiting long-term iliness in Aberdeen
City compared to 33% in Scotland. This proportion was higher in females (28%) than males
(19%) [45].

Migration

Migration: Population change is driven by two main components: 1) natural change (births
minus deaths) and (2) net migration (the sum of migration to/from Scotland and internal
migration). It also includes other changes (e.g. changes in prisoner and armed forces
population) although these tend to make up a smaller proportion of changes. The recent
decreases in population were driven by a combination of increased net out-migration (mainly
from Aberdeen City to other parts of Scotland) combined with reduced net in-migration from
overseas, resulting in overall negative net migration to the City. However, while there was still
negative net UK migration between 2018-19, this was lower than in previous years. Also, the
levels of positive net migration from overseas increased, resulting in overall positive net
migration (810 people). In addition, there was also positive natural change (i.e. more births
than deaths) of 328. These combined to result in the increase in population between 2018
and 2019 [46].

21

Page 80



3.3.

Components of net migration, Aberdeen City
4,000
3,000
2,000

= il i s
o TRl

-3,000
2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

@ Within Scotland Rest of UK Overseas M Total net migration

Source: National Records of Scotland, Mid-year Population Estimates, Scotland [47]

Population projections

Population projections: Between 2018 and 2028 the population of Aberdeen is projected to
increase by 1.1% to 230,170. Over the same time period, the population in Scotland is
projected to increase by 1.8%. Most of the increase in Aberdeen City is projected to come
from migration (1%) with natural change accounting for 0.1% of the projected increase.
Across Scotland, between 2018 and 2028, 14 councils are projected to see a population
decrease and 18 councils are projected to see a population increase [48].

Projected change by age group: The projected change is not consistent across all age groups.
In Aberdeen City, decreases are projected in the 0-15 year age group (-3.2%), the 25-44 year
age group (-2.1%) and in the 45-64 year age group (-2.6%). Increases are projected for the
other age groups, with the largest increase being in the 75 years and over age group (16.1%).
In terms of size, however, 25 to 44 years is projected to remain the largest age group with the
75+ years group projected to remain the smallest group [48].

Population by age group by year, 2018 and 2028

80,000 30.0%
1

70,000 25.0%
60,000 20.0%
50,000 ] 15.0%
40,000 10.0%
30,000 K 5.0%

20,000 ’\ 0.0%

10,000 F F -5.0%

- -10.0%

Oto 15 16 to 24 25to 44 45 to 64 65to 74 75 and over

[ 2018 34,833 27,357 75,101 54,737 19,297 16,235

2028 33,702 28,713 73,500 53,329 22,077 18,849

% change Aberdeen -3.2% 5.0% -2.1% -2.6% 14.4% 16.1%

=—0=% change Scotland -6.0% -0.9% 3.1% -5.5% 14.4% 25.4%
[0 2018 2028 % change Aberdeen  ==0==% change Scotland

Source: National Records of Scotland, Population projections for Scottish Areas (2018-based) [48]

22

Page 81


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNzMyYjhiYjktM2ExYS00MzMzLTk2MGItMmI0NGE2YTczY2QxIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectiona5553fab04c0325c0291

3.4.

3.5.

Projected change by gender: The projected change differs by gender. The male population
is projected to increase by 2.5% over the period, while the female population is projected to
decrease by 0.2%. This would mean that by 2022, the number of males in Aberdeen City
would, in contrast to recent trends, be higher than the number of females [48].

Births

Births: In 2019 there were 2,260 births in Aberdeen City — a decrease of 3.3% from 2,337 births
in 2018. Of these births, 1,114 (49.3%) were female and 1,146 (50.7%) were male. Between
2018 and 2019 the standardised birth rate fell from 8.2 to 7.9 per 1,000 population and is the
equal third lowest (along with Dundee) in Scotland. Glasgow City (7.7) and City of Edinburgh
(6.7) have the lowest standardised birth rates. The standardised birth rate for Scotland is 9.1
per 1,000 population. The most common age group for mothers is 30-34 years and the least
common age group for mothers is 0-19 years. Compared to 20 years ago, more births are now
to older mothers, with the number of births to women aged 0-19 years decreasing by 68.3%
and the number of births to women aged 40 years and over increasing by 96.5%. The number
of births varies across the city. The Intermediate Zone with the highest number of births in
2018 (2019 data not yet available) was Tillydrone (85 births) and the Intermediate Zone with
the lowest number of births was City Centre East (22) [49]. The rate of births ranged from a
low of 5.9 per 1,000 to a high of 17.4 per 1,000 [50].

Number and rate of births, Aberdeen City

3000 12
2
g 2% O\O—O—MOM .-
£ ey
£ 2000 8 £
> 1500 6 ©
7] 2
o]
£ 1000 s
=} Ee]
2 c
(3]
&

500

o

1999 [
2000 T
2001 T
2002 T
2003 T
2004 N
2005 D]
2006

2007 |
2008 T |
2000 T |
2010

2011 ]
2012 ]
2013 T |
2014 ]
2015 |

2016

2017 B
o N

2018
2019

= Male Female =—O=Birth rate

Source: National Records of Scotland, Vital Events Reference Tables [51]

Deaths

Deaths: In 2019 there were 2,161 deaths in Aberdeen City — a slight decrease from 2,170
deaths in 2018. Of these deaths, 1,067 (49.4%) were female and 1,094 (50.6%) were male.
The age-standardised death rate was 1,134.5 per 100,000 population compared to 1,159.6 in
2018. In Scotland, the standardised death rate decreased from 1,139.5 in 2018 to 1,107.6 in
2019. The highest number of total deaths were in the 85-89 years age group. For females,
the most common age group was 90 years and over and for males the most common age group
was 80-84 years [51].

Death rates vary across the city. Based on Intermediate Zones, the most recent data is for
2017-19 (3-year aggregate). Age-sex standardised rates range from a high of 2,257 per

23

Page 82


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYTMwMjEwODAtMWQ0Zi00MzZmLThjOWQtYmQ1OGY2ZWY0ZWY5IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionda59b3b41b765bb70377
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYTMwMjEwODAtMWQ0Zi00MzZmLThjOWQtYmQ1OGY2ZWY0ZWY5IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectiona33200a72f07c3cf94de

3.6.

100,000 population in Woodside to a low of 692 in Kingswells. The equivalent rate for
Aberdeen City is 1,164 [50].

Early deaths (15-44 years, all causes): The rate for early deaths also varies across the City. In
the period 2017-19, the rate of early deaths ranged from 0.0 per 100,000 population in
Balgownie & Donmouth East and Oldmachar West to 300 per 100,000 population in Torry
West. The equivalent rate for Aberdeen City was 94.3 [50].

COVID-19 deaths: In 2020, there were 191 deaths in Aberdeen City where COVID-19 was
mentioned on the death certificate (93 female and 98 male). Of these, 97 were in a care home
setting, 86 were in a hospital setting and 8 were at home/non-institutional setting [52]. In
Scotland, the COVID-19 death rate in the most deprived areas is 2.2 times that in the least
deprived areas (based on data from 1°t March to 31t October 2020) [53]. Analysis by National
Records of Scotland also shows that deaths among people in the South Asian ethnic group
were more than twice as likely to involve COVID-19 as the White ethnic group [54].

Estimated life expectancy at birth

Estimated life expectancy: In general, Life Expectancy (LE) at birth is higher for females than
for males. In 2017-19 in Aberdeen City LE at birth was estimated to be 81.4 years for women
and 77.1 years for men, i.e. on average, a baby girl born in Aberdeen City in 2017-19 could
expect to live for 81.4 years while a baby boy born in Aberdeen City in the same period could
expect to live for 77.1 years. The estimated LE at birth for females is slightly higher than that
for Scotland (81.1 years), while for males it is slightly lower than for Scotland (77.2 years) [55].
Across Scotland, life expectancy has increased since the early 1980s but has now remained
virtually unchanged since 2012-14, with most of Scotland’s council areas experiencing a slow-
down or a stall in life expectancy growth since that time.

Estimated life expectancy at birth, Aberdeen City and Scotland
82.0
81.0 — = —- ——— = -9
80.0 .———*“"‘M
79.0
78.0
77.0 —$—— T ——t—¢
76.0 /—~
75.0
74.0
73.0
72.0
2007-2009 2008-2010 2009-2011 2010-2012 2011-2013 2012-2014 2013-2015 2014-2016 2015-2017 2016-2018 2017-2019
—@— Males - Aberdeen Females - Aberdeen Males - Scotland —@— Females - Scotland

Source: National Records of Scotland, Life Expectancy in Scotland, 2017-19 [55]
Estimated life expectancy by deprivation: Estimated life expectancy is strongly associated
with deprivation. In Aberdeen City in 2014-2018, estimated life expectancy for men in quintile

1 (most deprived) was 71.2 years compared to 81.5 years for men in quintile 5 (least deprived)
— a difference of 10.3 years. For women, the difference in estimated life expectancy was less

24

Page 83


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYTMwMjEwODAtMWQ0Zi00MzZmLThjOWQtYmQ1OGY2ZWY0ZWY5IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection43806e402c0ad78884f7

3.7.

marked, at 77.1 years for women in quintile 1 compared to 84.4 years for women in quintile 5
- a difference of 7.3 years [55]. Comparison with data from 2013-2017 shows that the gap in
estimated life expectancy between most and least deprived quintiles in Aberdeen City has
increased for males (previously 9.7 years) and decreased slightly for females (previously 7.4
years).

Estimated life expectancy at birth by SIMD quintiles, 2014-2018

90.0 844
83.1 :
85.0 81.5
81.0 s 795 81.0 81.0
80.0 76.7 :
o 74.7 758
g 750 71.2
>
70.0
65.0
60.0
Overall 1 (most 2 3 4 5 (least
deprived) deprived)
[0 Aberdeen Males Aberdeen Females

Source: National Records of Scotland, Life Expectancy for Administrative areas within Scotland, 2016-2018 [56]

The relationship between estimated life expectancy and deprivation means that for both
males and females there are important differences in estimated life expectancy at birth
depending on where you live in Aberdeen City. The most recent data available for smaller
geographies (Intermediate Zones) is for the period 2015-2019 (5-year average). For males,
estimated LE at birth ranges from a low of 69.2 years in Seaton to a high of 83.9 years in West
End North — a difference of 14.7 years. For females it ranges from a low of 72.3 years in
Woodside to a high of 88.2 years in Balgownie & Donmouth East — a difference of 15.9 years.
[50].

Healthy life expectancy

Healthy life expectancy: While Life Expectancy (LE) counts total years of expected life
regardless of level of health, Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) represents the number of years
that an individual can expect to live in good health. In2017-2019, males in Aberdeen City had
an estimated life expectancy at birth of 77.1 years and a healthy life expectancy of 60.6 years,
giving an expected period of ‘not healthy’ health of 16.5 years. This means that a baby boy
born in 2017-19 could expect to live 78.6% of his life in healthy health (compared to 79.9% for
Scotland). In 2017-2019, females in Aberdeen City had an estimated life expectancy at birth
of 81.4 years and a healthy life expectancy of 62.5 years, giving an expected period of ‘not
healthy’ health of 18.9 years. This means that a baby girl born in 2017-2019 could expect to
live 76.8% of her life in healthy health (compared to 76.3% for Scotland). Healthy life
expectancy in Aberdeen City has decreased for both males and females in the past 4 data
periods. In Scotland, HLE is strongly associated with deprivation. HLE for females in the most
deprived areas in Scotland (SIMD deciles) is 50.1 years compared to 71.6 years for females in
the least deprived areas — a difference of 21.5 years. For males, HLE for those in the most
deprived areas is 47.0 years compared to 72.1 years for males in the least deprived areas —a
difference of 25.1 years [56].

25

Page 84


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYWY4YjIxNTItZmJjYy00ZDc3LTgzZWYtOGNhZTZiNzYzYWQwIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection5e2595613dd5aeb54792

3.8.

Healthy Life expectancy, males and females, Aberdeen City
70.0 682
68.0 663
66.0 64.6
63.4
» 64.0 62.5
©
e 64.0
>
62.0 68
60.0 61.5
61.0 60.6
58.0
56.0
2013-2015 2014-2016 2015-2017 2016-2018 2017-2019
—0— Aberdeen Males Aberdeen Females

Source: National Records of Scotland, Healthy Life Expectancy in Scotland [56]

Households

Households: In 2019, there were 108,381 households in Aberdeen City an increase of 0.7%
from 107,586 households in 2018, and the same as the rate of increase for Scotland as a
whole. Since 2001, the number of households in Aberdeen has increased by 11.8% which is
lower than the average rate for Scotland of 13.7%. The average household size was 2.03
compared to 2.15 for Scotland [57].

Household projections: Between 2018 and 2028, the number of households in Aberdeen City
is projected to increase from 107,586 to 110,884. This is a 3.0% increase, which compares to
a projected increase of 5.0% for Scotland as a whole. In 2028, the household type “One adult”
is projected to remain the most common in Aberdeen City (38.4% of all households in 2018
and 38.9% in 2028) and the household type “One adult, one or more children” is projected to
remain the least common (3.7% in 2018 and 3.6% in 2028). Between 2018 and 2028, the
household type “Three or more adults” is projected to see the largest percentage decrease (-
5.0%) and the household type “Two or more adults, one or more children” is projected to see
the largest percentage increase (5.0%). Based on 5-year age groupings, between 2018 and
2028, the 25 to 29 age group is projected to see the largest percentage decrease (-23.6%) and
the 35 to 39 age group is projected to see the largest percentage increase (28.8%). In terms of
size, however, 35 to 39 years is projected to become the largest age group of a Household
Reference Person (HRP), compared to 30-34 years in 2018 [58].

26

Page 85



Number of households

Projected change in households by age group of Household
Reference Person, Aberdeen City, 2016 and 2028

14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000

o

v 7 s
NSO I I S R R S U S R

28%

5%

(9:\9 ,,)b‘ ?,Q »‘b‘ (0»9 O)B 5,)% bv S A> D fbv

12018 12028 —O— % change

17%

2%

.

&

40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
-10%
-20%
-30%

Percentage change

Source:

27

National Records of Scotland, Household Projections for Scotland, 2018-based [58]

Page 86




4.1.

4.2,

Children & Young People
Child population

Child population: In 2019, there were 35,423 children (0-15 years) in Aberdeen City — 15% of
the city’s population [41]. The number and proportion of children varies by neighbourhood.
In terms of numbers, Old Aberdeen has the smallest child population (299) while Cults,
Bieldside and Milltimber has the largest (2,274). Hanover has the smallest proportion of
children (7.3% of the population of the neighbourhood) and Middlefield the largest (25.2%).

Children (0-15 years) as a percentage of total neighbourhood
population, 2019

30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

Dyce I T— ]

Aberdeen City E 11
Sheddocksley T

Cove T T ]

Summerhill EEDTTTTTTTT)

Culter T T

Bucksburn BT
Kincorth, Leggart & Nigg T 1]
Torry I T ]
Hazlehead NI

Hanover EOTT]
George Street T 171
Seaton HENITIT]
Froghall, Powis &..F0 1771
Ferryhill BT
Danestone I T
Ashgrove T
Garthdee NI
Hilton ERIEETIT]
Braeside, Mannofield, ...l 1]
Balgownie & Donmouth E T 71
Mastrick I
Woodside BT
Midstocket EE T
Heathryfold B 11
Cults, Bieldside &.. 1T 1
Denmore NI
Tillydrone B ]
Kingswell
Cummings Park B T
Northfield BT T
Middlefield BT T

City Centre EI 1]

Old Aberdeen EITT71
Rosemount ET 11
West End I
Oldmachar BT
Stockethill IR

[0 0-4 years [15-9years [110-15 years

Source: National Records of Scotland, Small Area Population Estimates, 2019 [41]

Looked after children

Looked after children (LAC): On 31 July 2019 there were 542 looked after children (LAC) in
Aberdeen City — equivalent to 1.4% of the 0-17 years population. This is the same as the rate
for Scotland. Most (60%) looked after children in Aberdeen City are boys, and over a quarter
(26%) are under 5 years old. Five percent of looked after children are known to be from an
ethnic minority group and 26% are known to have a disability [59].

Number and rate of looked after children

800 20
700 5
600 15 =2
00 S

= 5

(] o

€ 400 10 8

=) i

Z 300 o
200 5 &
100 5

0 0

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

[ Number —O—Aberdeenrate —O— Scotland rate

Source: Scottish Government, Children’s Social Work Statistics, Scotland, 2018-19 [59]

28

Page 87



Accommodation: Foster care is the most common setting for looked after children in
Aberdeen City. At 36%, the proportion of looked after children in kinship care (at home with
parents or with friends/relatives) is lower in Aberdeen City than in Scotland (54.2%) [59]. In
2018-19, 24.9% of LAC had more than 1 placement in the past year — higher than the rate for
Scotland of 19.7% [15].

Looked after children by type of accommodation, Aberdeen City and
Scotland, 2019

In other residential care = 6.5%
In local authority home/ Voluntary Home 3.0%

In other community LT 4%

With foster carers purchased by LA | 35.6%
With foster carers provided by LA [ 14.9%
With friends / relatives [ 18.1%
At home with parents [17.9%
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Scotland @ Aberdeen city

Source: Children’s Social Work Statistics 2018/19 [59]

LAC educational outcomes: In 2018/19 82.4% of looked after children in Aberdeen City left
school with 1 or more qualification at SCQF level 4 — higher than the rate of 69.8% for Scotland
and an increase from 76.0% in 2017/18 [60]. In 2018/19 the attendance rates for looked after
children in Aberdeen City was 88% compared to 87% for Scotland. The exclusion rate (per
1,000 pupils who were looked after) was higher in Aberdeen (248 per 1,000 pupils compared
to 152 per 1,000 pupils in Scotland). In Aberdeen, as in Scotland, the exclusion rate was higher
in males (279 per 1,000 pupils) than females (202 per 1,000 pupils) [60].

LAC positive destinations: In 2018/19, 76% of looked after children in Aberdeen City had a
positive destination (based on 9-month follow-up survey and children who were looked after
for the full year) compared to 71% in Scotland. This is lower than the rate for 2017/18 of 79%
and lower than the rate for all children of 93.2% [60].

Number and percentage of Looked After Children in a Positive
Destination (follow-up survey), 2018/19
40 9% 100%
73% 74% ? 76%
30 65% : : 80%
o &
& 60% &
e 20 c
o
= 40% 5
10 20%
11 15 23 24 34
0 0%
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
== Number Percentage

Source: Scottish Government, Education Outcomes for Looked After Children 2018/19 [60]

29

Page 88


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZTVjNzZhY2ItNGI4OC00NTkwLWI4NDEtNmQ0ZmFjM2U2NTAyIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection8956384c9d0845310000

4.3.

Child protection: At 31% July 2019, there were 119 children on the Child Protection Register
(CPR) in Aberdeen City. This is an increase from 68 in 2018. The rate of children on the CPR
(per 1,000 children aged 0-15 years) was 3.4 compared to 2.8 in Scotland [59]. Provisional
data shows the most common concerns identified at case conferences of children who were
on the child protection register at 31 July 2019 were neglect (59) and parental substance
(both drug and alcohol) misuse (45). In 2018-19, 6.2% of child protection registrations were
re-registered within 18 months — higher than the rate in 2017-18 of 2.7%. In Scotland 7.2% of
child protection registrations were re-registered within 18 months. This is an increase from
6.1% in 2017-18 [15].

Number and rate of children on the Child Protection Register,
Aberdeen City and Scotland, 2009 to 2019

200 6.0
| 5.0

4.0
[ . it K 3.0

R e

1.0
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 00
=0 Number 182 119 96 87 92 73 98 118 80 68 119
Aberdeenrate 5.6 3.7 3.0 2.7 2.8 2.2 2.9 3.5 2.3 1.9 34
Scotland rate 2.9 2.7 2.8 29 29 3.2 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.8

150 ’

100

Number

5

o

0

Rate per 1,000 0-15 years

[0 Number Aberdeen rate Scotland rate

Source: Children’s Social Work Statistics 2018/19 [59]

Mental health and wellbeing

COVID-19 — Overview: The mental health of children and young people has been particularly
badly hit this year. Public Health Scotland have reported a negative impact in sleep, behaviour,
mood, physical activity, concentration, and eating for children aged between 2 and 7. In
addition, 4 in 10 children this age had not spoken to their friends at all between March and
July [61]. Similarly, poor outcomes were also reported amongst those aged between 18 and
24, with this group more likely to report stress, loneliness, not coping well, and suicidal
thoughts or feelings. 15% of people in this age group reported suicidal thoughts or feelings
compared to 11% for the Scottish population as a whole [62]. Recent data also suggests a
possible rise in eating disorders, with the number of referrals® of children and young people
to the NHS Grampian CAMHS Eating Disorder specialist team increasing by 280% in 2020
compared to 2019. [63].

Aberdeen City COVID - 19 Wellbeing Survey: An extensive wellbeing questionnaire was issued
to all pupils, families and staff associated with Local Authority run educational settings in order
to establish of how the Lockdown period had impacted wellbeing and how members of the
school community were feeling about a return to school buildings. 5374 children and young
people (a return rate of just under a quarter) completed the survey with responses spread
from Nursery through to S6. The full report can be found here (INSERT LINK).

Almost all learners felt very safe learning at home with 75% selecting the highest response
and over 97% scoring 4 or above. This extremely high percentage dipped a little when asking

6 Referral covers all of Grampian and not just Aberdeen City.

30

Page 89




how safe children and young people felt about a return to school with only 80% reporting
confidence.

18% of respondents reported poor sleep.

28% of children and young people reported that they found it difficult to manage homework
and schoolwork easily. Further analysis suggests that those in the senior phase of secondary
felt their most acute challenges in this area and uncertainty around SQA grades is likely to
have impacted young people considerably.

Learners were asked what would support their wellbeing further. Responses were extremely
mixed with only a few common themes emerging. These included:

e Seeing friends more often/playing with friends
e  Going back to school
e Exercise

Impact on Parents and Carers: Although 90% of families felt confident in supporting their
child during lockdown (suggesting that the supports from schools, the provision of a Digital
Hub and access to support through the Virtual School was effective) just under 10% of
respondents didn’t. Just under 30% reported that their stress levels were not manageable
and over 40% unable to make time in their lives for activities that were good for them. Just
under 20% of respondents struggled to find meaningful ways of staying connected to their
friends and family.

SALSUS Survey: Information on mental health and wellbeing is provided through the Scottish
Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) with the most recent data
being for 2018 [64]. The previous survey which contained local authority data was in 2013. In
SALSUS, emotional and behavioural problems are measured using the Goodman Strengths and
Difficulties (SDQ) questionnaire and mental wellbeing is measured using the Warwick-
Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale (WEMWB).

SDQ: The questionnaire includes five scales — emotion, contact, hyperactivity/inattention,
peer relationships and pro-social behaviour. Scores are grouped into bands ‘normal’,
‘borderline’ and ‘abnormal’. In 2018, 34% of 13 year-olds and 39% of 15 year-olds in Aberdeen
City had an overall ‘borderline/abnormal’ score. This is an increase from the previous survey
(2013) when the figures were 23% and 32% respectively [65] .

31

Page 90



4.4.

Percentage with an overall borderline/abnormal score

50%
40% 34%  36% 9% 3% %
30% bag 2%
20%
o

0%

13 year olds 15 year olds 13 year olds 15 year olds
2018 2018 2013 2013

D Aberdeen Scotland

Source: Scottish Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) 2018: Summary findings for Aberdeen City
Council [65]

WEMWABS: The WEMWABS gives a mean wellbeing score based on responses to statements
concerning their mental wellbeing. The lowest possible score is 14 and the highest is 70. In
2018 the average wellbeing score for 13 year-olds was 48.15 and for 15 year-olds it was slightly
lower at 46.47. These scores are lower than the equivalent scores in 2013 (50.56 and 47.66
respectively), but slightly higher than the scores for Scotland [64].

Mean wellbeing score (WEMWBS), Aberdeen City and Scotland,
2018
52 50.56
50 48.15 48.07 47.66
48 4647 4573
46
44
42
13 year-olds 15 year-olds 13 year-olds 15 year-olds
2018 2018 2013 2013
[ Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: Scottish Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) 2018: Summary findings for Aberdeen City
Council [64]

Child and adolescent mental health (CAMHS): The NHS in Scotland provides mental health
services for children and young people with a wide range of mental health conditions including
Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), anxiety, behaviour problems, depression and
early onset psychosis. This treatment is provided through Child and Adolescent Mental Health
(CAMH) services. In the quarter ending September 2020, 343 patients were seen in the
Grampian Health Board. Of these 85.7% were seen within the 18 week target period
(compared to 60.6% in Scotland). In the month to end September 2020 there were 394
patients waiting to be seen, of these 15 (3.8%) had been waiting over 18 weeks [66].

Education
COVID-19 — overview [67] : A wealth of research continues to emerge around the impact
of the current pandemic on children and young people. Young People are a particularly

vulnerable group who will be significantly impacted by COVID-19. There is widespread

32

Page 91



agreement that those who leave education over the next few years will be more negatively
impacted than their peers who left school pre-lockdown. There are some groups of young
people who will be impacted more than others and these include:

e Those who are disabled - potential for less extensive pathways being available to support
transition and employment opportunities

e  Girls — most likely to leave school and take up relatively low skilled jobs in sectors which
have diminished

e Those living in poverty as levels of poverty and all of the risk associated with living in
poverty will have been exacerbated by the pandemic. The gap will have widened.

e Those experiencing poverty for the first time (Aberdeen is currently a redundancy hot
spot)

e Those who are BAME — a community more likely to be unemployed, on zero hour
contracts, and occupying low paid and in ‘at risk’ roles and so there is likely to be reduced
employment opportunities

e Care Experienced Young People — already at a disadvantage in accessing employment,
training, etc and sustaining that. They will be pushed further down the labour queues.

School and pupil numbers: In 2019 there were 13,915 primary school pupils and 9,106
secondary school pupils in Aberdeen City. There were also 135 pupils enrolled in Special
Schools. The total number of pupils was 23,156. 34.5% of primary pupils and 36.6% of
secondary pupils had additional support needs. The most common reason for support for both
primary and secondary pupils was English as an additional language. In 2019, 5,338 (23%) of
all pupils in Aberdeen City did not have English as their main home language. The three main
home languages (other than English) are Polish, Arabic and Russian [68].

Attendance: Percentage attendance is calculated in relation to the total number of possible
attendances (half-days). In 2018/19, average attendance in primary schools in the City was
94.5% and for secondary schools the rate was 91.6%. The respective rates for Scotland were
94.5% and 90.7%. There was variation in attendance rates by school. For secondary schools
in the City, attendance rates ranged from a low of 82.2%% (Northfield Academy) to a high of
94.5% (Cults Academy) [69].

Exclusions: In 2018/19 there were 1,221 cases of exclusion in Aberdeen City — an increase
from 1,072 in 2016/17. This is equivalent to a rate of 52.9 exclusions per 1,000 pupils. The rate
of exclusions was higher in secondary schools (105.8) than in primary schools (19.7). The
number of pupils excluded was also higher in secondary schools (481) than primary schools
(145) [70].

Attainment — Achievement of Curriculum for Excellence (CfE) Levels: Previously classed as
experimental statistics, this label has now been removed. Data on achievement against
expected levels (Early Level, First Level, Second Level, Third level or better and Fourth Level) is
given at four stages — P1, P4, P7 and S3 — in five areas: reading, writing, listening and talking,
literacy and numeracy. In 2018/19, with a few exceptions, the proportion of pupils in
Aberdeen City achieving the expected level is similar to or lower than the equivalent
proportion for Scotland as a whole [71].

Percentage of pupils achieving expected levels

| 1 | pa P7 s3 s3

33

Page 92



Thi
Early First Second Le\llr:: Fourth
Level Level Level Level
or better
. Aberdeen City 78% 78% 78% 86% 56%
Reading
Scotland 82% 78% 80% 91% 55%
. Aberdeen City 76% 74% 72% 85% 51%
Writing
Scotland 79% 73% 74% 90% 52%
Listening Aberdeen City 86% 87% 85% 86% 57%
and talking Scotland 87% 85% 86% 91% 57%
Aberdeen City 73% 71% 70% 83% 48%
Literacy
Scotland 76% 70% 71% 88% 48%
Aberdeen City 82% 77% 74% 84% 60%
Numeracy
Scotland 85% 77% 76% 90% 59%

Source: Scottish Government, Achievement of Curriculum for Excellence Levels 2018/19 [71]

Achievement of expected levels varies by deprivation. In Aberdeen City in all subject areas, a
smaller proportion of those in the most deprived 20% (SIMD 2016) achieved the expected level
than those in the least deprived 20%. As an example, the chart below shows the percentage
of S3 pupils achieving Fourth Level in each of the five areas [71].

Percentage of S3 pupils achieving CfE level 4 or better by SIMD
quintile

90.0%
80.0% 75.0% _— 77.8% 77.4%
70.0% 67.5%
60.0% — — —
50.0%
40.0% .
30.0% 26-1% 22.5% 2544 22.5% it
20.0%
10.0% D D

0.0%

English Reading English Writing English Listening & Talking English Literacy Numeracy
ESIMD Quintile 1 - most deprived SIMD Quintile 2 E1SIMD Quintile 3 ESIMD Quintile 4 1SIMD Quintile 5 - least deprived

Source: Scottish Government, Achievement of Curriculum for Excellence Levels 2018/19 [71]

National 4: The number of young people being presented for a National 4 has decreased from
3,528 in 2016 to 2,593 in 2020. Attainment currently sits at 88% which is lower than the pass
rate in 2016 which sat at 94% [72].

34

Page 93



Percentage of Pupils Attaining National 4s Aberdeen City

26% 94.0% 94.4%
94%

0, 0,
92% 90.8% 90.1%
90% 88.40%
88%
86%
84%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Source: ACC, Strengthening the Senior Phase Report [72]

National 5: The number of young people achieving A-C at National 5 has increased in 2020 to
88.7%. This is higher than in the previous four years at 78.6% in 2016 and the 5 year low of
76.7% in 2019 [72].

Percentage of Pupils Attaining National 5s (at A-C)

90% 88.73%
85%
80% 78.6% 18.9% 77.9%
76.7%
- i i i
70%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Source: ACC, Strengthening the Senior Phase Report

Higher: The attainment rate for Higher is up by 3.53 percentage points and is highest since
2015. This sits significantly higher than the attainment rate for Scotland at 78.9% [72].

Higher Grade Attainment Rate

82% 80.7%

80% 28.0% 79.0% TR 78.9%
78% 77.2% 77.0% 76.8% 77.2%

76% 74.8%

74%

70%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

@ Aberdeen [Scotland

Source: ACC, Strengthening the Senior Phase Report

35

Page 94



Positive destinations:  Follow-up destinations for school leavers are for outcomes
approximately 9 months after the end of the school year. The figures for 2018/19 relate to
early April 2020 and therefore will not reflect the full impact of the Coronavirus pandemic. In
2018/19, 93.2% of school leavers had a positive follow-up destination, an increase from 91.9%
in 2017/18 and slightly higher than the rate for Scotland of 92.9%. The most common
destinations were higher education (38.4% of school leavers), further education (27.9%) and
employment (23.8%) [73].

The percentage of school leavers in a positive follow-up destination varied by deprivation
(based on SIMD) with 88.1% of school leavers in the most deprived quintile having a positive
destination compared to 97.5% of those in the least deprived quintile [73].

Percentage of school leavers in a positive destination at follow-up
by SIMD quintile, Aberdeen City

100% 97.5%
98%
96%

. 0 93.2%
94% 92.5% 91.5%
92% 90.0%
90% 88.1%
88%
86%
84%
82%

0-20% (Most 20-40% 40-60% 60-80% 80-100% (Least Total
Deprived) Deprived)

Source: Scottish Government, Summary statistics for follow-up leaver destinations, No. 2: 20 [73]

Participation in Education Employment or Training: The Skills Development Scotland
Participation measure provides information on the current position of all children and young
people between the age of 16 to 19 years, where they remain in school or have since left.
2020 figures indicate that participation has remained steady over the past 3 years from 89.8%
in 2018 to 89.9% in 2020 [74].

Participation of Disabled Young People: Participation of disabled young people has increased
over the past 5 year from 84.3% in 2016 to 87.9% in 2020. This is slightly lower than
participation among non-disabled young people who in 2020 had 90% participation rates [74].

% Particpation of disabled 16-19 year olds
92% . 89.6% 89.9% 89.8% 90.0%
90% 89.0%
% 87.9%
86% 84.3%
34% 83.1%
82%
80%
78%
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
[ Disabled Non -Disabled

Source: Skills Development Scotland: Annual Participation Measure [74]
36

Page 95


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMDM0OWY5ZGMtMWE5Ni00OGIwLWFhYjUtYTExMWFjNjZhMWE4IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection1c9d716ae00cbb69e350

4.5.

Participation levels in the 20% Most Deprived Communities: In 2020, participation rates were
lower for those in the 20% most deprived areas (81.4%) than for those in the 20% least
deprived areas (95.3%). While the percentage of young people ‘participating’ in the least
deprived 20% remained constant between 2019 and 2020, the proportion of young people
‘participating’ in the 20% most deprived areas dropped substantially (from 90.5% in 2019) [74].

% Particpation of 20% most and least deprived 16-19 year olds
120%
100% 96.2% 96.2% 95.3% 00.59 95-7% 95.3%
? 78.9% 80.5% 81.2% 81.4%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
[ 20% Most Deprived 20% Least Deprived

Source: Skills Development Scotland: Annual Participation Measure [74]

Foundation apprenticeships (FAs): Four cohorts of pupils have participated in FAs. In
Aberdeen City there are 93 FAs currently in training in Cohort 4 (started in 2019). This is an
increase from 17 in Cohort 3 (started in 2018). The total number of FAs across the city has
increased from 21 in 2016/18 to 128 in 2020/21 [75].

Free school meals (FSM): In February 2020, 51.1% of primary school pupils in Aberdeen were
registered for FSM in mainstream local authority schools. All P1-P3 primary school pupils are
entitled to free school meals. The proportion of P4-P7 pupils who were registered for FSM
varied by school, ranging from a low of 0% to a high of 56.3%. At secondary school level, a
total of 12.5% of pupils were registered for a FSM, although again there was variation between
schools with the proportion of pupils registered ranging from a low of 7.9% to a high of 25.9%.
At Aberdeen City’s special schools 24.4% of pupils were registered for FSM.  As of 12
December 2020, 4,238 free school meal vouchers had been provided city-wide since March
2020.

Children — early years

COVID-19 Impact: There is concern that COVID-19 and in particular, the infection control
measures, including lockdown, have had a profound impact on 2-4 year-old children in
Scotland. This is an age group that sees rapid development and it is important that children
are able to develop fully at each stage to reach their full potential. Issues such as restrictions
on mixing with other children, some children not being able to access good quality outside
space easily and limited access to children’s services could result in poorer outcomes for some
young children [76].

Smoking during pregnancy: In 2016/17 to 2018/19 (3-year aggregate), 13.7% of women in the
City with a known smoking status were recorded as a ‘current smoker’ at their first antenatal
appointment. Rates of smoking during pregnancy are lower in Aberdeen City than in Scotland

37

Page 96


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOTk5YjM2Y2MtNTBkZC00ZDIyLWFkNTItODg2YWM2NDVmMDhkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0ea5b9bc901a8e688900

and have decreased gradually over the past few years. Rates of smoking during pregnancy
vary across the City (HSC localities) at 11.9% in Aberdeen South, 13.2% in Aberdeen Central
and 16.1% in Aberdeen North [50]. Based on Intermediate Zones, rates range from a low of
0% in Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber West to a high of 35.7% in Torry East [49].

Maternities with drug use: In the period 2016/17 to 2018/19 (3-year aggregate) there were
43 maternities with drug misuse recorded. This is equivalent to a rate of 17.1 (crude rate per
1,000 maternities) which is higher than the rate for Scotland of 15.4. The rate of maternities
with drug use had been consistent at around 20 per 1,000 maternities before the decrease in
the most recent figures [50].

Rate of maternities with drug misuse

25.0
g 203 19.9 20.1 19.9 20.4 20.2
£ 200 P———r =C= 2 Nl
E 19.8
g 150 176
S 15.4 15.4
7 10.0 13.5 13.2 14.1
g
£ 50
3]
3 00
(&)

2010/11to  2011/12to  2012/13to  2013/14to  2014/15to  2015/16to  2016/17 to
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

=@==Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: ScotPHO Profiles [50]

Healthy birth weight: In 2016/17 to 2018/19 (3-year aggregate), 85% of babies born in
Aberdeen City were a healthy birth weight compared to 83.8 % in Scotland. The proportion of
babies who are a healthy birth weight has remained relatively stable over the past few years
— ranging between a low of 83.9% to a high of 85.1% in the period from 2010/11 to 2012/13
t0 2016/17 to 2018/19. Rates vary across the City (Intermediate Zones) ranging from a low of
79.5% in Bucksburn North to a high of 90.8% in Garthdee [50].

Premature births: In 2016/17 to 2018/19 (3-year aggregate), 8.2% of births in Aberdeen City
were premature, similar to the rate for Scotland of 8.4%. The rate of premature births varied
across the City (Intermediate Zones) from a low of 3.8% in Cove South to a high of 14% in
Garthdee [50].

Breast-feeding: In 2017/18 to 2019/20 (3-year aggregate), 39.2% of babies in the City were
exclusively breast-fed at the time of their 6-8 week review. This is significantly higher than the
Scottish average of 31.2%. While the overall rate of breastfeeding for the City has increased
over the past few years, there is variation across the City (based on Intermediate Zones) with
rates ranging from a low of 19.0% in Heathryfold & Middlefield to a high of 68.2% in Cults,
Bieldside & Milltimber East [50].

Exposure to second-hand smoke: In 2017/18 to 2019/20 (3-year aggregate), 7.7% of babies
were reported as being exposed to second-hand smoke at their 6-8 week review. This is similar
to the rate for Scotland of 7.8%. The percentage of babies exposed to second-hand smoke has
decreased in both Aberdeen City and Scotland. In previous years, the rate in Aberdeen had
been consistently higher than that in Scotland [50].

38

Page 97


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionffbf319a9115d413c24e
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection283f9831d5ca08e3d897
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOTk5YjM2Y2MtNTBkZC00ZDIyLWFkNTItODg2YWM2NDVmMDhkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionfb784753ee80491aa25c
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOTk5YjM2Y2MtNTBkZC00ZDIyLWFkNTItODg2YWM2NDVmMDhkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionfcbc435a255d264d0688

Immunisation: In Scotland there is a national target for 95% of children to complete courses
of routine childhood immunisations by 24 months of age. Rates of babies who have completed
the primary and booster courses for these immunisations by 24 months are lower in Aberdeen
City than in Scotland [77]. Uptake of immunisation varies by Intermediate Zone. In 2017-19,
percentage uptake of 6-in-1 at 24 months ranged from 92% in Tillydrone to 100% in Balgownie
and Donmouth East and uptake of MMR ranged from 81% in City Centre East and Culter to
97% in Balgownie and Donmouth East [50].

Percentage completed primary and booster course by 24 months,
2019
98% 96.7% 97.0%

20% 94.0% 94.3% 94.5% 93.5%
94% -
91.8% 91.7% 1.59

92% g 91.5%
90.2%
90%
86%
6-in-1 MMR1 Hib/MenC PCVB MenB (booster)
[ Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: Public Health Scotland, Childhood Immunisation Statistics Scotland [77]

Developmental concerns at 27-30 months: During 27-30 month reviews, the health
professional (normally a health visitor) assesses children’s developmental status and records
the outcome (e.g. no concern, concern newly suspected as a result of the review, or concern
or disorder already known prior to the review) against each of nine developmental domains
(social, emotional, behavioural, attention, speech language & communication, gross motor,
fine motor, vision and hearing). In 2016/17-2018/19, 6% of children in Aberdeen City had one
or more concern identified at the 27-30 month review. This is lower than the rate for Scotland
of 15.9%. The percentage of children with one or more developmental concern varied across
the City (Intermediate Zones) ranging from a low of 0.0% in Dyce, Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber
West and Balgownie & Donmouth East to a high of 15.9% in Torry West [50].

Unintentional injury in children under 5 years: In 2016/17 to 2018/19 there were 145
emergency hospital admissions for unintentional injury in children under 5 years (3-year rolling
average number). This is equivalent to a rate of 1,205 per 100,000 population — higher than
the equivalent rate for Scotland of 1,063. Both the number and rate of unintentional injuries
have fallen in recent years [50].

39

Page 98


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOTk5YjM2Y2MtNTBkZC00ZDIyLWFkNTItODg2YWM2NDVmMDhkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection532c46ab7bad16141bd1
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionaf0809bd4f673b7d27e3

4.6.

Number and rate of unintentional injuries in under 5s

1,800 188 189 75 75 o 200
1,600 158 180
1,400 145 160
8 1,200 140
g 1,000 120 5
o 100 £
% 800 g0 2
Z 600 60
400 0
200 20

2010/11 to 2011/12 to 2012/13 to 2013/14 to 2014/15 to 2015/16 to 2016/17 to
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Number  ==@== Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: ScotPHO Profiles [50]

Child health
The National Picture

Child Health Service Usage since March 2020: The start of lockdown in Scotland in late March
through to April saw a steep fall in the use of health services among the general population of
around 50-60%. Among children aged 0-14 years this fall was more stark at around 60-80%.
This was seen universally across all paediatric services but was most pronounced in Out of
Hours GP consultations.

Since the beginning of the pandemic, levels of attendance have been below those seen in
previous years, and while attendance and use of paediatric emergency and unscheduled
services has started to recover, there remains to be variable reduction in use among those
aged 0-14 years.

After falling significantly during lockdown, service use had a gradual recovery from late April
and as Scotland moved through the three phases of the routemap, with the 5-14 age group
generally showing the largest increase. However, following further restrictions being imposed,
firstly in the West of Scotland (01 September), then Nationally (07 October), followed by the
implementation of the 5-tier Strategic Framework (02 November), emergency and
unscheduled service use has once again fallen, particularly for the under 5 age group.

Adult Emergency service use generally recovered more quickly than service use by children,
with use comparable with pre-covid levels for most emergency and unscheduled health
services during late August. Adult service use has subsequently declined with the further
restrictions, but not to the same extent as children. While it is acknowledged that the levels
of health service usage may be lower due to the change in public liberty during lockdown and
subsequent restrictions, the rate at which services are being utilised as lockdown eases varies
substantially among different age groups, service type and in different geographical areas.

Healthy weight/BMI: In 2018/19, valid height and weight measurements were recorded for
1,480 Primary 1 children in Aberdeen City (equivalent to 62.7% of the 5 year-old population).
Of these, 79.5% were classified as ‘healthy weight’ — slightly higher than the figure for Scotland

40

Page 99


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection9fdd417fe8c11a9bd1ea

of 76.6%. 19.7% of P1 children in Aberdeen City were classified as being at risk of overweight
and obesity (compared to 22.4% in Scotland and 23.7% in 2017/18) [78]. (It should be noted
that at 62.7%, coverage in 2018/19 was lower than in previous years. In 2017/18 coverage was
86.5%). In 2018/19, 79.5% of P1 children were classified as having a healthy weight (BMI
between the 5% and 95% of the 1990 UK reference range for their age and sex) compared to
76.6% for Scotland. The percentage of P1 children who were a healthy weight varied across
the City (Intermediate Zones) from 61.9% in George Street to 100% in Hanover North [50].

Percentage of P1 children at risk of overweight or obesity

30% .
25.3% 23.7%

25% 21.8% 20_4%4/0\21.7% 211%  21.9%
0, —
19.7%

15%

10%
5%
0%
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

==@==Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: Public Health Scotland, Data and Intelligence, Primary 1 Body Mass Index (BMI) statistics, Scotland [78]
Overweight is classified as BMI >=85" centile and <95t centile
Obese is classified as BMI >=95% centile

Active travel to school: In 2019, the most common mode of travel to school (excluding
nursery) in Aberdeen City was walking (47.3%), followed by being driven (21.6%) and bus
(13.2%). Mode of travel varied by type of school. Walking was the most common mode of
travel for both primary (51.2%) and secondary (49.5%) pupils, while nursery children were
most commonly driven to school (41.7%) with 39.1% walking. Pupils at SEN schools most
commonly travelled by an ‘other’ mode (89.7%). The most common mode of travel for pupils
at independent schools was being driven (38.2%) [79].

Mode of transport by school type, Aberdeen City, 2019

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%

40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Scooter /

Walk Cycle Skate Park & Stride Driven Bus Taxi Other

@ Nursery 39.1% 5.3% 2.7% 5.6% 41.1% 4.4% 1.3% 0.6%
Primary 51.2% 6.0% 2.6% 11.5% 24.0% 3.9% 0.7% 0.1%
Secondary 49.5% 2.9% 0.2% 3.9% 14.1% 28.1% 1.1% 0.3%

[ SEN 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 8.7% 89.7%
Independent 10.7% 24.3% 38.2% 20.2% 0.8% 5.2%

E Nursery Primary Secondary [ESEN Independent

Source: Sustrans, Hands Up Scotland 2019 [79]

41

Page 100



While still relatively high, the proportion of children who walk to school has fallen since 2010,
with a noticeable drop between 2011 (58.3%) and 2012 (49.7%). Since 2010 the proportion of
children cycling to school has increased (from 1.8% to 4.5%) as has the proportion of children
using park and stride (from 7.4% to 9.9%).

Dental health: In 2018/19, 69.7% of P1 pupils in Aberdeen had no obvious tooth decay —
slightly lower than the average rate for Scotland of 71.6%. Across the City (Intermediate
Zones), the proportion of P1 pupils with no obvious tooth decay ranged from a low of 38% in
City Centre East to a high of 91% in Midstocket. In the same period, the proportion of P7
children with no obvious tooth decay was 75.5% compared to 72.9% in Scotland. Again, there
was substantial variation across the City with proportions ranging from a low of 40% in City
Centre East to a high of 96% in Braeside, Mannofield and Seafield East. Since 2012/13 the
percentage of P1 children with no obvious decay has increased slightly (from 68% to 70%). The
proportion of P7 children with no obvious decay increased markedly between 2014/15 (48%)
and 2016/17 (74%) and has increased further over the past two years to 76% [50].

Percentage of P1 and P7 children with no obvious tooth decay

90%
80%
70% e 7 —— @
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

==@==P1 Aberdeen City P1 Scotland P7 Aberdeen City  ==@==P7 Scotland

Source: ScotPHO online profile tool [50]

Teenage pregnancies: Asin Scotland as a whole, the rate of teenage pregnancies (15-19 years)
in Aberdeen City has reduced significantly over the past 10 years from 55.2 per 1,000
population (crude rate per 1,000 females aged 5-19 years) in 2006-08 to 31.1 in 2016-18 —
similar to the rate for Scotland of 30.5 — although there was a very slight increase between
2015-17 (30.8) and 2016-18 (31.1). [50]. The percentage of first-time mothers who are aged
19 years and under varies across the City (Intermediate Zones) ranging from 0.0% to 19.2%
[80]. The rate of pregnancies for females under 16 years has also decreased (although there
was a slight increase between 2015/17 and 2016/18) from 10 per 1,000 females aged 13-15
years in 2009/11 to 2.7 in 2016/18. This is the same as the rate for Scotland [81].

42

Page 101


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionfc637c345c160d090402
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection45fbea12bc1f0ee8fb03
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection45fbea12bc1f0ee8fb03
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiOTk5YjM2Y2MtNTBkZC00ZDIyLWFkNTItODg2YWM2NDVmMDhkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection9336e87846e28b0d1b23

4.7.

Percentage of first time mothers aged 19 years and under,
Intermediate Zones, 2016/17-2018/19

259

% 19.2%

20%

15%

10%

5% H

0% o - nannenEnANARAEN | :
t £555Egg s SErSEEEESETEEEES -1 £35%¢
£ ES NS g5fefEEFToEe05 Ereg fte3d
55258536 % 35355388 55%E £38 S ¥l F32et
82275557 £5 87808 THE S% .38 e
g8 2% 38° g 253 ££9 &35 £ts 2

Source: Statistics.gov.uk [80]

Smoking, alcohol, and drug use

Smoking: Data on smoking is available from the Scottish Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and
Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) [64]. The most recent data is from 2018 and gives results for
13 year-olds and 15 year-olds.

In the 2018 survey, 1% of 13 year-olds reported being regular smokers (usually smoking one
or more cigarettes per week) and 2% of 13 year-olds reported being occasional smokers
(sometimes smoke cigarettes but less than one per week). Almost a quarter (24%) of 13 year-
olds said they felt it was ‘ok’ for someone their age to ‘try smoking to see what it’s like’ — an
increase of 6% from the previous survey and 5% higher than the rate for Scotland. Smoking
was more common in 15 year-olds with 8% reporting they were regular smokers (an increase
of 3% from 2013) and 6% reporting they were occasional smokers (also an increase of 3% from
2013). Half (50%) of 15 year-olds said they felt it was ‘ok’ for someone their age to try smoking
—an increase of 1% from the previous survey and 5% higher than the rate for Scotland.

Pupils who had reported being regular smokers, were asked where they usually obtained their
cigarettes/tobacco. The most common responses were ‘get someone else to buy them’ at 74%
(up 22% from 2013 and 26% higher than Scotland) and ‘get given cigarettes by
friends/family/carer’ at 62% (6% lower than 2013 and 13% higher than Scotland).

E-cigarette use: In addition to tobacco smoking, pupils were also asked about e-cigarette use.
16% of 13 year-olds and 36% of 15 year-olds reported either trying or using e-cigarettes (an
increase of 11% and 24% respectively since 2013). With regard to regular use, 3% of 13 year-
olds and 3% of 15 year-olds reported using e-cigarettes once a week or more.

Alcohol use: Data on alcohol use is also available from the Scottish Schools Adolescent
Lifestyle and Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) [64]. In 2018, 5% of 13 year-olds and 18% of 15
year-olds reported that they had drunk alcohol in the week prior to the survey (increase of 2%
from 2013 for both age groups). 60% of 13 year-olds and 84% of 15 year-olds thought it was
‘ok’ for someone their age to ‘try drinking alcohol to see what it’s like’ (an increase of 15% for
13 year-olds and 2% for 15 year-olds from the 2013 survey). When asked if they had ever been
drunk, 50% of 13 year-olds and 71% of 15 year-olds reported that they had been drunk, with
4% of 13 year-olds and 21% of 15 year-olds saying they had been drunk more than 10 times.

43

Page 102


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYTFjM2IyMjAtMWYwOC00NmEyLWFmN2MtZDgyODhlMDdmOTQ4IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection341e11600bc504ac1c22

2% of 13-year-olds and 13% of 15 year-olds reported that they had managed to buy alcohol in
the last 4 weeks.

Drug use: Data on drug use is available from the Scottish Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and
Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) [64]. In 2018, 5% of 13 year-olds and 17% of 15 year-olds
reported using drugs in the last month —an increase of 4% and 10% respectively from the 2013
survey. 1% of 13 year-olds and 6% of 15 year-olds reported usually taking drugs at least once
a week. When asked if they felt it was ‘ok’ for someone their age to ‘try taking cannabis (the
most commonly used drug) to see what it’s like’, 10% of 13 year-olds and 43% of 15 year-olds
said yes (increases of 7% and 29% respectively from 2013). When asked if they had been
offered drugs, 27% of 13 year-olds and 56% of 15 year-olds reported that they had been
offered drugs (increases of 14% and 22% respectively from 2013). When asked to rate how
easy it would be to get illegal drugs if they want to, 31% of 13 year-olds and 64% of 15 year
olds reported that it would be ‘very’ or ‘fairly’ easy to get illegal drugs. Pupils who had used
drugs were asked if they felt that they needed to get help because of their drug use. 8% of 15
year-olds felt they needed help and 40% of 15 year-olds would like to stop taking drugs.

Percentage of pupils who reported using drugs in the last month

20%
17%

15%
12%

10%
5%

) ,—\
0%

13 year olds 15 year olds

4%

[ Aberdeen Scotland

Source: Scottish Schools Adolescent Lifestyle and Substance Use Survey (SALSUS) 2018: Summary findings for Aberdeen City
Council [64]

Alcohol- and drug-related hospital admissions, 11-25 years: In the period 2017/18-2019/20
the rate (per 100,000 population) of alcohol-related hospital admissions for young people aged
11-25 years was 295.0 compared to 271.9 in Scotland. This is the second consecutive year of
increase following a sustained period of decreases. In 2016/17-2018/19, the rate of drug-
related hospital admissions for young people aged 11-25 years was 93.3 in Aberdeen City
compared to 146 in Scotland. The rate of drug-related hospital admissions has increased in
both Aberdeen City and Scotland in the last two periods [50].

44

Page 103



4.8.

Rate of alcohol and drug-related hospital admissions, 11-25 years,
Aberdeen City and Scotland

700
C
2 600
=
2 500
o
S 400
o
o 300
=
5 200
©
-4 0
o N o> % > o © A % ) o
$° o AN N A oy N N AN A & ok
< )4 )¢ ) ¥ )4 N} )4 '\ N4 )4
v : v v v v v v v v v v
\Q Q‘b 0% \\9 \\/\’ \'\’/\’ \'3’ \'\/b‘ \'\(/') '\/b </\ ,\c/b
& N & ® o & NG & N ) ) S
D D > w° '19 D D D »
==@==Aberdeen alcohol Scotland alcohol Aberdeen drugs ==@==Scotland drugs

Source: ScotPHO online profile tool [50]

Juvenile crime

Juvenile crime: In 2019/20, 714 young people (under 18 years) were identified as being
involved in criminality — up from 672 in 2018/19. In the same period, the total number of
Offences increased from 1,481 to 1,595 and the number of CrimeFiles increased from 889 to
1,012. These increases come after a four-year period of consistent decreases. In 2019/20, 435
of the juveniles were aged 8-15 years and 279 were aged 16-17 years. Approximately two-
thirds (477) were male and one third (237) were female. The most common type of offence
for 8-15 year-olds was Miscellaneous offences, while for 16-17 year-olds it was Other Crimes.
A quarter (25.5%) of juveniles appeared on more than one CrimeFile [82].

April 2020 to July 2020: Data for the first quarter of 2020/21 shows a decrease in the number
of young people accruing charges. Between April and July 2020, 185 8-17 year olds committed
offences, compared to 361 in the same period of 2019/20. 275 crimes/offences were
committed by 8-17 year olds in the first quarter of 2020/21 while in the same period in
2019/2020 there were 525 crimes/offences committed by the same age group [83]. Of the 8-
15 year-olds, 67 were dealt with by Police Direct Measures. Of these, 25 were given a Recorded
Verbal Juvenile Warning, 19 were referred to Social Work (EEl), 14 were given a Restorative
Justice Letter and 9 were referred to Barnardos (EEI).

45

Page 104


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNjJkYzNjMTAtYjA5Yi00Y2ViLWE0OWQtYTAzNDA0OTljOGY3IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionbcc6e74fe1e00d82abd2

Juveniles and Offences, April 2020 to July 2020

300 275
250

185
200 171

150
104

2 93
100 9

50

8-15 years 16-17 years 8-17 years

[ Juveniles Crimes and offences

Source: Youth Justice Unit Management Data [83]

Anti-social behaviour: In 2019, a total of 2,761 Youth Anti-social Behaviour calls were
reported to the Police. This is a considerable increase from 1,740 in 2018. In the year to
September 2020, there were 1,426 calls reported to the Police [84].

Referred to Children’s Reporter on offence grounds: in 2019-20 there were 114 young people
referred to the Children’s Reporter on offence grounds — an increase from 96 in 2018-19 [85]

46

Page 105


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNjJkYzNjMTAtYjA5Yi00Y2ViLWE0OWQtYTAzNDA0OTljOGY3IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0ce1fb388b95aabe6ac0

5.1.

Adults

Health behaviours

COVID-19 overview: There are indications that the pandemic and subsequent restrictions
have increased levels of drug and alcohol misuse. This may be due to a range of factors
including changing work and leisure patterns, stress and anxiety and a reduction in support
services and networks. A report published by Scottish Families affected by Alcohol and Drugs
reported an 80% increase in Helpline contacts between 18" March to 30" November 2020
compared with the same period the previous year. This included a 34% increase in contact
from family members and a 244% increase in contact from people seeking support for their
own alcohol and drug use [86].

Alcohol: In the period 2016-19, 25% of adults in Aberdeen City were drinking above the
guideline recommendations of 14 units per week. This is higher than the rate for Scotland of
24% but lower than the rate for 2014-17 which was 29%.

Alcohol-related hospital admissions: In 2019/20 there were 1,557 alcohol-related hospital
admissions in Aberdeen City — equivalent to a rate of 711 per 100,000 population which is
higher than the rate for Scotland of 673 but a decrease from the rate of 759 in 2018/19. Across
the City (Intermediate Zones), the rate of alcohol-related hospital admissions ranged from a
low of 150 in Cove South to a high of 2,120 per 100,000 population in Tillydrone [50].

Alcohol-related hospital admissions by Intermediate Zone,

c 2,1
kel
2000
o
>
2 1500
Q-1000 o10
o
]
=}
8 > - DDDDDUUUUU
S 0 DDDDDDDDDD |
Q £ 88002 a8 R CEE R L EEE 2 ESCETEEEEETLEGSSLEERZIZE 2
5003939350888 255052 E 52 53 o0 =1 s O 0oLt 0ol S LS00 9 30
] o= eE&=zz2 woAA2OYg5owW S § Q90 &E o0=92 0,28 a 0o @ 202 g Ye © 5 0 =
- w_c-g“‘é“o‘,_mg.g.cz wgmwEEugzzfmIZm"GZg&ZEU‘§EE£>g>§325$5&1wﬂ
B 4 == - = £ = o @ c >0 £ >
] QEZEEELC=32Y RIBTTSE EEYPYs Y CEETILLEZTYSTLOSELESEBLE QO YE=
e 8355536v85¢8 ESE68° 532z $383TESg8zePe< 3":'9:;,»—5E TP3F
CEg=22g % c EnE %% o ©Y2=2c3eE*2 3= 5 3 $8¢
c PO o v 9T ~ L s 8% [ w < O aa<( oo s
0L U UT @ w O + O o< 3w » ‘ T
8TTzTo s O =0 3t £ 238 T L0 2 TL <
D DD ] o & I a3 |4 2 o @ @
BT UV D kel a0 a0 @ o < 8 o
23 CC T g ¢ 9 c = = ey B
) o S - - =) [ = ££ T
H - - [ = S5 3
s - < < =] c
% ) e r=] £ < 3 <}
o £ L o ol £ 0 23 =
5 S S S 3 o o
3 O @ £ £ > o 2z
~ = 5 o

N
o

Source: ScotPHO online profile tool [50]

The average number of alcohol-related Emergency Department presentations in Aberdeen
City (ARl and RACH) pre-lockdown (2/1/20 — 18/3/20) was 39 per week, whilst the average
attendances post-lockdown was 31.8 per week. Note this data is extracted using common
alcohol related terms in the presenting complaint and some ICD-10 codes [87].

Alcohol-specific deaths: In 2019 there were 30 alcohol-specific deaths in Aberdeen City —
down from 51 deaths in 2018. As the number of alcohol-specific deaths can fluctuate
substantially on a yearly basis, a 5-year rolling average number is also given. For the period
2015-2019 this figure was 38 — down slightly from 41 in 2014-2018 [88]. Rates of alcohol-
related deaths are available for the period 2014/18. In Aberdeen City the rate of alcohol-

47

Page 106




related deaths was 19.9 per 100,000 population — similar to the rate for Scotland of 20.6 per
100,000 population and an increase from 18.4 in 2013/17. Rates of alcohol-related deaths
vary (HSC localities) from 16.9 per 100,000 population in Aberdeen North, to 17.3 in Aberdeen
South and 27.2 in Aberdeen Central [50].

Drugs use prevalence: Data on prevalence of problem drug use is limited. In 2015/16 it was
estimated that 1.5% of Aberdeen’s population have a problem drug use compared to 1.6% in
Scotland [89]. Estimated prevalence of problem drug use is higher in males (2.0%) than
females (0.9%).

Drug-related hospital admissions: In 2016/17-2018/19 there were 438 drug-related hospital
admissions (3-year rolling average number) which is equivalent to a rate of 182 per 100,000
population, compared to 200 per 100,000 population in Scotland. Following a period of
decreasing drug-related hospital admissions, the rate has increased in the past two periods —
from 166 in 2014/15-2016/17. The rate of drug related hospital admissions varies (HSC
localities) from 222 per 100,000 population in Aberdeen Central, to 168 in Aberdeen North
and 147 in Aberdeen South [50].

Drug-related deaths: The number of drug-related deaths in Aberdeen City increased
substantially in the last few years, reaching a high of 54 in 2017. In each of the last two years,
the number of drug-related deaths has fallen and was at 44 in 2019. Of these, 31 were males
and 13 were females. Compared to 2008, females make up a higher proportion of drug-related
deaths (11% in 2008 compared to 29.5% in 2019). As the number of deaths can fluctuate
substantially on a yearly basis, annual rates for a 5-year period are also given. In the period
2015-19, the average annual rate for drug-related deaths was 0.21 deaths per 1,000
population (compared to 0.19 in 2014-18). This is higher than the rate from Scotland (0.18 per
1,000 population) and the 7" highest average annual rate of drug deaths of all local authorities
in Scotland (improvement from 5™ highest in 2018). In Aberdeen City, as in Scotland, drug-
related deaths were highest in the 35-44 year age group (0.63 per 1,000 population in 2015-
2019) [90].

Number of drug-related deaths, Aberdeen City

o0 54
52

>0 45 46 44

40

31
30 27 29 26
24

20 16

10

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Source: National Records of Scotland, Drug Related Deaths in Scotland [90]

Naloxone Provision: For Aberdeen City community, the number of Naloxone kits distributed
to persons at risk, family/friends and service workers varied from an average of 15.17 per week
pre-lockdown to 15.3 post lockdown (26 March 2021).

48

Page 107


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMWEwZjUxZTQtNmM1ZS00OGI1LWJmMjMtNzg1ZjkwYjU3M2NkIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection99e8c07ce73196152b00

5.2.

Referrals to Substance Misuse Service: Pre lock down there was on average 11 referrals per
week to the Integrated Drug Service, whereas post lockdown this reduced to 10.11 per week.
The average number of referrals to Integrated Alcohol Service pre-lockdown was 15 per week,
and post-lockdown was 11.57 per week.

Smoking: In the period 2016-19, an estimated 18% of adults in Aberdeen City were current
smokers compared to 17% in Scotland. A higher proportion of males (20%) than females (17%)
were smokers. The percentage of adults who are current smokers has decreased from 23% in
2014-17. Itis estimated that 5% of adults use e-cigarettes (6% males, 4% females) [45].

Perrcentage of adults who are current smokers
30%
25%
‘;

20% = O
15%
10%

5%

0%

2014-17 2015-18 2016-19
==@==All adults Males Females

Source: Scottish Health Survey, [45]

Obesity: In 2016-19 it was estimated that 23% of the City’s adult population is obese (classified
as a BMI of 30+). This is lower than the rate for Scotland of 29% and a decrease from 25% in
2014-17 [45].

Physical activity: In the period 2016-19, 70% of adults in Aberdeen City were meeting the
recommended guidelines for physical activity (150 minutes of moderate activity or 75 minutes
of vigorous activity per week) compared to 65% for Scotland. Twenty-two percent had low or
very low levels of physical activity and 9% had some activity [45]. Based on data from the
Scottish Household Survey, in 2019 82% of adults in Aberdeen City had taken part in some
form of physical activity (including walking) in the previous month. When walking was
excluded, the proportion dropped to 56%. The most common activities were walking (at least
30 minutes) at 65%, multi-gym/weight training at 19%, and running/jogging and swimming
both at 13% [30].

Mental health

COVID-19 - impact on mental health: As a result of social isolation caused by lockdown, the
health impacts of COVID-19, and the broader impact on the economy and society, mental
health is an area of particular concern. According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS)
Opinions and Lifestyle Survey, 70% of people in the UK are very or somewhat worried about
the effect of COVID-19 on their life. Longitudinal analysis of the Understanding Society data
also showed a rising number of participants experiencing mental health problemes, rising from
23.3% in 2017-19 to 36.8% in April this year. However, there are also significant differences
between population groups, with several demographic groups experiencing particularly poor

49

Page 108



mental health as a result of the pandemic. Some of the most impacted groups are children
and young people; older people who are isolated; people with pre-existing mental health
problems; people with long-term disabling physical health conditions; single parents;
transgender people; unemployed people and those in insecure employment; Black, Asian, and
minority ethnic communities; and women [62].

The ONS carries out the Opinions and Lifestyle Survey, which asks about the impact of
Coronavirus on multiple aspects of people’s lives including mental health and wellbeing.
Results are reported at NUTS 2 level. The North East Scotland region included both Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire. Although sample sizes are small there are high levels of loneliness
and anxiety, as well as low levels of happiness in North East Scotland [91].

Dementia: Alzheimer Scotland estimate that there are 90,000 people with dementia in
Scotland with around 3,000 of these being under the age of 65 years [92]. In 2019, dementia
and Alzheimer’s disease were the leading cause of death for females in Aberdeen City (13.2%
of all female deaths) and the second most common cause of death for males (8.0% of all male
deaths). Dementia and Alzheimer’s was also the leading cause of death for females in Scotland
(14.4%) and the second most common cause of death for males (7.6%) [93].

Prescriptions for anxiety/depression/psychosis: In 2019/20, 37,975 people in Aberdeen City
were prescribed drugs for anxiety, depression or psychosis. This is equivalent to 16.6% of the
population — lower than the proportion for Scotland of 19.7%. Consistent with trends in
Scotland, the proportion of people receiving prescriptions for these conditions has increased
in recent years, from 13% in 2010/11. The proportion of people prescribed drugs for anxiety,
depression or psychosis varied by HSC locality, at 15.6% in Aberdeen South and Aberdeen
Central to 18.9% in Aberdeen North [50].

Psychiatric patient hospitalisations: In 2016/17-2018/19 there were 573 (3-year rolling
average number) patients discharged from psychiatric hospitals in Aberdeen City. This is
equivalent to a rate of 257 per 100,000 population — similar to the rate for Scotland of 256 per
100,000 population. Rates varied across the City (HSC localities), at 201 in Aberdeen North,
241 in Aberdeen South and were highest in Aberdeen Central at 349 per 100,000 population
[50].

Deaths from suicide: In 2019 there were 25 probable suicides in Aberdeen City (20 male and
5 female). The number of suicides in the City peaked at 43 deaths in 2015 [94]. For the period
2014-2018 (5 year aggregate) the rate of 13.8 per 100,000 population is the similar to the rate
for Scotland of 13.2 per 100,000 population [94]. The rate of deaths from probable suicide
varied by HSC locality. In 2014-2018 the rates per 100,000 population were 10.9 in Aberdeen
South, 13.3 in Aberdeen North and 18.7 in Aberdeen Central [50].

50

Page 109


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMzRmZDZhZGYtNTE3Ni00ZWU5LWE0YzAtZWFiZDk5YTllOWQ0IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection4e2d66fa13d36d7990d2

5.3.

Number of deaths from probable suicide
50 32
31.4
o 312 31 31
40
35 30
29.4
30 | e g 29
25 28.6 | :
20 28 = 28
74 :

15 27
10 "

5

0 25

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1 Male Female 5 year moving average

Source: National Records of Scotland, Probable suicides: Deaths which are the result of intentional self-harm or events of
undetermined intent [94]

Social Isolation: Figures for Social Isolation are collated from the Primary Referral Reasons
for the Links Practitioners service. This number we would predict to be much higher as most
Social Isolation cases may go undetected or unrecorded. However, against other referral
reasons for Links Practitioners - Social Isolation is in the top 5.

Mental Health and Wellbeing: In 2019 the majority of respondents (70%) to the Health and
Social Care Service Users Survey 2019 were satisfied or very satisfied with their mental health
and wellbeing while a further 15% were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied and the remaining
15% are dissatisfied or very dissatisfied. Those that dissatisfied or very dissatisfied are more
likely than average to be male (19%) and aged under 60, 60 to 69 or 90+ (21%, 22% and 29%,
respectively) [95].

Key diseases

Key diseases: In 2019, cancer and circulatory diseases (such as coronary heart disease and
stroke) together accounted for over half (54.5%) of all causes of death in Aberdeen City. In
2019, almost a third (30.5%) of male deaths and over a quarter (28.6%) of female deaths were
caused by cancer, and 25% of male deaths and 24.8% of female deaths were caused by
circulatory diseases. Leading causes of death are given for specific disease classifications (e.g.
types of cancer and circulatory diseases are listed separately). In 2018, Ischemic heart diseases
were the leading cause of death for males (12.3% of a male deaths), followed by dementia and
Alzheimer disease (8.0% of all male deaths). For females, dementia and Alzheimer disease was
the leading cause of death for females (13.2% of all female deaths), followed by
cerebrovascular disease (9.8% of all female deaths).

Cancer: In 2016-18 there were 1,261 new cancer registrations in Aberdeen (3-year rolling
average). In contrast to the broad stable/downward trend in Scotland, the rate of new cancer
registrations in Aberdeen City has increased and at 675 per 100,000 population is at its highest
level for 10 years. The rate of cancer registrations varies by HSC localities, at 662 per 100,000
population in Aberdeen South, 677 in Aberdeen North and 690 in Aberdeen Central [50].

51

Page 110



5.4.

Rate of new cancer registrations

g N

E 650 — = - o= = —

>

g 600 632 639

o 550

8

o 500

=t

5 450

Q.

@ 400

& 2006t0 2007to 2008to 2009to 2010to 2011to 2012to 2013to 2014to 2015to 2016 to

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

=@==Aberdeen City Scotland

Source: ScotPHO online profile [50]

Cancer early deaths: In 2016-18 there were 287 early deaths (<75 years) from cancer (3-year
rolling average number). This is equivalent to a rate of 165 per 100,000 population — slightly
higher than the rate for Scotland of 156 per 100,000 population. Overall, the rate of early
deaths from cancer has decreased over the last 10 years (from 191 per 100,000 population in
2006-08). The rate of early deaths from cancer varies across the City (Intermediate Zones),
from a low of 58 per 100,000 population in Balgownie & Donmouth East to a high of 308 in
Sheddocksley [50].

Coronary heart disease (CHD): In 2017/18-2019/20 there were 7373 patient hospitalisations
with coronary heart disease (3 year rolling average number). This is equivalent to a rate of 390
per 100,000 population — higher than the rate for Scotland of 372 per 100,000 population. In
both Aberdeen City and Scotland, the rate of CHD patient hospitalisations has decreased over
the past 10 years. The rate of CHD hospitalisations varies by Intermediate Zone, from a low of
176 per 100,000 population in Ferryhill North to a high of 777 in Tillydrone [50]. In 2016/18
the rate of early deaths (<75 years) from CHD was 50.8 per 100,000 population in Aberdeen
City. This is the same rate as Scotland. The rate of early deaths from CHD varied (Intermediate
Zones) from a low of 0.0 in Braeside, Mannofield and Seafield East to a high of 160 per 100,000
population in Hanover South [50].

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD): In 2016/17-2018/19, the incidence’ of COPD
in Aberdeen City was 229 (3-year average number). This is equivalent to a rate of 150 per
100,000 population which is lower than the rate for Scotland of 174 per 100,000 population.
In 2016-2018 there were 113 deaths (3-year average), which is a rate of 76 per 100,000
population — similar to the rate for Scotland of 75 per 100,000 population. In 2016/17 to
2018/19 there were 374 (3-year rolling average number) patient hospitalisations in Aberdeen
City. This is equivalent to a rate of 244 per 100,000 population — lower than the rate for
Scotland of 287. The rate of patient hospitalisations for COPD varied across the City
(Intermediate Zones) from a low of 33 per 100,000 population in Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber
East to a high of 939 per 100,000 population in City Centre East [50].

Hospitalisations

Emergency hospitalisations: In 2017-19 there were 14,669 emergency patient hospitalisations
in Aberdeen City (3-year rolling average) — equivalent to a rate of 7,024 per 100,000

7 Total number of patients with a first admission in 10 years who were discharged from hospital or
died.

52

Page 111


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiM2VmNTAxYjctYjc3Yy00NTUwLWFjOTYtZWU1ODU1ZmM5ODA1IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection564b782d0e1ba9d13705
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection58681d80175e5a34a4fb
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection58681d80175e5a34a4fb

5.5.

population. This is lower than the rate for Scotland of 7,624. The rate of emergency patient
hospitalisations has been gradually decreasing over the past 10 years, from 7,813 per 100,000
population in 2007-09 to the current level of 7,024. Over the same period, the rate in Scotland
has increased (from 7,531 in 2007-09). The rate of emergency patient hospitalisations varies
across the City (Intermediate Zones) ranging from a low of 4,448 per 100,000 population in
Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber West to a high of 11,532 in City Centre East [50].

Recent data (provisional) suggests that the number of emergency hospital admissions may
have been impacted by COVID-19, particularly at the start of lockdown. For example, in April
2020 there were 1,292 emergency admissions compared to 1,837 in April 2019. Total
admissions for the period April to September were 9,546 in 2020 compared to 10,895 in 2019
[96].

Patients aged 65+ years with multiple emergency hospitalisations: In 2017-19 there were
1,866 patients aged 65+ years with 2 or more emergency hospitalisations in Aberdeen City (3-
year rolling average number). This is equivalent to a rate of 5,334 per 100,000 population
which is lower than the rate for Scotland of 5,456 and a slight increase from the rate of 5,240
per 100,000 population in 2016-18. Rates vary across the City (Intermediate Zones), ranging
from a low of 2,517 in Kingswells to a high of 9,365 in Northfield [50].

Accident and Emergency Attendances: In 2019/20 there was a slight reduction in accident and
emergency attendances in Aberdeen City with 46,897 visits down from 46,954 in 2018/19.
Recent data (provisional) suggests that the number of emergency hospital admissions may
have been impacted by COVID-19, particularly at the start of lockdown. For example, for the
period April to September 2020 there were 15,470 attendances at accident and emergency
compared to 24,300 for the period April to September 2019.

Home care and care homes

Home care: In March 2019 there were 1,870 people receiving home care in Aberdeen City,
with a total of 28,005 hours of care provided. The number of people receiving care and the
number of hours of care provided increased from 2018 where the figures were 1,870 and
25,455 respectively. Elderly/frail made up the largest client group (1,250 people), followed by
people with a physical/sensory disability (730 people) [97]. (Note: the same individual can
appear in multiple client groups.)

Number of home care clients and hours provided, Aberdeen City

2,500 30,000
°
2000 25000 2
2 ] ’_| BT m 20,000 &
§ 1,500 .| ’ e
3 15,000 ©
Y <
S 1,000 =
5 10,000 °
3 3
€ 500 5,000 €
=2 =}
2

0 0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
== Number of People Number of Hours

Source: Public Health Scotland, Social Care Insights [97]

53

Page 112


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection9df0737cd004060e33b4
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNWNjODcxNmEtYWEzNS00Yjg2LTlkNjQtNTJiZDk5ZDI0ZjI5IiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionc17af2b79b380c7c35da

5.6

High levels of care: In Aberdeen, in 2018/19 there were 469 people aged 65+ years with high
levels of care need who were cared for at home (i.e. who received 10 and more hours of home
care purchased or provided by the local authority). This equates to 27% of all people in this
age group with high levels of care need — significantly lower than the Scottish average of 35%
[50].

Care homes: In Aberdeen City in 2018/19 there were 2,510 people who were supported in a
care home at any point in the financial year (i.e. people where some or all of the care home
fee is paid by the Health and Social Care Partnership). Of these, 400 were short stay/respite
and 2,105 were long stay (i.e. funded for a period of over six weeks). Of those who were long-
stay, 1,800 were aged 65+ years, with over half (55%) of these being 85+ years. Almost three
quarters (74%) of long-stay residents over 85 years were female [97].

Long stay care home residents by age and sex, 2018/19

800 735
700
600
500
400

300 195 200
200 115 110 125

©y ]

18-64 years 65-74 years 75-84 years 85+ years

375
255

O Female Male

Source: Public Health Scotland, Social Care Insights [97]

Last six months of life: In Aberdeen City, in 2019/20 the number of days in the last six months
of life spent in the community was 339,810, an increase from 308,964 in 2018/19, but a slight
decline from 341,684 in 2017/18.

Looking After Own Health and Wellbeing

Own health and wellbeing: In Aberdeen in 2018/19, 94% of adults reported being able to look
after their health “very well” or “quite well”, this was the same percentage as in 2017/18,
however a 3% decrease from 2015/16. In 2018/19, 73% of adults supported at home agreed
that they were supported to live as independently as possible, this was a 9% and 7% reduction
from 2017 and 2015 respectively, however higher than the figure for Scotland in both periods.
Similarly, the percentage of adults supported at home who agreed they felt safe reduced in
2019 to 76% from 84% in 2017.

|”

Unpaid carers: Latest data for 2020 to date, shows 2,761 unpaid carers, an increase of 1,048
from 2019.

Available clubs and groups: In 2019 a majority (63%) of respondents agreed that there were
plenty organisations, clubs or groups in their community offering activities they could take
part in. A significant proportion of respondents (68%) considered that it could be hard for
them to get motivated to do things to look after their own health and wellbeing (this figure
was particularly high amongst 60 to 69 year olds at 78%). The same proportion (68%) indicated
that they could sometimes feel a bit down, which made it harder for them to look after their
own health and wellbeing [95].

54

Page 113



Participation in local services and activities: Over half of respondents (53%) indicated that
they did not take part in any such activities. This figure was particularly high amongst 60 to 69
year olds (73%) and in the most deprived SIMD quintile (62%) [95]. Most respondents (92%)
agreed that health and care support from professionals was there when they needed it. They
were also quite likely to express positive views about outdoor spaces and the ability of
themselves, and family and friends, to contribute to looking after their health and wellbeing.
However, only 63% agree that there are plenty organisations, clubs or groups in their
community offering activities they could take part in, this figure being especially low amongst
males (52%). A significant proportion of respondents said that it can be hard for them to get
motivated to do things to look after their own health and wellbeing and that they can
sometimes feel a bit down, which makes it harder for them to look after their own health and
wellbeing (68% in each case) [95].

55

Page 114



Our Place

GOODHEALTH

AND WELL-BEING 10 New | Rocienies B 12 ormens 13 cume

INEQUALITIES ( CONSUNETION ACTION
ANDPRODUCTION

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&

6. OurPlace

6.1. Our City

Area: Aberdeen City covers an area of 186 square kilometres and has a population density of

1,231 persons per square kilometre. In terms of population size, it is the 8th largest local
authority in Scotland.

Neighbourhoods: The City contains 37 neighbourhoods —small area geographies that are used
(by Community Planning) to differentiate between different areas of the City.  (Note: the
neighbourhood boundaries do not match official administrative data boundaries. As a result,

official data may not be available at neighbourhood level. Intermediate Zones approximate
neighbourhood boundaries.)

Priority localities: The Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivations (SIMD) is the Scottish
Government’s official tool for identifying small area concentrations of multiple deprivation
across Scotland. Following SIMD 2020, 13 of Aberdeen’s neighbourhoods are recognised as
deprived on this basis: Torry, Tillydrone, Seaton, Woodside, Middlefield, Cummings Park,
Northfield, Heathryfold, Mastrick, Kincorth, Ashgrove, George Street and Stockethill.

6.2. Communities

Community involvement: In City Voice 44 (March 2020), 55.8% of respondents reported that
they would like to be involved in decisions which affect their community but only 26% of
respondents indicated that they felt they knew how to get involved. When asked what they
felt would help them become more involved, the most popular choices were community
events (50.9%) and face to face engagement (35.7%) and the most popular methods of giving
their views about what is happening in their community were online surveys (67.5%) and
questionnaires (65.1%) [24].

Place Standard Questionnaire: A shortened version of the Place Standard questionnaire was
also included in City Voice 44. Participants were asked to answer a series of questions with
their local neighbourhood in mind. Scoring was on a scale of 1-7, where 1 = lots of room for
improvement and 7 = very little room for improvement. Overall, green space (Can you
regularly experience good quality natural space?) and feeling safe (Do you feel safe in your

56

Page 115



neighbourhood?) were the highest scoring areas with mean scores of 5.0 and 4.9 respectively.
The lowest scoring areas were work and economy (Is there an active local economy and the
opportunity to access good quality jobs?) and influence and sense of control (Do you feel able
to participate in decisions and help change things for the better?) with mean scores of 2.8 and
3.1 respectively [24].

Moving around
Influence and sense of

Public transport
control 43 P

37

Care and maintenance 3.1
4.1

Traffic and parking
4.0

Feeling safe.9 4.1 Streetsand spaces

Identity and belonging ' 4-0 5.Green space

3.7

Social interaction 4'4Play and leisure

Housing and community 4 Services and amenities

Work and local economy

Source: City Voice 44 [24]

Volunteering: In response to COVID-19 and to support the recovery, over 7,000 volunteers
were recruited through national campaigns for Aberdeen alone (March 2020 — July 2020)
and over 25% were over 60 years old. This is in addition to the volunteering that regularly
occurs in city with close to 80,000 people assisting volunteering in Aberdeen, contributing a
combined 4.4 million hours of help every year in Aberdeen. There has also been an eight-
fold increase in volunteering enquiries to ACVO [98]. A research survey undertaken by
Volunteer Scotland and Ipsos MORI has also highlighted that volunteering participation in
Scotland had increased by 26% to 74% compared during COVID-19 (from 48% before
lockdown was put in place). Over half - 59% of people - stated that they would continue
volunteering ‘post COVID-19’ [99].

Using digital and data to help our communities: The benefits of using data to improve
productivity and transform public services have been recognised in the UK Data Strategy 2020.
The Strategy also recognises some of the existing barriers. Presently data is not consistently
managed, used or shared in a way that facilitates informed decision-making or joint working
across the public sector [100]. Effective use of data and digital technology can help the way
we deliver our services and is fundamental to their planning and re-design. It can also
empower people in our communities —improving the way they interact, both with each other
and with public sector services. Data from the Scottish Social Attitudes Survey 2019 suggests
a relatively high degree of trust in public service organisations to use personal data only for
acceptable purposes. When asked, 58% of adults said they had either ‘a great deal’ or quite
a lot’ of trust in public service organisations, compared to only 15% for private companies
[101].

57

Page 116



6.3.

Housing

Dwellings: In 2019 there were 119,523 dwellings in Aberdeen City — an increase of 1,392
(1.2%) on the number of dwellings in 2018. The number of dwellings varies by neighbourhood
from 724 in Cummings Park to 6,676 in Braeside, Mannofield and Seafield. Most (59%%) are
in Council Tax bands A-C, with 26% being in bands D-E and 15% being in bands G-H [57]. The
proportion of dwellings within each Council Tax band varies by neighbourhood. For example
in Cummings Park, 99% of dwellings are in Council Tax bands A-C, while in Cults, Bieldside &
Milltimber, 68% of dwellings are in Council Tax bands F-H [102].

Over a third (39%) of dwellings have a single adult discount with the proportion of dwellings
with these discounts ranging from a low of 24.6% in Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber to a high of
51.1% in Woodside. 6.4% of dwellings have ‘occupied exemptions’ (e.g. student households),
with the highest levels of exemptions being in Old Aberdeen (31%), George Street (28%),
Froghall, Powis & Sunnybank (22%) and Seaton (20%) [57].

Second homes account for less than 1% of all dwellings in the City and in 2019 there were
5,697 vacant dwellings (4.8% of all dwellings) — an increase from 5,085 vacant dwellings in
2018. Most (55%) dwellings are flats, 18% are terraced, 16% are semi-detached and 11% are
detached. At the time of the 2011 Census, 57.3% of households in the City were owned, 24.2%
were socially rented, 17.0% were privately rented and 1.4% were rent-free.

Housing stock: In Aberdeen City in 2019 the Local Authority’s housing stock totalled 21,974 —
a slight decrease from 21,990 in 2018. Of the Council stock, 16, 629 (76%) were flats and 5,345
(24%) were houses. Since 2009, the total housing stock owned by the Council has decreased
by 4.2% - from 22,940 [103]. At 31% March 2019 there were 4,116 applicants on the waiting
list and 2,124 on the transfer list for housing [104].

Supply of new housing: In 2018-19, 1,144 new houses were supplied in Aberdeen City. Of
these, 104 were local authority new builds, 911 were private new builds, 102 were housing
association new builds and 27 were conversions [105].

Supported housing: A range of supported housing is provided by the Local Authority. Housing
for older people includes 110 very sheltered and 1,890 sheltered dwellings of which 223 are
wheelchair adapted. Some 2,789 dwellings have been fitting with a community alarm.
Housing for people with physical disabilities included 428 dwellings adapted for wheelchair
use, 437 for ambulant disabled and 1,900 with other adaptions [106].

Private rental sector: In 2019, the average monthly rent in Aberdeen City and Shire (Broad
Rental Market Area) was £470 for a one-bedroomed property, £652 for a 2-bedroomed
property, £889 for a 3-bedroomed property and £1,306 for a 4-bedroomed property. These
were broadly similar to the average rents in 2018 with the exception of 4-bedroomed
properties which increased from £1,249 in 2018. Rents for all property types are lower than
pre-2015 levels [107].

58

Page 117


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMzc0OTVhYzAtYzEyZS00YzVlLWI0YWItNDg5MmVmMDdlYzBiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSectionf9de48fe53de95bee8ca
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMzc0OTVhYzAtYzEyZS00YzVlLWI0YWItNDg5MmVmMDdlYzBiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection1939b1b97338c44a2a2d

6.4.

Average monthly rent, Aberdeen City and Shire
2,000
1,500 ‘\
=—=0
e ===
1,000
C C—=
500 ® ——=C—= — o
0
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
@=@== 1 Bedroom Properties 2 Bedroom Properties 3 Bedroom Properties
@@= 4 Bedroom Properties 1 Bedroom Shared Properties

Source: Scottish Government, Private sector rent statistics [107]

House sales: In 2019, the average purchase price for a residential property in Aberdeen City
was £195,120 — a decrease from £196,047 in 2018. The average property price peaked in 2015
at £220,768. The number of properties sold increased slightly from 3,879 in 2018 to 3,943 in
2019 [108] .

Crime

Crimes and offences: In Scotland, crimes and offences are classified into 7 groups, with a new
group for Coronavirus restriction crimes being added in 2019/20. In 2019/20 the most
common crimes and offences recorded in Aberdeen City were Group 6, Miscellaneous,
including assault and anti-social behaviour type crimes and offences (5,833); Group 7, Road
Traffic Offences (5,577); and Group 3, Crimes of Dishonesty (5,218) [109]. Since 2016/17,
rates (per 10,000 population) have decreased for all crimes and offences with the exception
of non-sexual crimes of violence where the rate has increased from 17.4 per 10,000 population
to 22.4 [109].

New official statistics were introduced from April 2020 to provide information about the
volume and type of crimes and offences recorded in Scotland during the COVID-19 pandemic®.
In Aberdeen City, the total number of crimes recorded between April to October 2020 was
slightly higher than in the corresponding period in 2019. Between April and October there
were 6,814 crimes recorded in 2020 compared to 6,791 in 2019. Conversely, the total number
of offences was lower at 7,075 in 2020 compared to 7,312 in 2019 [110].

8 While restrictions put in place to limit the spread of the virus will have had an impact on the number of crimes
and offences recorded by the police, some caution is advised before necessarily attributing all of the changes to
this situation. For example, longer term trends in some types of offending, which existed prior to the pandemic,
may remain a factor. Crimes recorded by the police do not reveal the incidence of all crimes committed as not all
crimes are reported to the police [110]

59

Page 118


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZTUwMDJkZWItNzFjNS00MzFiLThjYzYtODg1MGJkYjVkOGQzIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection2c8c6bd5fe8d86c5621b
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNjlmNjEzZjAtMGEwMC00MWZlLWI4MTEtM2IzMDFjMjY2NTcxIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection8c12aecea6ca2993ff70

Number of crimes and offences, April to October, 2019 and 2020

0 o
o
4,500 o § =
4,000 2 <+~
— N [22) o0
3,500 -\ =4
o~ ©
3,000 n ;\r{
2,500 o o
i
2,000 2 &
o i
1,500 o =
1,000 o o T o ’—‘
[¢)] [«)] o o
0
Non-sexual Sexual crimes Crimes of Fire-raising, Other crimes Miscellaneous Motor vehicle
crimes of dishonesty vandalism etc. offences offences
violence

O Apr-Oct 2019 Apr-Oct 2020

Source: Scottish Government, Recorded Crime in Scotland: October 2020 [110]

The rate of crime varies across the City and is relatively low in most areas (Intermediate Zones).
In 2019, the rate of crime® range from a low of 4 (crude rate per 1,000 population) in Braeside,
Mannofield, Broomhill & Seafield South to a high of 247 in City Centre East [50].

Domestic abuse: In 2019/20 there were 2,528 recorded incidents of domestic abuse in
Aberdeen City — an increase from 2,486 in 2018/19 [111]. Not all incidents of Domestic Abuse
result in a crime being recorded. In 2019/20 there were 162 recorded crimes for Domestic
Abuse. Since the start of the pandemic there have been concerns about a rise in domestic
violence, as access to support services and other networks of support has been less readily
available. Between April and October 2020, there were 85 recorded crimes for Domestic
Abuse in Aberdeen City compared to 88 for the same period in 2019 [110].

Incidents of domestic abuse recorded by the Police

3,500
3,088

3,000 2,773
2,570 2,522 2,486 2,528

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Source: Scottish Government, Domestic abuse: statistics 2018-2019 [112] and Police Scotland, Management Information,
Council Area Report: Quarter 4 2019/20 [113]

9 (based on SIMD crimes of violence, sexual offences, domestic housebreaking, vandalism, drug offences and common assault)

60

Page 119


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiN2FjMWFkYzItYTdkYy00YWY5LWFiNDAtZmNlMGFlYmE5ZDFiIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection38f8543136cb56e50a9b

6.5.

6.6.

Anti-social behaviour: In 2019/20, there were 4,137 instances of anti-social behaviour
reported to the Council — down from 4,495 in 2018-19.

Criminal Justice & Social Work

First convictions and reconvictions: In 2018-19, 725 people living in Aberdeen City had a first
ever court conviction — down from 809 in 2017-18. Of these, 32 were under 18 years and 120
were aged 18-20 years. Of the 2,343 offenders (all ages) in the 2017-18 cohort, 29.7% were
reconvicted within a year of receiving their sentence [114].

Police disposals: In 2018-19 there were 847 Recorded Police warnings given in Aberdeen City.
This is an increase from 659 in 2017-18. There were also 611 Anti-Social Behaviour Fixed
Penalty Notices given in 2018-19 — down from 807 in 2017-18.

Diversion from prosecution: In 2018/19 there were 114 Diversion from Prosecution Cases
commenced of which 45 were 16 and 17 year-olds and 69 were 18+ years. This is a similar
figure to 2017-18, when there were 116 Diversion from Prosecution Cases commenced in
Aberdeen City, although the proportion of 16 and 17 year-olds has increased (from 27.6% in
2018/19 to 39.5%) [115].

Community payback orders: In 2019-20, 680 Community Payback Orders were successfully
completed, up from 644 in 2018-19.

Bail supervision orders: In 2018-19, 26 Bail Supervision Orders were commenced by
individuals. These Orders are agreed by the Court so that an individual is supervised by Justice
Social Work instead of being remanded in prison (which can lead to negative outcomes for
individuals in relation to employment, housing, family relations, etc, which can result in an
increased likelihood of further offending). The number of individuals commencing Bail
Supervision Orders increased to 45 in 2019-20.

Custodial sentences: In 2018-19, 602 people in Aberdeen City were given a custodial sentence
—up from 581 in 2017-18. Of these, approximately one third (203) were for a period of up to
3 months. Of those given a custodial sentence in 2018-19, 520 (86.4%) were male and 22 were
under the age of 21 years (all male) [116].

Safety

Accidental dwelling fires: In 2019/20 there were 256 accidental dwelling fires in Aberdeen
City (down slightly from 262 in 2018/19) which is equivalent to a rate of 214.2 per 100,000
dwellings compared to 165.6 in Scotland. Impairment due to alcohol/drugs was suspected to
be a contributory factor to accidental dwelling fires in Aberdeen in 15.6% of cases — similar to
the rate for Scotland of 15.8%. There were 42 non-fatal casualties and no fatal casualties [117].
The rate of accidental dwelling fires varies across the City (Intermediate Zones). In 2018/19,
the rate of accidental dwelling fires per 100,000 population ranged from a low of 0 in
Kingswells, Bucksburn South, Dyce, Balgownie & Donmouth East and Denmore, to a high of
434 per 100,000 population in Hanover South [49].

In 2019/20 there were also 35 deliberate dwelling fires (rate of 29.3 per 100,000 dwellings
compared to 19.8 for Scotland). In total there were 833 fires in Aberdeen City in 2019-20, of
which 485 were primary fires, 340 were secondary fires and 8 were chimney fires. This is down
from the total of 1,026 fires in 2018-19 [117].

61

Page 120



6.7.

Road safety: During 2019, there were 118 road collisions in Aberdeen, involving 148 fatal,
serious or slight injuries. Sadly, this included 3 fatalities from three separate collisions. There
were 53 individuals seriously injured in 47 collisions, while 92 individuals were slightly injured
in 68 collisions. Following a period of decreases, the number of people seriously injured in
road traffic accidents has increased in each of the last two years (from 34 in 2017) [118]. In
2016-18, the rate of casualties from road traffic accidents varied across the City (Intermediate
Zones) from a low of 9 per 100,000 population in Denmore to a high of 150 per 100,000
population in Tillydrone [50].

Source: Transport Scotland, Key Reported Road Casualties in Scotland [118]

Environment — climate change

CO; emissions: In 2018 CO, emissions in Aberdeen totalled 1,210.4 kt (down from 1,875.1 in
2005). Of this, 44.4% is attributed to industry and commerce, 28.9% to domestic use and
26.9% to transport. Since 2005, per capita CO; emissions have fallen in both Aberdeen and
Scotland, mostly due to the greening of the electricity grid and the Net Zero Vision for
Aberdeen has put in place a local commitment to meeting the Scottish Government target of
Net Zero Emissions by 2045. In 2018 the per capita levels were similar in Aberdeen and
Scotland at 5.3 tonnes [119].

62

Page 121


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZGE2N2Q0MzAtYTk4Yy00OTBjLWFlNDctNDY3ZGZkNzRlZTMyIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection76e5588097a28cc78c7a
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZGE2N2Q0MzAtYTk4Yy00OTBjLWFlNDctNDY3ZGZkNzRlZTMyIiwidCI6IjI0YTkwZjZiLWJmM2QtNGQxMy1hMmE3LTg5MzY5Y2ViMzVlYiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection76e5588097a28cc78c7a

CO2 emissions estimates, Aberdeen City

2,000 10.0
1,500 8.0 o
Rel
~ 6.0 2
S 1,000 g
2 40 S
5
500 o
2.0 5
[« 9
0 =B 00
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
[ Industry and Commerecial Domestic
Transport [ N. LULUCF

Aberdeen Per Capita Emissions (t) —©— Scotland Per Capita Emissions (t)

Source: GOV.UK, UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 to 2018 [119]

Adaption: Climate change is being experienced now across Aberdeen. Changes to local rainfall
patterns and weather events are being seen, putting increasing numbers of people and
property at risk. A Local Climate Impacts Profile exploring weather events experienced in
Aberdeen over the previous 5 years has been drafted and will be published in early 2021. This
information complements existing national climate risk information and coupled with the
Aberdeen Adapts framework for climate adaptation, will allow organisations to assess and
adapt to the risks of our changing climate.

Flood risk: Scotland has been separated into 14 Local Plan Districts for flood risk management
purposes. These districts are based on river catchments and coastal areas which cross
administrative and institutional boundaries. SEPA, working with others, has produced a Flood
Risk Management Strategy for each Local Plan District. The most recent Flood Risk
Management Strategy produced by SEPA for the North East Local Plan District (2016-2021)
identifies 4 areas in Aberdeen City that are potentially vulnerable to flooding — Peterculter,
Bridge of Don, Denmore, and Deeside.

Average annual damages for each area:

e Aberdeen City — Deeside: £12 million (River 86%, Coastal 1% and Surface Water 14%)

e Aberdeen City — Bridge of Don: £4.5 million (River 81%, Coastal <1%, Surface Water 19%)
e Aberdeen City — Denmore: £570,000 (89% River)

e Aberdeen City — Peterculter: £300,000 (River 94%, Surface Water 6%)

The total average annual damages for the North East local plan area = £21,746,500. The total
average annual damages for Aberdeen City = £17,370,000. This means that 80% of average
annual damages for flooding in the North East are within Aberdeen City [120].

Nature based solutions are being employed across Aberdeen, at locations such as at Seaton
Park, Middlefield and Maidencraig, to reduce flood risk while delivering additional outcomes

for people and wildlife. A recent national Nature of Scotland Award was given to Aberdeen
for this pioneering work on natural flood management.

63

Page 122



6.8.

Environment

Greenspace: Greenspace is important for a range of reasons, including health and well-being,
economic benefit and environmental protection. Aberdeen has a diverse mix of greenspaces
for people and wildlife. The types, quantities, quality and accessibility of these are not evenly
distributed across Aberdeen. Areas of social deprivation tend to have lower diversity and
quality spaces which in turn can impact on the health outcomes for those communities. Some
areas, e.g. Deeside, have much higher prevalence of tree cover than others. Aberdeen has an
overall tree canopy cover of 10%, much lower than comparable cities, Scotland as a whole,
and national targets. Further analysis of the context, actions and trends in this area is required.
Aberdeen’s greenspaces are assessed through a periodic Open Space Audit, with the latest
Audit currently being finalised. This Audit will provide information that is critical to directing
greenspace policies and interventions of all partners going forward.

In March 2020, 65% of City Voice respondents reported that they were satisfied with their
local green space. This is down from 2019 when 71% reported that they were satisfied.

COVID-19: A report published for the Public Health Scotland Social & Systems Environment &
Spaces Group looked at the use of green and open spaces during lockdown. The report found
that use of green and open spaces was polarised with some people increasing the frequency
of visits and time spent outside, and others making fewer or no visits. The most marked
reduction in time spent in green and open spaces was amongst older people. Overwhelmingly,
users reported that green and open space benefited their mental health during lockdown.
Socio-economic inequalities in use of green and open spaces existed before lockdown, but
lockdown did not reduce these and may have made them worse [121].

Water environment: Aberdeen is a coastal harbour city bounded by two major inland
waterways, the Dee and the Don. These connections to water are important parts of its history,
culture, economy, and well-being. Flooding, erosion, pollution, and wildlife impacts are all
being experienced at the coast and inland and have significant implications for our people and
economy. Further analysis of the context, actions and trends in this area is also required. The
table below shows the overall condition of bodies of surface waters in and around Aberdeen
[122].

2017 2018
South Mundurno Burn Bad Bad
Den Burn Poor ecological Poor ecological
potential potential
River Don - Dyce to tidal limit Moderate Poor
Bucks Burn Moderate Moderate
Elrick Burn - d/s Newmachar WWTP Poor Poor
River Don - Inverurie to Dyce Good Good
Black Burn Poor Moderate
River Dee - Peterculter to tidal limit Bad ecological Bad ecological
potential potential
River Dee - Banchory to Peterculter Moderate Moderate
Culter Burn Moderate Moderate
Gormack Burn Bad Bad

64

Page 123



Leuchar Burn Poor Poor

Brodiach Burn / Ord Burn Bad Bad

Dee (Aberdeen) Estuary Good ecological Good ecological
potential potential

Don Estuary High High

Don Estuary to Souter Head (Aberdeen) Good ecological Good ecological
potential potential

Cruden Bay to the Don Estuary High High

Souter Head to Garron Point High High

Source: [122]

Natural heritage: The dramatic decline and loss of natural heritage is, alongside climate
change, a crisis facing most of the globe. Aberdeen is not immune to this and this places risks
on our citizens through impacts on food security, economy and health and wellbeing.
Aberdeen has a diverse range of species and habitats with their outlook is currently mixed. It
is home to several European protected species and sites, such as the freshwater pearl mussel
and the River Dee Corridor. Aberdeen has 1 Site of Special Scientific Interest, 4 Local Nature
Reserves and 14 Local Nature Conservation Sites. Approx. 5 —10% of our land is protected for
wildlife, compared to a UK wide target of 30% by 2030. It is currently unclear what proportion
of land outside protected areas is managed for wildlife. Further analysis of the context, actions
and trends in this area is required.

Household waste: In 2019, 84,643 tonnes of household waste were generated in Aberdeen
City. The amount of household waste generated has decreased each year since 2016 and the
amount of household waste going to landfill has fallen from 58,021 tonnes to 15,005 tonnes —
a reduction of 74%. In the same period, the percentage of waste being recycled has increased
from 39% to 49.9%. There has also been an increase in ‘other’ diversions from landfill
(disposed by incineration, recovered by incineration, recovered by co-incineration and waste
managed by other methods) from 604 tonnes in 2016 to 27,407 tonnes in 2019 (equivalent to
32.4% of waste generated). The carbon impact of household waste has fallen from 253,014
tonnes CO2e in 2016 to 180,260 tonnes CO2e in 2019 [123].

Household waste, Aberdeen City

120,000 60.0%
— 100,000 50.0% O
(7)) Q
8 1| :
S 80,000 40.0% =
|z g
® 60,000 30.0% 3
o 5]
o [J)
S 40,000 200% &
3 c
o 3
T 20,000 H H 10.0% §

|_| a

- L - 0.0%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

03 Waste generated Recycled Landfill E===3 Other Percentage recycled

Source: Scotland’s Environment, Summary data on Scottish household waste generation and management [123]

65

Page 124



Active travel: In 2017/18, an estimated 20.6% of people in Aberdeen City used active travel
(walking or cycling) to get to work or education. This is a decrease from 26.1% in 2016/17 [50].
In 2019, 21% of people reported that their main mode of travel was walking (same as in 2018)
and 2% reported that their main mode of travel was cycling (up from 1% in 2018). Driving a
car was the most common main mode of travel at 53% [124].

Impact of COVID-19 on Transport and travel: COVID-19 has had an impact on both the
number of trips people make and the modes of travel they use. A report by Public Health
Scotland suggests that one of the main outcomes has been a reduction in the use of public
transport. Walking and cycling increased during lockdown and into Phase 1. During Phases 2
and 3 cycling journeys reduced but on the whole were higher than during a similar period last
year, although in late August and early September levels of cycling were similar to last year.
Walking journeys have also reduced and have been consistently lower than during a similar
period last year as fewer people travel to work. However, there is evidence that suggests that
during lockdown walking and cycling for recreation increased, although it is not known
whether these habits will be retained in the longer term. The use of cars, while low during the
initial lockdown, increased steadily between April and August [125].

In Aberdeen City, comparison of data from ACC Active Travel Counters shows that the level of
cycle users in November 2020 was up 37% compared to November 2019 and the daily number
of pedestrians was up 62%. Data from ACC Automatic Traffic Counters shows that while levels
of traffic dropped immediately following lockdown in March, traffic levels have been steadily
increasing and are now slightly higher than pre-lockdown levels. Similarly, bus services are
now running at pre-lockdown levels, although bus occupancy levels are currently at around
50% of pre-lockdown levels [126].

Air Pollution: Information on PM10 concentrations are available for six sites in Aberdeen City
(Anderson Drive, Errol Place, King Street, Market Street, Union Street and Wellington Road).
In 2019, the annual mean PM10 concentrations was below the target of 18ug/m?3 at all six sites
[127]. As part of work to measure changing travel behaviour resulting from COVID-19, regular
updates for concentrations of NO, are collected'®. In November 2020, concentrations of NO;
at the six sites were 72% of those for November last year [126].

Electric Vehicles: As of 2020, Aberdeen City has 56 publicly available electric vehicle chargers
installed in order to encourage the use of electric vehicles. This is an increase of 3 since 2019,
but an increase of 26 since 2017 and equates to 4% of the total number of chargers available
in Scotland.

This document does not include data for the following Sustainable Development Goals:

GLEAN WATER 1 LIFE 1 5 LIFE
AND SANITATION BELOW WATER ON LAND

N
—
‘ ¥
1
—
[—

10 Spurce data has been provided for NO2 levels as it is a local pollutant from vehicles and is therefore suitable to
demonstrate the impact of lockdown. PM10 levels have not been provided as they are influenced by wider
sources and gives a less accurate picture of local impact.

66

Page 125



7

Further Information

If you have any queries about the content of this document or would like further
information, please contact us using the details below.

Contact Anne McAteer, Research Officer, Community Planning Team

Email communityplanning@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Visit www.communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/data

67

Page 126


mailto:communityplanning@aberdeencity.gov.uk
http://www.communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/data

/2T abed

APPENDIX 2

A »

November 20

f

January 21

REFRESHED LOCAL OUTCOME IMPROVEMENT PLAN — DEVELOPMENT STAGES

0
March 21

APPRO

May 21

Aberdeen Qutcomes Framework
Draft update to Aberdeen
Population Needs Assessment (PNA)
Summary

Further data/ insights/research/
evidence of Covid-19 impact from
Improvement Service, Partners,
Communities

Reframing PNA around the Global
Sustainable Development Goals to
identify gaps

Kick off sessions with OIGs:

Locality Empowerment Groups
Priority Neighbourhood Partnerships
CPA Management Group - update

Thematic consultation sessions for
stakeholder held by OIG Chairs/
Locality Leads:

Partners

Community representatives
Responsible business community
Public consultation exercise using
Citizen'’s space simulator

CPA Management Group

Final consultation phase:

Local Partners

Communities

National Partners: Community
Justice Scotland

Public Heath Scotland
Education Scotland

Feedback to public on results of
consultation and draft LOIP
Director of Public Health assessment
of balance of prevention

December 20

February 21

April 21

June/ July 21

Further develop PNA summary in
collaboration with data and subject
matter experts from OIGs

Locality level summaries to be
developed

Review LOIP improvement projects —
progress and relevance

Review Socio-Economic Rescue Plan
— progress and relevance

Complete initial assessment of
impact on LOIP: context, stretch
outcomes, improvement project
aims, format

Follow up with OlGs/ LEGs/ PNPs
LOIP/ Locality Plan Design

Launch public consultation exercise
using Citizen’s space simulator

CPA Board - update

Commence drafting of LOIP and
Locality Plans

Clarity of which projects should be
prioritised for testing in which
localities/neighbourhoods

CPA Board session with the
Improvement Service

Final draft LOIP/ Locality Plans to
CPA Management Group

CPA Board Meeting 7 July 21




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Agenda Item 10.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Strategic Commissioning Committee

DATE 11 February 2021

EXEMPT No

CONFIDENTIAL No

REPORT TITLE Commercial and Procurement Performance Report
REPORT NUMBER CUS/21/024

DIRECTOR Andy MacDonald

CHIEF OFFICER Martin Murchie

REPORT AUTHOR Louise Fox

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 5.1.3

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present Committee with the status of key performance measures relating to
the Commercial and Procurement cluster.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee note the report and provide comments and observations
on the performance information contained in the report Appendix.

BACKGROUND

This report is to provide members with key performance measures in relation
to the Commercial and Procurement cluster as expressed within the 2020/21
Council Delivery Plan

Introduced in 2019/20 Performance Framework Reporting, initially against in-
house delivery directly contributing to the City’s Local Outcome Improvement
Plan to the Operational Delivery and City Growth and Resources Committees,
has informed the 2020/21 Council Delivery Plan (the Plan) that was agreed by
Council on the 3rd March 2020.

The ‘Performance Management’ section of the Plan explains how the
commitments and deliverables will be supported and scrutinised through the
Council’'s Performance Management Framework, which establishes robust
performance management of service delivery. This section outlines the
systematic approach that will be taken during 2020/21 to identify, plan and
deliver improvement.

The Plan reflects on the revised governance arrangements for Committee
reporting, agreed on 2nd March 2020, and the roll-out of Performance
Management Framework reporting against those Enabling Services which
contribute outcomes and services that do not directly deliver against the LOIP,
alongside the introduction of Service Standards against each Function that
builds on the original Framework.

Page 129



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The Framework provides for an amended approach within which performance
will be reported to Committees. This presents performance data and analysis
within four core perspectives as shown below which provides for uniformity of
performance reporting across to Committee.

Customer

* KPIs common to all clusters

* Cluster specific KPIs L
* Commissioning Intention KPls
* Regulatory/Statutory KPIs A
Finances & Controls —
* KPls common to all clusters = KPIs common to all clusters
* Cluster specific KPis *  Cluster specific KPls
* Commissioning Intention KPls * Commissioning Intention KPIs
* Regulatory/Statutory KPls * Regulatory/Statutory KPIs
O
™ Staff
A
A\ ) KPls common to all clusters )

Cluster specific KPls
* Commissioning Intention KPls
* Regulatory/Statutory KPls

This report, as far as possible, reports performance up to the end of
December 2020 or Quarter 3 2020/21, as appropriate.

Appendix A provides an overview of current performance across the
Commercial and Procurement cluster, with reference to recent trends and
performance against target. There is also, at appropriate points in the Appendix,
narrative analysis of progress against new Service Standards with a RAG
status, allocated by Officers of the Commercial and Procurement cluster. These
are defined as follows:

RAG Status
e GREEN — Actions are on track with no delays/issues emerging
e AMBER — Actions are experiencing small delays/issues emerging
and are being closely monitored
o - - Actions are experiencing significant delays/issues with

improvement measures being put in place
Within the summary dashboard the following symbols are also used:

Performance Measures

Traffic Light Icon

@ On target or within 5% of target

& Within 5% and 20% of target and being monitored

Page 130



0 Below 20% of target and being actively pursued

¥4 Data only — target not appropriate

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising out of this report.

6. MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Category Risk Low (L) Mitigation
Medium (M)
High (H)

Strategic None

Risk

Compliance | No significant related L Publication of service
legal risks. performance information in

the public domain ensures
that the Council is meeting
its legal obligations in the
context of Best value
reporting.

Operational | No significant related L Oversight by Elected

employee risks. Members of core employee
health and safety data
supports the Council’s
obligations as an employer

Financial No significant related L N/A
financial risks.

Reputational | Lack of sufficient L Placing of information in the
access to information public domain contributed to
for citizens by this report. Reporting of

service performance serves
to enhance the Council’s
reputation for transparency
and accountability.
Environment | No significant related L N/A
/ Climate environmental risks.

7. OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

Page 131



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Prosperous Economy
Stretch Outcomes

The Council aims to support improvement in the local
economy to ensure a high quality of life for all people
in Aberdeen. This report monitors indicators which
reflect current economic activity within the City and
actions taken by the Council to support such activity.

Prosperous People Stretch
Outcomes

The Council is committed to improving the key life
outcomes of all people in Aberdeen. This report
monitors key indicators impacting on the lives of all
citizens of Aberdeen. Thus, Committee will be
enabled to assess the effectiveness of measures
already implemented, as well as allowing an
evaluation of future actions which may be required to
ensure an improvement in such outcomes.

Prosperous Place Stretch
Outcomes

The Council is committed to ensuring that Aberdeen
Is a welcoming place to invest, live and visit,
operating to the highest environmental standards.
This report provides essential information in relation
to environmental issues allowing the Committee to
measure the impact of any current action.

Regional and City
Strategies

None

UK and Scottish
Legislative and Policy
Programmes

None

8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Assessment

Outcome

Impact Assessment

The recommendations arising from this report do not
require that a full Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessment is completed

Data Protection Impact
Assessment

Not required

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Council Delivery Plan 20/21 -

COM/20/052

Page 132



https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/Final-Draft-LOIP-2016-26-web-version.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/Final-Draft-LOIP-2016-26-web-version.pdf

10. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Performance Summary Dashboard

11. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Louise Fox

Strategic Performance and Improvement Officer
Ifox@aberdeencity.gov.uk

01224 522666

Page 133


mailto:lfox@aberdeencity.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



GeT obed

Strategic Commissioning Committee Performance Report Appendix A

Commercial and Procurement

1. Customer — Commercial and Procurement

) Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 2020/21
Performance Indicator Target
Value Status Value Status Value Status
Total No. complaints received (stage 1 and 2) — Procurement and Commercial 0 =) 0 =) 0 ud
% of complaints resolved within timescale stage 1 and 2) — Procurement and Commercial No complaints Q1/Q2/Q3 75%

% of complaints with at least one point upheld (stage 1 and 2) — Procurement and Commercial

*Total No. of lessons learnt identified (stage 1 and 2) — Procurement and Commercial

*Lessons learnt referred to in this Appendix are lasting actions taken/changes made to resolve an issue and to prevent future re-occurrence for example amending an existing
procedure or revising training processes. When a complaint has been upheld, action would be taken in the form of an apology or staff discussion/advice, but these actions are not

classified as lessons learnt.

Current  2020/21
Status Target

We will enable access to all internal procedural procurement information online. - 100%

All procurement guidance/template documents are available via the Intranet.

Performance Indicator

We will publish annual contract pipelines for each financial year online after the Council Budget is set. | | 100%

Annual procurement report published on ACC External Website.

We will ensure that all contracts above £50K have standard clauses to require providers to demonstrate commitments towards carbon reduction and 100%
efficiency.




Performance Indicator

Current

Status
Investigation is underway/collaboration with SG on a Carbon Calculator. As an interim measure a specific question has been built into future procurement exercises on commitment to Carbon
Reduction and Efficiency whilst the work noted above is ongoing.

2020/21
Target

3. Staff — Commercial and Procurement

Performance Indicator

Oct 2020

o¢T obed

Nov 2020 Dec 2021 2020/21
Value Status Value Status Value Status Target
*Sickness Absence - Average Number of Days Lost — Commercial and Procurement 0.3 (V) 0.3 (V] 0.3 (V] 5
Establishment actual FTE 38.28 ad 37.81 =) 37.28 =)
Staff Costs - % Spend to Date (FYB) 56.5% (V) 63.7% (V] 70.9% (V] 100%
*Sickness absence data contained in this Appendix now reflects the 12-month rolling average of days lost per FTE
) Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 2020/21
Performance Indicator Target
Value Status Value Status Value Status
Accidents - Reportable - Employees (No in Month — Commercial and Procurement) 0 ld 0 ‘d 0 ld
Accidents - Non-Reportable - Employees (No in Month — Commercial and Procurement) 0 \‘ 0 ,d 0 \d

4. Finance & Controls — Commercial and Procurement

Performance Indicator

The annual Audits on internal control systems for procurement processes and systems, including delegated procurement and financial authority do
not identify major rated issues.

Current
Status

2020/21
Target

- 100%



http://councilcommittees.acc.gov.uk/documents/g6698/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2019%2014.00%20Staff%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://councilcommittees.acc.gov.uk/documents/g6698/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2019%2014.00%20Staff%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10

/€T abed

Performance Indicator Current  2020/21
Status Target

Audit Report AC2019 Cross Service Procurement Compliance issued September 2020 contains 5 major rated issues. Actions to implement the recommendations within the report are to be
addressed between now and the end of the financial year in line with agreed timescales.

Demand management is embedded for all contracts above £50K contracts at strategy stage and throughout life of contract to ensure that the quantity 100%
and specification of goods and services match, but do not exceed, the actual needs of the Council.

Demand Management Control Board reviews strategy documents pre-procurement at strategy stage. Review of contract management guidance and templates underway to ensure Demand
Management is embedded across the life of all contracts.

We will ensure that all contracts above £50K in value can be tracked to show community, local economic and environmental benefits. - 100%

Community Benefit question is incorporated into template tender document and information currently collated annually on community, local economic and environmental benefits through
procurement. A tracking tool is being investigated to provide quarterly updates.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Agenda Item 11.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Strategic Commissioning Committee
DATE 11 February 2021
EXEMPT Not exempt:

Covering Report, Appendix 1 — Workplan Summary of
business cases, Appendix 3 — 3.10 Memo Summary

Exempt: Yes — Paragraph 8

Appendix 2

The report refers to the amount of any expenditure
proposed to be incurred by the authority under any
particular contract for the acquisition of property or the
supply of goods or services provided that disclosure
to the public of the amount there referred to would be
likely to give an advantage to a person or organisation
entering, or seeking to enter, a contract with the

Council.
CONFIDENTIAL No
REPORT TITLE Workplan & Business Cases — Revenue
REPORT NUMBER COM/21/034
DIRECTOR Rob Polkinghorne
CHIEF OFFICER Craig Innes
REPORT AUTHOR Craig Innes

TERMS OF REFERENCE | 3.1.1

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present procurement workplans where
expenditure is included for the Commissioning, Customer, Resources and
Operations Functions to Committee for review and to seek approval of the total
estimated expenditure for the proposed contracts as contained in the
Procurement Business Cases appended to the report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Committee: -

2.1 reviews the workplans as detailed in the Appendices;

2.2 approves the procurement business cases, including the total estimated
expenditure for the proposed contracts;

2.3  approves the direct awards of contract where there are special circumstances
outlined in the respective procurement business cases which justify not issuing
a tender or calling off from a framework agreement; and

2.4  notes the direct awards of contract made under the provisions for urgency as
detailed within Appendix 3 — 3.10 Memo Summary.

Page 139



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

BACKGROUND

The ACC Procurement Regulations 2020 require that authority to incur
expenditure must be sought prior to any invitation to tender or contract entered
into. The method of authorising depends upon the contract value, with
contracts above £50,000 (supplies/services) or £250,000 (works) to be listed
on a workplan with an associated Procurement Business Case and submitted
by the relevant Chief Officer to the Strategic Commissioning Committee
(Revenue budget only), and/or to City Growth and Resources Committee
(Capital and Capital with Revenue implications). The approval of the applicable
Committee is required prior to the procurement being undertaken.

Committee is asked to review the Commissioning, Customer, Resources and
Operations Functions workplans and to approve the expenditure detailed in the
Procurement Business Cases appended to the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The indicative value of the proposed contracts is shown within the workplan in
the Appendices. The ability to have an overview of contract expenditure is
aligned to Core Outcomes of the LOIP and the whole systems commissioning
cycle approach. The refreshed approach to governance ensures that all
contracts are aligned to the approved budget provision for each financial year
with controls in place for flexibility if required. This also assists the Council in
meetings its statutory duty to keep a Contracts Register.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The contracts shall be procured in accordance with procurement legislation and
the Commercial Legal Team within C&PS shall provide legal advice where

necessary.

MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Category Risk Low (L) Mitigation
Medium
(M)
High (H)

Strategic Risk Contract expectations M Employees involved
not being in Procurement
monitored/managed Activity are required

to complete online
training modules in
Contract
Management.

Compliance Failure to comply with L Engagement with
internal procurement the Commercial
regulations and Legal Team within
procurement legislation the Commissioning

Function.

Page 140




7.

Operational

Unable to control M
demand

Ongoing focus on
demand reduction
strategies, contract
terms developed to
be more flexible

Financial

Escalation of costs L

Differing market M
conditions depending
on commodity/service

A strong focus on

value for money in
all commissioning

activities.

Use of Business
Intelligence to help
predict market
changes and
trends.

Reputational

Insufficient information M
provided by officers,
lack of transparency

A scrutiny process
has been
established to
ensure
sufficient/relevant
information is
provided.

Environment/Climate

Failure to consider L
sustainable options.

Ensure all contracts
consider
environmental
considerations.

OUTCOMES

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN

Impact of Report

Aberdeen City Council
Policy Statement

The abilty to have an overview of contract
expenditure is aligned to Core Outcomes of the LOIP
and the whole systems commissioning cycle
approach.

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan

Stretch Outcomes
(Prosperous
Economy/People/Place)

Community Benefits requirements are incorporated
into all ACC Procurement Activity, consideration is
given to the Stretch Outcomes within the LOIP at the
development phase.

Regional and City
Strategies

The proposals within the business cases appended
to this report support Key Regional and City

Page 141



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf

Strategies, details of anticipated outcomes are
contained within each the business cases.

UK and Scottish
Legislative and Policy
Programmes

Each of the business cases appended to the report
contains details of the legislative and policy
programmes to be complied with.

8.

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Assessment

Outcome

Impact Assessment

Not required

Data Protection Impact

Assessment

Not required

10.

11.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

APPENDICES

Public

Appendix 1 Summary Workplan — Commissioning, Customer, Resources &
Operations_Public
Appendix 3 3.10 Memo Summary_Public

Private

Appendix 2 Summary Workplan - Commissioning, Customer, Resources &
Operations Workplan_Private

REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS

Name Craig Innes
Title Head of Commercial & Procurement Services
Email Address Clnnes@aberdeeencity.gov.uk

Tel 01224 665650

Page 142



mailto:CInnes@aberdeeencity.gov.uk

et T obed

Commissioning Committee: Date of Committee: 11
Procurement Work [Strategic February 2021
Plan Commissioning H
Committee Appendlx 1
Estimated End dat Maxi

Tvoe of Estimated Start s IrZ?Ceontrr;ct ate E;Z::::: Estimated End date of
Reference Function Cluster Description of Requirement P date of Contract or R X Contract (Including Summary

Budget R (Excluding Period .

Extension . extension)
extension) (months)
2 year extension of the current Managed Print
S . . . Services Contract which provided the Council

000-TMQY9369 Commissioning |Commercial & Procurement [Managed Print Service Revenue 01/04/2023 31/03/2024 0 31/03/2024

with a Managed Print Service including provision
of devices and a Bulk Printing & Mailing Service.




v T obed

Customer Committee: [Date of Committee: 11
Procurement Strategic February 2021
Work Plan Commissionin
g Committee
. Estimated End . Estimated End
Estimated Start Maximum date of
. e . Type of date of Contract X
Reference Function Cluster Description of Requirement date of Contract . Extension Contract Summary
Budget . (Excluding . )
or Extension R Period (months)|  (Including
extension) X
extension)
The Housing First contract would include securing
Early Intervention & social and private landlords to provide properties for
000-YHRV9484 |Customer Community Housing First Service Revenue 01/10/2021 30/09/2023 24 30/09/2025 |individuals on the Housing First programme, 24/7 point
Empowerment of contact support, undertaking statutory consultation
and co-ordinating partnership working.
Infrastructure Hosting & Management Service to be
provided enabling infrastructure that spans council
devices and systems, provides access to a number of
multi-disciplinary professions across the city, in
addition to community and recreational centre system
000-UUNH5647 |Customer Digital & Technology Infrastructure Hosting & Management | Revenue 01/11/2021 31/10/2024 24 31/10/2026 "ty : ¥

usage. The technology supports and enables the
council’'s commissioning intentions in that the system’s
data analytics can be used to provide early intervention
opportunities.




G T obed

Resources Committee: Date of Committee:
Procurement Strategic 11 February 2021
Work Plan Commissioning
Committee
Estimated Start| Estimated End Maximum Estimated End
Type of date of date of Contract| Extension |date of Contract
Reference Function Cluster Description of Requirement e . X . Summary
Budget Contract or (Excluding Period (Including
Extension extension) (months) extension)
The AD Plant is an anaerobic digestion
plant based at the TECA site, which
will utilise feedstocks and foodwastes
to generate gas through a biological
000-UWUW?7961 [Resources Corporate Landlord |AD Plant Operator Contract |Revenue 01/03/2021 28/02/2023 36 28/02/2026 |process. The gas produced is then

able to generate income streams. The
contract relates to the Council
procuring an operator to operate the
site on our behalf.




ot T obed

Operations Committee: Date of Committee: 11

Procurement Work Strategic February 2021

Plan Commissioning

Committee
Estimated Start| Estimated End Maximum Estimated End
Reference Function Cluster Description of Requirement |Type of Budget date of date of Co'ntract ExterTS|on date of Co'ntract Summary
Contract or (Excluding Period (Including
Extension extension) (months) extension)
000-KNFM2335 Operations Operations & Protective|Road & Pavement Weed Revenue 01/05/2021 30/04/2024 12 30/04/2025 |[Aberdeen City Council’s Environmental Services are
Services Spraying responsible for the maintenance of the grounds and open

spaces around Council properties and adopted areas. This
responsibility includes the weed spraying maintenance of
the Council’s *Adopted Roads and Pavements within the
City of Aberdeen. The contract for Road & Pavement Weed
Spraying is required to allow this work to be carried out by a
suitably qualified contractor in observation of required
standards for this type of work. *“Adopted Roads and
Pavements’ are those that the Roads Authority formally
adopt and look after/maintain as per Section 1 of the Road
(Scotland) Act 1984, the local roads authority shall manage
and maintain all roads in their area as are for the time being
antarad in o lict adantad rande)”

000-FNBF7416 Operations Operations & Protective|Void Housing Properties -  [Revenue/Capita| 01/03/2021 31/08/2021 0 31/08/2021 |[Short term contract for Void Housing Properties Repairs and

Services

Repairs and Maintenance

Maintenance, to enable an increase in rental income,
increase available housing stock, and reduce demands on
the core work of the voids repairs teams. Contract is led by
Corporate Landlord and managed by Building Services.




/T obed

3.10 Memo Summary

Appendix 3

Function

Cluster

Description of Contract

Estimated Start
date of Contract
or Extension

Estimated End
date of
Contract

Total Estimated
Contract Value £

SUMMARY OF EXPLANATION OF WHY THE CONTRACT WAS URGENTLY REQUIRED TO MEET THE EXIGENICES OF THE SERVICE AND THEREFORE
JUSTIFYING THE SUSPENSION OF PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART:

Resources

People and
Organisation

AES Digital Solutions provision of
Match Jobs Software

01/11/2020

01/11/2021

58,698

This contract is to provide a digital tool to match employees to roles for internal movement/recruitment. Contract commenced November 2019 and set up work took
place to March 2020, when training and then system testing was due to start. From March 2020 the impact of the covid-19 pandemic has had significant impact on
the implementation of the scheme. Training and system testing had to be paused to enable the team to focus on the development and implementation of the
temporary movement of staff protocol and scheme to enable employees to move from substantive posts to support temporary duties/ role critical to support the
pandemic. Unfortunately the digital tool was not progressed sufficiently to be able to be used for the urgent requirements of the pandemic response. This was done
using a manual process but has now been successfully moved to this digital tool. Training has been completed and testing of all aspects of the system is now
underway, but there is an urgent requirement to extend this contract for a further 12 months to implement the system fully for all aspects of internal movement of
staff and internal recruitment.

The supplier has agreed a further 12 month extension of costs on the basis of our discounted Year 1 costs with no cost increase. If a contract extension is not agreed
we would lose the work undertaken over the past 12 months in setting up this system. We would then need to source another solution/system to undertake this
significant project. Furthermore, the implementation of the digital tool as part of the re.cruit scheme (the new approach to internal recruitment/ internal movement
of staff scheme) is subject to a recommendation from an Internal Audit report on Workforce Planning, approved at Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee today 4
November 2020 Report no. AC2018.

Operations

Operations and
Protective Services

Manufacture & supply of
specialist chip spreading
machine

02/12/2020

On delivery

130,000 plus 1,500
delivery

This a specialist chip spreading machine that is required by the Roads service as soon as possible to enable them to carry road repairs as part of their statutory duties.
If these duties are not carried out, the council is fined, hence the timescales.

If equipment is not purchased additional hire of equipment would have to be brought in which would impact on the revenue budget. The current market hire rate for
the Extendachip is £1200 per week based on a 48-week one yearly hire = £57,600 per year, or £288,000 over the life of the machine (5 years).

Customer

Early Intervention
and Community
Empowerment

Replacement of Bus Lane
Enforcement Equipment

01/04/2021

31/03/2023

Total Capital
Expenditure
181,150/Total
Annual Revenue
Cost 60,000

Presented in SCC 3.10 memo list for the revenue implications of the total expenditure. The current bus lane enforcement equipment has recently seen increases in
the amount of downtime. A maintenance agreement is in place with the incumbent provider who have explained that the increased amount of downtime has been
due to the obsolescence of the current equipment deployed. Increased downtime will continue to affect the efficiency of the bus lane network across Aberdeen City
and have a negative impact on the revenue income.

NESTRANS were projected to underspend on their project budget this year and invited services to bid for funding to support transport related projects. A bid was
submitted using indicative costs from the market to replace the existing system which has since been successful. The awarded budget must be spent by the end of
this financial year. This does not allow enough time for approval to be obtained through the usual boards and committee process. If the funding is not used by the
end of the financial year the council will be need to cover the cost of replacing the systems.

Commissioning

Governance

First Aid training and Health and
Safety E-learning

01/10/2020

01/10/2021

25,000 + VAT

Due to current coronavirus pandemic it has not been possible to procure a replacement for this essential training as many companies were not at work due to
furloughing of staff. ACC H&S officers have also been occupied full time in COVID - related work. Without a contract in place the Council would be at risk of being non-|
compliant with ACC's statutory duty to provide H & S and first aid training which includes the training element for Pupil Support Assistants in schools.

Approval of spend has been discussed with Chief Officers of Governance and People and Organisation who are in agreement to continue with the current provider
whilst a business plan and options appraisal are carried out with a view to carrying out a wider procurement in 2021.

Operations

Integrated
Children's and
Family Services

Supply of Chromebook Devices
from XMA (National Framework)

09/10/2020

1,000,027

Given the on-going COVID-19 pandemic and the requirement to support a range of learning situations, including a blended model of delivery for all
stages of school education, the service requires an additional supply of ChromeOS devices to support access to the education offer. This requirement
is still relevant and becoming more of a necessary for upper stages primary learners.

As a result of the impact of the pandemic, there are international challenges regarding the supply of devices. In order to secure a batch of devices for
late November delivery, from a stock order already in place by the supplier, we require to place this order urgently.

A delay to placing this order, will shift delivery into the new year and most likely mid-to-late February or March. Given the uncertain future and the
potential risk of school closures and/or partial moves to blended learning models, it would be prudent to access this stock of devices as soon as
possible.

This purchase would ensure that our young people can access home learning, and are engaging with the correct tools on a level playing field across
schools, as part of any blended and home learning education offer.

The supplier will also enterprise configure and asset tag devices so that they are delivered “ready to go” without causing additional demand on IT
services.




81T abed

Wifi, Switching and Fibre Optic

The current wap structure was originally fitted at St Machar Academy in 2013/2014 to support an IT compliment of 30 Chromebooks and 40 iPads.

Integrated Infrastructure and Wireless One off We will shortly have a digital compliment of approx. 754 Chromebooks, 87 staff laptops and 50 iPads which far outstrips the capacity and capability of
Operations Children's and Access Configuration Upgrade - payment for 123,321 the system. The system cannot cope. Infrastructure currently have plans to renew all school wap structure, however, this project could take 3-4 years
Family Services St Machar Academy equipment to complete and as these are often planned alphabetically St Machar Academy falls to the end of the queue. However, we have a larger than normal
underspend due mainly to factors relating to covid so wish to jump on the project early by offering to pay our own way with our underspend, thus
ensuring that our pupils have high quality seamless access to resources during learning and teaching at the earliest opportunity, approx. 3-4 months.
Due to the current COVID-19 situation there is a requirement for the purchase of vouchers in relation to provision of Free School Meals to ensure
continuity of Service albeit different to the norm.
Operations Operations and School Meals School Vouchers 05/01/2021 16/08/2021 600,000

Protective Services

This request seeks approval as the current Contract with Sodexo has now ended prematurely, as the supplier is unable to continue the provision.

This request seeks approval for continued provision though a Call-off Contract from the Wales National Procurement Services (NPS) Framework with

EdenRed supplier, to provide provision moving forwards.




Agenda Item 12.1

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3.1 Members are requested to declare any interests
	5.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 12 November 2020 - for approval
	6.1 Committee Business Planner
	9.1 Aberdeen Sports Village Annual Report - COM/21/041
	ASV Annual Report Appendix

	9.2 Scotland Excel Annual Report - COM/21/033
	Scotland Excel Annual Value Report Appendix A

	10.1 Aberdeen City Population Needs Assessment 2021 - CUS/21/042
	PNA Appendix 1 Final
	PNA Appendix 2 Final

	10.2 Commercial and Procurement Performance Report - CUS/21/024
	Commercial & Procurement Performance Report Appendix A Final

	11.1 Workplans and Business Cases - Revenue - COM/21/034
	Appendix 1 - Summary Workplan – Public
	Appendix 3 - 3.10 Memo Summary_Public

	12.1 Workplans and Business Cases - Revenue - Exempt Appendices
	Managed Print Contract Extension Final
	Housing First Business Case
	Infrastructure Hosting & Management Business Case
	Operator AD Plant Business Case
	Road Pavement Weed Spraying Business Case
	Void Properties Final


